
1 

City Council Agenda 
Thursday, August 12, 2021 

6:00 PM 
35 Cabarrus Avenue, W, Concord NC  28025 

Cell phones are to be turned off or placed on vibrate during the meeting. Please exit the Council 
Chambers before using your cell phone. 

The agenda is prepared and distributed on Friday preceding the meeting to Council and news 
media. A work session is then held on the Tuesday preceding the regular meeting at 4:00 pm. 

I. Call to Order
II. Pledge of Allegiance and Moment of Silent Prayer
III. Approval of Minutes

July 6, July 8, and July 20, 2021.
IV. Presentations

1. Presentation of retirement plaque to Canine Bendix for seven years of service as a 
Police Canine for the Concord Police Department.

2. Presentation of retirement plaque to Code Enforcement Manager Chuck Brock for 
over 30 years of service with the City of Concord.  Code Enforcement Manager 
Chuck Brock began his career with the City of Concord's Water Resource Department in 
1990. In 2003, Chuck transferred to the Code Enforcement Division of the Planning and 
Zoning Department as a Code Enforcement Officer. In 2006, the Code Enforcement 
Division was transferred to the Concord Police Department. During this time, Chuck was 
able to obtain and currently holds certifications as a Certified Zoning Official, Housing 
Code Official, and NC Code Building Level I, Plumbing Level I, and Mechanical Level I 
Inspector. In 2015, he was promoted to the position of Senior Code Enforcement Officer, 
and in 2018 he was promoted to Code Enforcement Manager.  

3. Recognition of the City of Concord Finance Department for receiving the Certificate
of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting for period ending June 30,
2020.  The City of Concord has participated in the Government Finance Officer's 
Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) award program for many years 
and again has been successful in meeting the requirements for the Certificate of 
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting for the period ending June 30, 2020. 
The Certificate of Achievement is the highest form of recognition in the area of 
governmental accounting and financial reporting, and its attainment represents a 
significant accomplishment by a government and its management.  The City has 
received this award for 32 consecutive years.  

4. Presentation of a Certificate of Appreciation to Todd Phillips for his 10 years of
service to the Concord ABC Board.

V. Unfinished Business
A. Continue a public hearing to consider amending Section 8.8.4 of the Concord

Development Ordinance (CDO) and Section 58-256 (c) of the City Code of
Ordinances to clarify the use of recreational vehicles as residences. Planning staff
has worked with Legal and Code Enforcement to draft minimum requirements based on
recent enforcement actions.  At the July 8, 2021 meeting, Council continued the item to
allow staff to present information on potentially allowing limited use for RVs when a
home is being constructed.  Staff has conducted research with other municipalities and



2 

could not find any instances where RV use is permissible during a construction of a 
single-family home.  A proposal has been drafted to allow use for 365 days in the event 
Council does want to pursue this option.   If Council does not wish to pursue that option, 
the original proposed amendment quantifies the use of RV, travel trailers and campers 
on individual developed parcels and for security purposes.  

Recommendation: Motion to adopt an ordinance amending Section 8.8.4 of the 
CDO and Section 58-256(c) of the City Code relative to recreational vehicles. 

B. Continue a public hearing to consider renaming a section of Roberta Church Rd.
This case was tabled at the July 8, 2021 City Council meeting in order to allow staff time
to research the possibility of renaming the section of Roberta Church Rd. after a
property owner who possess multiple properties fronting the street section.  The
suggestion from Council was "Dwight Morrison Rd".  Planning staff reached out to
Cabarrus County, who is responsible for approving street names within the County, to
ensure there is no conflicting names or potential issues caused by proposed names.
After review of the suggested street name, Cabarrus County responded providing
guidance to the City related to the potential name.  The County explained that their
policy is to no longer title streets with the full proper names of individual persons.
However, should the City choose to pursue a full proper name, the County will require
that the City Council pass a resolution in support of the name, with a detailed
explanation of the individual’s significance and personal contribution, meriting the honor
and recognition.  Once the resolution is passed, the County will consider the request and
assuming approval, City Council could then adopt the new street name at a subsequent
meeting.  Alternatively, portions of proper names do not require the resolution.  For
example: Smith Ave., Leslie Ln., Wilson Farm Rd.  At this time, staff has not provided
the County with any suggested names to review that would incorporate a part of the
suggested "Dwight Morrison Rd" name.  A map has been included depicting the current
property owners with frontage on the subject portion of Roberta Church Rd.  As a
reminder, with NCDOT's completed construction of George W. Liles Pkwy, there is a
short dead-end section of Roberta Church Rd which NCDOT realigned to connect to
Concord Pkwy S.  This realigned section of roadway needs to be assigned a new street
name for safety and emergency-response reasons.  There is already a separate section
of Roberta Church Rd located off of Roberta Rd near Stough Rd which can potentially
be confused with this particular street section.  The name "Elmwood" was randomly
selected by Planning Department staff and presented at the July meeting.  Cabarrus
County Planning Department has indicated that the name would be acceptable as a
street name since it is not used anywhere else in the county.  However, pending
guidance from Council, staff can individually reach out to each property owner to
ascertain their interest in other potential street names.  There are two single-family
residential homes and one business for which staff would need to assign new
addresses.  Planning Department staff will give guidance to the property owners
concerning the address change process.  The cost is very minimal.  The Sign Shop in
the Transportation Department would need to replace one green street blade at Concord
Pkwy S.

Recommendation: Motion to table the public hearing until the regularly scheduled 
September 9th Council meeting and provide staff with guidance on any Council 
suggested names. 

VI. New Business
A. Informational Items
B. Departmental Reports
C. Recognition of persons requesting to be heard
D. Public Hearings

1. Conduct a public hearing pursuant to NC General Statutes Sec. 158-7.1 and
consider offering a contract for a seven year / 85% tax based Economic
Development Incentive Grant to Ball Metal Beverage Container Corp. (Project 



3 

Aquamarine Component 1) to locate at 2321 Concord Pkwy S. in Concord, NC. 
Under the North Carolina General Statutes, City Council may offer incentives to 
stimulate private sector expansion of new facilities. Ball Metal Beverage Container 
Corp.  proposes to develop an 800,000 SF four-line beverage packing facility at the 
Grounds at Concord (2321 Concord Pkwy S, Concord, NC) with a projected 
investment of approximately $383,874,400 in real and personal property. They also 
plan to create 220 jobs with an average annual salary for all new positions estimated 
at $70,555. The total value of the City's seven year grant is estimated to equal 
$7,359,514 dependent on the actual investment. The City of Concord would still 
collect a 7-year net revenue of $1,298,738 after the incentive payments. See 
attached grant analysis for additional details. 

Recommendation: Consider offering a contract for a seven year / 85% 
Economic Development Incentive Grant to Ball Metal Beverage Container Corp. 
(Project Aquamarine Component 1) to locate at 2321 Concord Pkwy S. in 
Concord, NC, pursuant to NC General Statutes Sec. 158-7.1. 

2. Conduct a public hearing pursuant to NC General Statutes Sec. 158-7.1 and
consider offering a contract for a seven year / 85% tax based Economic
Development Incentive Grant to RRB Beverage Operations Inc. (Project 
Aquamarine Component 2) to locate at 2321 Concord Pkwy S. in Concord, NC.   
Under the North Carolina General Statutes, City Council may offer incentives to 
stimulate private sector expansion of new facilities. RRB Beverage Operations Inc. 
proposes to develop a 1,400,000 SF factory, distribution, and office space at the 
Grounds at Concord (2321 Concord Pkwy S, Concord, NC) with a projected 
investment of approximately $553,000,000 in real and personal property. They also 
plan to create 323 jobs with an average wage of $50,387. The total value of the 
City's seven year grant is estimated to equal $11,152,354 dependent on the actual 
investment. The City of Concord would still collect a 7-year net revenue of 
$1,968,062 after the incentive payments. See attached grant analysis for additional 
details. 

Recommendation: Consider offering a contract for a seven year / 85% 
Economic Development Incentive Grant to RRB Beverage Operations Inc. 
(Project Aquamarine Component 2) to locate at 2321 Concord Pkwy S. in 
Concord, NC, pursuant to NC General Statutes Sec. 158-7.1. 

3. Conduct a public hearing pursuant to NC General Statutes Sec. 158-7.1 and
consider offering a contract for a seven year / 85% tax based Economic
Development Incentive Grant to Red Bull North America, Inc. (Project 
Aquamarine Component 3) to locate at 2321 Concord Pkwy S. in Concord, NC.   
Under the North Carolina General Statutes, City Council may offer incentives to 
stimulate private sector expansion of new facilities. Red Bull North America, Inc. 
proposes to develop an 800,000 SF regional distribution center at the Grounds at 
Concord (2321 Concord Pkwy S, Concord, NC) with a projected investment of 
approximately $140,000,000 in real and personal property. They also plan to create 
90 jobs with an average wage of $50,367. The total value of the City's seven year 
grant is estimated to equal $2,951,227 dependent on the actual investment. The City 
of Concord would still collect a 7-year net revenue of $520,805 after the incentive 
payments. See attached grant analysis for additional details. 

Recommendation: Consider offering a contract for a seven year / 85% 
Economic Development Incentive Grant to Red Bull North America, Inc. (Project 
Aquamarine Component 3) to locate at 2321 Concord Pkwy S. in Concord, NC, 
pursuant to NC General Statutes Sec. 158-7.1. 

4. Conduct a public hearing to consider adopting an ordinance amending the
official zoning map for +/- 3.366 acres located at 2183 Heglar Rd from Cabarrus
County LDR (Low Density Residential) to City of Concord RM-1 (Residential 
Medium Density) and to amend the 2030 Land Use Plan from Rural to 



4 

Suburban Neighborhood.   The Planning and Zoning Commission heard the above 
referenced petition at their July 20th meeting and unanimously voted to forward the 
request to City Council with a recommendation that the zoning map be amended 
from Cabarrus County LDR (Low Density Residential) to City of Concord RM-1 
(Residential Medium Density) and to amend the 2030 Land Use Plan from Rural to 
Suburban Neighborhood.  

Recommendation: Motion to adopt an ordinance amending the official zoning 
map from Cabarrus County LDR (Low Density Residential) to City of Concord 
RM-1 (Residential Medium Density) and to amend the 2030 Land Use Plan from 
Rural to Suburban Neighborhood. 

5. Conduct a public hearing to consider adopting an ordinance amending the
official zoning map for +/- 0.64 acres located on the southwestern side of the
intersection of Freeze Ave. NW and St. James St. NW from Neighborhood 
Commercial (B-1) and Residential Compact (RC) to Residential Compact 
Conditional District (RC-CD).   The Planning and Zoning Commission heard the 
above referenced petition at their July 20th, 2021 public hearing and acted to 
approve the request, by a unanimous vote, with conditions.  In accordance with 
Concord Development Ordinance section 3.2.4-B “Any person aggrieved by the 
decision of the Planning and Zoning Commission shall have the right to appeal the 
action to the City Council. The appeal shall be filed by giving notice in writing to the 
Administrator as designated by the City Manager within fifteen (15) days of the 
decision of the Planning and Zoning Commission. The City Council shall place the 
item on the next available City Council agenda.”  An appeal was submitted on July 
28th by Mr. Pete Barnhardt and wife Mrs. Carolyn Barnhardt.  Therefore, the request 
is forwarded to City Council for reconsideration of the rezoning request.  Please see 
attached documents for further detail.  

Recommendation: Motion to adopt an ordinance amending the official zoning 
map from Neighborhood Commercial (B-1) and Residential Compact (RC) to 
Residential Compact Conditional District (RC-CD). 

E. Presentations of Petitions and Requests
1. Consider authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute a contract with

McGill Associates, P.A. for Construction Phase Services for the Union
Streetscape Improvements Project. McGill Associates, P.A. (McGill) was the 
selected firm awarded the professional services contract for Engineering Services on 
the Union Streetscape Improvements Project in March 2020. At the time of this 
award City Staff was unsure of the involvement that would be required by McGill 
during construction and choose not to include Construction Phase Services as part 
of the original contract.  City staff now has a better idea of what City Staff can handle 
in-house and what is needed from McGill now that the Engineering Services phase is 
wrapping up and the Construction Phase is getting started. The fee for Construction 
Phase Services from McGill comes to $211,135 and will be invoiced based on time 
and materials. The contract is broken down into three parts: 1-Construction 
Assistance Services, $115,795; 2-Provide Design Modifications, $10,000; and 3-
Construction Observation Services, $85,340. Utilizing McGill for the Construction 
Phase Services is beneficial to the City because if, and when, an unexpected issue 
arises during construction of the Streetscape the Engineers and Construction 
Inspectors will be available to assist the City in finding a solution based on their 
experience with the project and extensive Streetscape Construction Experience. The 
amount for the construction contract that was budgeted is $420,000 meaning the 
contract will be $208,865 under budget. 

Recommendation: Motion to authorize the City Manager to negotiate and 
execute a contract with McGill Associates, P.A. for Construction Phase Services 
for the Union Streetscape Improvements Project in the amount of $211,135. 



5 

2. Consider approving the lighting design and authorizing the City Manager to
negotiate and execute a sole source contract with Illuminating Concepts Inc,
LLC for Intellistreets Light Poles & Accessories as part of the Union 
Streetscape Improvements Project.  Staff has been working with Intellistreets over 
the past two years for the lighting and technical advantages that the company brings 
to urban streetscapes.  The Town of Mooresville has utilized the lights in their new 
streetscape and has since expanded the use in other areas of Downtown as well as 
an adjacent park.  Staff from Mooresville has been very helpful to Concord in 
demonstrating the capabilities and answering any questions about the product which 
has been reassuring that the product does indeed perform as advertised.  The poles 
will have wireless audio, multicolored indicator LED’s, adjustable flood light control, 
wireless switch receptacle control and the thinnest LED banners in the industry and 
concealed wifi.  Intellistreets has over twenty-five patents on their products which 
means comparable systems are not available and if they were available the quality 
and complete system would be less than what is desired.  As part of the sole source 
consideration staff proposes to move to single globe light fixtures and black painted 
poles instead of green.  The proposed poles will be approximately 1’ 3” shorter than 
the existing poles and much more streamline with less mass.  The lights on City Hall 
as well as the new signal poles are single globe. If Council concurs the plan will be to 
transition the existing poles to black and to replace the poles as the streetscape is 
expanded in future years.  The price for the single globe poles with all of the 
components presented to Council and the public is $108,170 less than what is 
budgeted.  This also includes incorporating the Intellistreet technology into the poles 
that the County is using in Means Plaza. 

Recommendation: Motion to approve the lighting design and authorize the City 
Manager to negotiate and execute a sole source contract with Illuminating 
Concepts Inc, LLC for Intellistreets Light Poles & Accessories in the amount of 
$865,764 as part of the Union Streetscape Improvements Project. 

3. Consider amending the City's sign ordinance to extend the allowable time
periods for posting temporary banners.  The Cabarrus Regional Chamber of
Commerce, on behalf of their members, has requested the 14 and 30-day limits for 
temporary banners be suspended and extended until five days after the federal 
unemployment benefits expire (whether that is September 6 or later). This would give 
business owners the opportunity to utilize this option and advertise in an affordable 
manner. 

Recommendation: Motion to amend the City's sign ordinance to extend the 
allowable time periods for posting temporary banners. 

4. Consider approving the purchase of 26, 30, 34, & 69 Powder Street NW, 224
Cabarrus Avenue E, and 243 Corban Avenue SW from the estate of Barry K.
McClamrock for $150,050 using City Affordable Housing funds.  Staff continues 
to seek vacant and/or abandoned property for acquisition to address neighborhood 
concerns and the continuing need of affordable housing within Concord.  The goal is 
to return vacant and/or abandoned property into suitable housing stock though new 
construction on vacant lots, rehabilitation of existing homes, or demolishing 
dilapidated structures and constructing new.  Investigation of the Powder Street and 
Corban Avenue properties began several months ago.  Staff was informed that these 
properties were held within the estate of Barry K. McClamrock.  Tax value and 
current condition for each property are: 26 Powder Street NW – $24,000 (vacant lot), 
30 Powder Street NW – $24,000 (vacant lot), 34 Powder Street NW – $24,000 
(vacant lot), 69 Powder Street NW – $24,000 (vacant lot), 224 Cabarrus Avenue E – 
$25,000 (house to be demolished), 243 Corban Avenue SW – $29,050 (house to be 
demolished). An offer, contingent on Council approval, has been made and accepted 
by the estate attorney for $150,050 which is the total tax value of all properties.  The 
purchase would use the City’s affordable housing allocation. 



6 

Recommendation: Motion to approve the purchase of 26, 30, 34, & 69 Powder 
Street NW, 224 Cabarrus Avenue E, and 243 Corban Avenue SW from the 
estate of Barry K. McClamrock for $150,050 using City Affordable Housing funds. 

5. Consider recognizing the Woodbridge Home Owners Association in to the
City's Partnership for Stronger Neighborhoods program.  Woodbridge is a
residential, certified NC Wildlife Friendly community of 49 Asheville-inspired patio 
homes located on Davidson Highway. The recently completed neighborhood is on 
Stonecroft Lane NW and Zemosa Lane NW. Officers for the Association are: 
President Cindy Rankin; Treasurer Martha Rusher; Secretary Bradley Dilks; and At-
Large member Amy Browne. The Association hosts monthly meetings in their homes 
on the last Thursday of the month and hold officer elections each October. They 
have submitted all the required documentation for recognition. 

Recommendation: Motion to recognize the Woodbridge Home Owners 
Association into the Partnership for Stronger Neighborhoods Program. 

6. Consider adopting a resolution giving preliminary approval for the issuance of
multifamily housing revenue bonds to finance the acquisition, rehabilitation
and equipping of The Greens of Concord.  Under the North Carolina General 
Statutes, the City is authorized to exercise all of the powers granted to housing 
authorities under the North Carolina Housing Authorities Law (the "Act").  The Act 
authorizes the City, acting as a housing authority, to issue its notes or bonds in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for the purpose of making loans to private 
developers to assist in the construction or rehabilitation of housing facilities for 
persons of low and/or moderate income.  Greens of Concord Apartments, LP (the 
"Company") has requested that the City issue multifamily housing revenue bonds in 
an amount not to exceed $24 million to provide financing for the acquisition, 
rehabilitation and equipping of the Greens of Concord.  The Greens of Concord is an 
existing 152-unit affordable housing development located at 1400 Daley Circle NE in 
the City and was originally built in 1996.  The City will have no legal responsibility or 
liability whatsoever for the payment of principal or interest on the proposed bonds, 
and the bonds will not affect the City's debt ratios or legal debt limits.  All costs and 
expenses in connection with the financing and the acquisition, rehabilitation and 
equipping of the Development, including the reasonable fees and expenses of the 
City's counsel and bond counsel will be paid from the proceeds of the Bonds or by 
the Company. 

Recommendation: Motion to adopt a resolution giving preliminary approval for 
the issuance by the City of multifamily housing revenue bonds to provide 
financing for the acquisition, rehabilitation and equipping by Greens of Concord 
Apartments, LP of an existing 152-unit affordable housing development known as 
The Greens of Concord and located in the City. 

7. Consider adopting an ordinance to temporarily close Cabarrus Ave (SR 1002)
between Market St., SW and Church St., S for the Concord International
Festival to be held October 2, 2021.  The City of Concord is Co-Sponsoring the 
Concord International Festival.  As such, to protect the safety of pedestrians in the 
event, staff is requesting from NCDOT to temporarily close Cabarrus Ave (SR 1002) 
between Market St., SW and Church St., S to vehicular traffic on October 2, 2021 
between the hours of 8:00 A.M. and 8:00 P.M.   See attached Ordinance. 

Recommendation: Motion to adopt an ordinance to temporarily close Cabarrus 
Ave (SR 1002) between Market St., SW and Church St., S from 8:00 A.M. to 8:00 
P.M. for the Concord International Festival on October 2, 2021.

8. Consider approving and adopting the Conceptual Master Plan to develop the
28.6-acre J.E. "Jim" Ramseur Park located at 1252 Cox Mill Road.  The Parks
and Recreation Department is pleased to present the conceptual master plan for 
Council's consideration for the 28.6-acre property on Cox Mill Road.  The property is 
adjacent to Clarke Creek (a planned greenway corridor), Cox Mill Elementary 



7 

School, Odell Recreation Sports fields (City lease beginning August 2021), Cox Mill 
High School, and Cabarrus Soil and Water Conservation Property. Based on 
recommendations from the 2016 Comprehensive Master Plan, and City Council 
Strategic Goals, a new community park in the Northwest region of the City is a high 
priority for the City.  The Comprehensive Plan references the need to expand indoor 
programs and outdoor amenity offerings in this area, including greenways and trails, 
splash pads, environmental facilities, areas for both active and passive sports, and a 
community or recreation center.  The City contracted with the firm Woolpert to 
complete the design of the park, including the preliminary master plan. Woolpert has 
vast experience with professional design services, including master planning, 
schematic design, engineering and architectural services.  Over the past year, City 
staff, working in conjunction with Woolpert, went through an intensive community 
engagement process, which featured three (3) separate opportunities for public 
feedback.  The first a public survey in October of 2020, which was completed by over 
1,000 residents with a total of over 500 write-in comments. Walking, Biking, Trails 
and more Greenways was the top vote, followed by basketball/open gym, indoor 
walking track, indoor fitness, playgrounds, arts, crafts and cultural arts space, 
swimming, outdoor courts, splash pad, and indoor playground in the top 10.  A 
second survey, which included a public workshop, was completed in November 
where citizens were asked specifically to rank their top 5 indoor and outdoor 
facility/amenity recommendations. Greenways, trails and boardwalks was at the top 
of the outdoor list with about 86% support, followed by adventure/obstacle style 
playgrounds, open lawn/event space, splash pad, and traditional playground.  For 
indoor space, indoor gymnasium topped the list with 70% support, followed by 
walking/jogging track, community and multi-purpose rooms, classroom space, and 
activity studios.  From the first two surveys, Woolpert created two (2) concepts for 
Council and public review and comments.  The first concept included a community 
center concept featuring an open green space in the center, a smaller 
community/multi-purpose room building, and a larger sport court complex in the front, 
and a dog park.  The second concept was the recreation center concept, featuring an 
adventure-style playground, larger recreation center with indoor gymnasium and 
court space, and several outdoor education/open space areas.  A third public online 
survey was then presented, with a total of close to 200 responses.  The vast majority 
of residents preferred the Recreation Center concept, with some added elements to 
consider from both plans.  Within the Recreation Center, a large nature-center/multi-
purpose space, multi-activity courts, running track, group fitness studios, and 
gymnasiums were the top choices. Other considerations based on the responses, 
were to consider both types of playgrounds (adventure-style and traditional), a mix of 
sport court types depending on what the site can fit, and a larger open space for 
events.  Greenways and Trails will also be a major component to this plan, including 
a bridge connection to the Highland Creek side of Clarke Creek, as well as utility 
considerations for a sewer connection. The final conceptual master plan features the 
results from a very robust community engagement process over the past year.  This 
plan features the following elements: 1-Trails and Connectivity, including a greenway 
loop trail, boardwalk overlook, and sidewalk connections to adjoining developments, 
the elementary school, and the recreation fields; 2-40,000 square foot recreation 
center, with two gymnasiums, a multi-activity court, a nature center/meeting room, 
classrooms, administration and lobby area, and a running track/exercise area; 3-
 Large Open Lawn/Event Space; 4-Splash Pad; 5-Adventure/Obstacle-style 
playground; 6-Traditional Playground; 7-Outdoor Environmental education area with 
terraced garden and seating; 8-Pickleball courts; 9-Several ancillary park buildings, 
including pavilions, restrooms and shelters; 10-Support Services; 11-250+ parking 
spaces; and 12-Vehicular driveway connections to northern property and to the Cox 
Mill School driveway to the south. The conceptual master plan will serve as a guiding 



8 

document for the continued design and development of the park, and may be 
updated as the project moves through schematic design, design development and 
construction document phases over the next 2-3 years, and as funding becomes 
available.  Development of the park may also be phased over time with many 
Council briefings over the course of the design process. 

Recommendation: Motion to approve and adopt the master plan and conceptual 
design for the J.E. "Jim" Ramseur Park located at 1252 Cox Mill Road. 

9. Consider authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute a contract
amendment for professional services with Woolpert, North Carolina PLLC to
complete the schematic design phase for the J.E. "Jim" Ramseur Park 
property located at 1252 Cox Mill Road.  The property at 1252 Cox Mill Road in 
Concord, which totals approximately 28.6 acres and is adjacent to Cox Mill 
Elementary School was purchased by the City in 2020 to serve as the site of 
Concord’s first Park in the Northwest. In July 2020, Council approved the contract 
with Woolpert, North Carolina PLLC to complete the master plan and design for the 
park. The amendment of $413,500 will include schematic design drawings, building 
rendering, due diligence for pedestrian bridge, utility/pump station feasibility and 
assessment and geotechnical sub-surface investigation. This work is critical to 
continue the design and development process of the park. This addendum for 
$413,500, the second contract addendum for the project design, will include the 
following items: 1-Waters of the U.S. & Wetland Boundary Determination – Once the 
environmental surveying has been completed, Woolpert and their sub-consultant, 
STV will work directly with the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, and N.C. Division of 
Water Resources to verify and certify wetland boundaries & jurisdictional 
determination; 2-Building Programming & Rendering – The Woolpert Architectural 
Team will begin the design, programming and rendering process for the proposed 
recreation center on the property; 3-Pedestrian Bridge Due Diligence – The Woolpert 
team will begin to review the proposed pedestrian bridge and greenway crossing of 
Clarke’s Creek; 4-Utility coordination, feasibility and assessment – The Woolpert 
Team along with their subconsultant, Hinde Engineering will review existing as-builts 
and begin to explore feasible options and costs for water, sanitary sewer, and other 
utility access to the site; 5-Geotechnical sub-surface investigations – Woolpert’s 
subconsultant, Terracon, will provide Geotech services including soil borings and lab 
testing on select samples to determine ground conditions on the site; and 6-
Schematic Design – The Woolpert Team will begin the schematic design phase for 
the Park and Recreation Center Development. This phase of the project will include 
detailed plans, drawings, building renderings and floor plans, proposed grading 
plans, and cost estimations.  Development of a park in the Northwest region of 
Concord is a City Council Goal, and top priority goal of the Comprehensive Parks 
and Recreation Master Plan.  Amenities in this park will likely include a recreation 
center, open space, pickle ball courts, splash pad, playgrounds, shelters and 
ancillary buildings, and greenways, trails and connectivity. 

Recommendation: Motion to authorize the City Manager to negotiate and 
execute a contract amendment with Woolpert, North Carolina, PLLC in the 
amount not to exceed $413,500 for due diligence and schematic design services 
for the J.E. "Jim" Ramseur Park. 

10. Consider awarding a sole source purchase order in the amount of $320,877.36
to Reinhausen Manufacturing Inc. for purchase of two (2) On-Load Tap
Changers.  On-Load Tap Changers (OLTC) are a built-in mechanical part of
substation main power transformer. The OLTC re-taps the windings in the
transformer under loaded conditions, which serves to adjust the voltage produced by
the substation as it self-adjusts throughout the day, depending on system loading
conditions. This helps maintain nominal voltage within acceptable ranges for our end
use customer. OLTC units have a manufacturer defined lifespan and must be



9 

upgraded in the 20-25-year time-frame. The City currently has four (4) substation 
power transformers that have need of a replacement OLTC due to normal end of life 
cycle. Staff has been carefully evaluating the four (4) units in question to determine 
the best options for repair/replace and concluded that an exact replacement from the 
manufacturer is the only option. The original manufacturer was Westinghouse Inc., 
which has since been purchased by Reinhausen Manufacturing Inc. Council 
approved purchase of the first two (2) units in June 2021. This second order of units 
will complete the materials acquisition. Installation plan is underway and will be 
complete in April 2022. 

Recommendation: Motion to award a sole source purchase order in the amount 
of $320,877.36 to Reinhausen Manufacturing Inc. for purchase of two (2) On-
Load Tap Changers. 

11. Consider awarding a bid for one 44KV Substation Power Transformer for the
Country Club Dr. Substation F and one spare 100 KV Power Transformer.
Electric Systems staff received bids on July 21, 2021 for electric equipment and
materials required for the replacement of one (1) 27 MVA power transformer for our
substation F and one (1) 37 MVA 101.25/ 13.2kv spare power transformer. The bids
were arranged into the following two schedules of equipment: Schedule I – 27 MVA
43.8v/13.2kv power transformer; lowest responsible bidder was Virginia Transformer
Corp., in the amount of $723,634; and Schedule II – 37 MVA 101.25/ 13.2kv power
transformer; lowest responsible bidder was Virginia Transformer Corp., in the
amount of $823,975. Staff recommendations reflect the low bidder for each
Schedule.

Recommendation: Motion to award a bid in the amount of $1,547,609 to 
Virginia Transformer Corporation for the purchase of two (2) Substation Power 
Transformers. 

12. Consider authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute a contract
with Talbert Bright and Ellington (TBE) to provide engineering, design, and
bidding services for the South and North Gravel Parking Lot Paving and
Budget Amendment.  In 2014, the City of Concord received a grant from the
Federal Aviation Administration for the purposes of expanding public parking at the
airport. These improvements included design, clearing, grubbing, site grade and
gravel to accommodate parking for the commercial airline operations. The two
gravels lots are currently being used by a third party.  With the recent expansion of
airline service, the use of the lots has changed from alternative parking to an
overflow lot for the parking deck.  In 2019, the south lot, which holds approximately
364 parking spaces, was utilized during peak summer months 60% of the time.  In
accordance with the FAA grant assurances, any real property that is converted from
aeronautical or public use to non- aeronautical or revenue generated use, the federal
portion of the grant improvements must be reimbursed. The FAA has agreed to
reduce our amount of entitlement funding for a 3-year period to pay down $1.2
million in grant funding to meet the reimbursement obligation.  With the expansion of
Allegiant Air at the airport, these lots will be converted from public to revenue parking
facilities. (Long term parking). In anticipation of new and expanded service and to
ensure adequate parking for Allegiant’s customers along with connectivity from the
parking lot to the commercial terminal bldg., these improvements are necessary.
The intent of this project is to pave the existing lots and install grassed islands and
landscaping to meet City of Concord development standards.  The project will
include asphalt pavement overlay of the existing aggregate, drain modifications for
grassed islands, erosion control devices, perimeter security fencing relocation and
access control system/revenue control system. The funding for the professional
services will be from retained earnings at a cost of $161,492. The airport anticipates
$2,240,445.00 in FY 22 to fund the construction phase of the project.



10 

Recommendation: Motion to authorize the City Manager to negotiate and 
execute a contract with TBE for the design and bidding services for the long-term 
parking lots and approve budget amendment. 

13. Consider authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute a contract
with Carolina Siteworks, Inc.  for the installation of the General Services Dr. 12-
inch Water Line Replacement.  The General Services Line Replacement project
consists of the installation of approximately 941 linear feet of 12-in water main along
General Services Dr from inside the Brown operation Center to Highway 49. This
new water line replaces an existing 8-inch water line that was identified for
replacement in our master plan to increase flow distribution throughout our system.
The project was bid under the formal bidding process, bids were taken on July 13,
2021 and 3 bids were received. The lowest responsible bidder was Carolina
Siteworks, Inc. in the amount of $341,317.90 which is within budget.

Recommendation: Motion authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and 
execute a contract with Carolina Siteworks, Inc. in the amount of $341,317.90 for 
the installation of the General Services Dr. 12-inch Water Line Replacement. 

14. Consider a Preliminary Application from Cedric O. Harris.  In accordance with
City Code Chapter 62, Cedric Harris has submitted a preliminary application to
receive water service outside the City limits.  The property is located at 9722 Dewitt
Road.   The parcel is currently vacant and zoned LDR.  The owner proposed to
construct one single family home.  Sewer is not available to the parcel.

Recommendation: Motion to accept the preliminary application and have the 
owner proceed to the final application phase excluding annexation. 

15. Consider a Preliminary Application from Sandra S. Diffee.  In accordance with
City Code Chapter 62, Sandra Diffee has submitted a preliminary application for
water service outside the City limits.  The property is located at 1041 Cox Mill Road.
The property is currently zoned LDR and developed with a single family home.
There is not sanitary sewer service available to this property.  The owner has
expressed that she is having problems with her well.

Recommendation: Motion to accept the preliminary application and have the 
owner proceed to the final application phase excluding annexation. 

VII. Consent Agenda
A. Consider accepting an Offer of Dedication of utility easements and public

rights-of-ways in various subdivisions. In accordance with CDO Article 5, the
following final plats and easements are now ready for approval: Heritage Ridge at
Moss Creek Phase 2 and 62 Woodsdale Place. Various utility easements and public
rights-of-ways are offered by the owners.

Recommendation:  Motion to accept the offer of dedication on the following plat 
and easements: Heritage Ridge at Moss Creek Phase 2 and 62 Woodsdale 
Place. 

B. Consider adopting an ordinance amending the Fees and Charges schedule for
water, wastewater, and transit fees. Some outside water/wastewater rates were
inadvertently left off of the fee schedule or entered for the wrong amount.  The
attached ordinance corrects these rates.  Previously, the fee schedule only showed
an inside rate for water fire lines and was missing the outside rate of $5.33 per 1,000
gallons.  The outside rate for wastewater volume charges was incorrectly listed as
$27.56, so this corrects the rate to $32.78.  Also included in this update is the
removal of the credit card fee for Transit.

Recommendation:  Motion to adopt an ordinance amending the Fees and 
Charges schedule for water, wastewater, and transit fees. 

C. Consider increasing the payment standards for the Housing Department in
order to encourage landlord participation in the Housing Choice Voucher
program. Concord Housing is requesting to increase our payment standards in order
to encourage landlord participation in the Housing Choice Voucher program.



11 

Payment standards are used in the calculation of the housing assistance payment 
that the Public Housing Agency pays to the owner on behalf of the family leasing a 
unit.  The Payment Standard is the maximum amount of assistance a family can 
receive.  The Payment Standard can be between 90 to 110% Fair Market Rate.  We 
are choosing 110% of the Fair Market Rate because we want to have greater 
landlord participation in the program.  At our current Payment Standard, our 
landlords are not opting to participate in the program. 

Recommendation:  Motion to Increase the Payment Standards to encourage 
landlord participation in the Housing Choice Voucher program. 

D. Consider adopting an ordinance to amend the FY 2021/2022 Budget Ordinance
for the General Fund to appropriate unspent FY 2021 funds for the Public Art
Committee. Funds were appropriated in the FY 2020/2021 budget for the Public Art
Committee.  All of these funds were not spent prior to year-end.  The attached
budget ordinance appropriates these left over funds from fund balance so they can
be spent in the FY 2021/2022 budget.

Recommendation:  Motion to adopt an ordinance to amend the FY 2021/2022 
Budget Ordinance for the General Fund to appropriate unspent FY 2021 funds 
for the Public Art Committee. 

E. Consider adopting a capital project ordinance to amend the Transportation
Projects Fund. The amount previously approved for the US 601/Flowes Store
improvements project needs to be adjusted to match the actual expected amount of
CMAQ funds.  There is also a small cleanup that needs to be done to the 29 Bridge
project to match the final cost of the project.

Recommendation:  Motion to adopt a capital project ordinance to amend the 
Transportation Projects Fund. 

F. Consider adopting a Golf Fund operating budget amendment and a Golf
Projects Fund project budget amendment. The range netting project needs
additional funds to cover total costs of the project.  The attached budget ordinance
and project ordinance amendments transfer golf operating funds to the golf project
fund to cover these additional costs to finish the project.

Recommendation:  Motion to adopt a Golf Fund operating budget amendment 
and a Golf Projects Fund project budget amendment. 

G. Consider adopting an ordinance to amend the FY 2021/2022 General Fund
budget and approve the use of contingency funds. Council approved $3000 at
the July 20, 2021 work session for the memorial honoring LTC Parker, WWI most
decorated Soldier and Medal of Honor recipient.  He is buried at Oaklawn Cemetery.
The attached budget ordinance amends the budget for this donation and approves
the use of contingency funds.

Recommendation:  Motion to adopt an ordinance to amend the FY 2021/2022 
General Fund budget and approve the use of contingency funds. 

H. Consider amending the Title VI Policy. The proposed amendment is the addition
of Appendix F.  Appendix F is the Assurance of Compliance which the Title VI policy
requires the City to have. This assurance must be included in all of our contracts,
grants, bids, community or public applications, etc.

Recommendation:  Motion to amend the Title VI Policy to include Appendix F. 
I. Consider amending Article 8.1, Hiring Procedure Policy in the City's Personnel

Policies and Procedures manual. Staff recommends an update to Article 8.1,
Hiring Procedure Policy, to minimize the risk of discriminatory practices in the hiring
process.

Recommendation:  Motion to amend Article 8.1, Hiring Procedure Policy in the 
Personnel Policies and Procedures manual. 

J. Consider amending Article 8.13, City of Concord Computer Network, Email,
and Internet Access Policy. Staff recommends an update to Article 8.13, City of
Concord Computer Network, Email and Internet Access Policy of the City's



12 

Personnel Policies and Procedures to reflect the City's procedures regarding 
fraudulent messages, which is also referred to as phishing. 

Recommendation:  Motion to Amend Article 8.13, City of Concord Computer 
Network, Email and Internet Access Policy, in the Personnel Policies and 
Procedures manual. 

K. Receive quarterly report on water and wastewater extension permits issued by
the Engineering Department in the second quarter of 2021. In accordance with
City Code Chapter 62, attached is a report outlining the water and wastewater
extension permits that were issued between April 1, 2021 and June 30, 2021.

Recommendation:  Motion to receive the second quarter water and wastewater 
extension report for 2021. 

L. Consider acceptance of the Tax Office reports for the month of June 2021. The
Tax Collector is responsible for periodic reporting of revenue collections for the Tax
Collection Office.

Recommendation:  Motion to accept the Tax Office collection reports for the 
month of June 2021. 

M. Consider approval of Tax Releases/Refunds from the Tax Collection Office for
the month of June 2021. G.S. 105-381 allows for the refund and/or release of tax
liability due to various reasons by the governing body.  A listing of various
refund/release requests is presented for your approval, primarily due to
overpayments, situs errors and/or valuation changes.

Recommendation:  Motion to approve the Tax releases/refunds for the month of 
June 2021. 

N. Receive monthly report on status of investments as of June 30, 2021. A
resolution adopted by the governing body on 12/9/1991 directs the Finance Director
to report on the status of investments each month.

Recommendation:  Motion to accept the monthly report on investments. 

VIII. Matters not on the agenda
• TAC
• MTC
• Centralina Regional Council
• Concord/Kannapolis Transit Commission
• WSACC
• Public Art Advisory Committee
• Concord Family Enrichment Association
• PTT Committee
• Barber Scotia Community Task Force Committee
• Concord United Committee

IX. General comments by Council of non-business nature
X. Closed Session (if needed)
XI. Adjournment

*IN ACCORDANCE WITH ADA REGULATIONS, PLEASE NOTE THAT ANYONE WHO
NEEDS AN ACCOMMODATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING SHOULD NOTIFY THE
CITY CLERK AT (704) 920-5205 AT LEAST FORTY-EIGHT HOURS PRIOR TO THE
MEETING.



7/7/2021

Jessica Jones
Interim Finance Director
City of Concord, North Carolina

Dear Ms. Jones:

Congratulations!

We are pleased to notify you that your comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2020 has met the requirements to be awarded GFOA's Certificate of Achievement for Excellence 
in Financial Reporting. The GFOA established the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial 
Reporting Program (Certificate Program) in 1945 to encourage and assist state and local governments to 
go beyond the minimum requirements of generally accepted accounting principles to prepare 
comprehensive annual financial reports that evidence the spirit of transparency and full disclosure and 
then to recognize individual governments that succeed in achieving that goal. The Certificate of 
Achievement is the highest form of recognition in governmental accounting and financial reporting. 
Congratulations, again, for having satisfied the high standards of the program.

Your electronic award packet contains the following:

 A "Summary of Grading" form and a confidential list of comments and suggestions for 
possible improvements. We strongly encourage you to implement the recommended 
improvements in your next report. Certificate of Achievement Program policy requires that 
written responses to these comments and suggestions for improvement be included with your 
2021 fiscal year end submission. If a comment is unclear or there appears to be a discrepancy, 
please contact the Technical Services Center at (312) 977-9700 and ask to speak with a 
Certificate of Achievement Program in-house reviewer.

 Certificate of Achievement. A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year. A 
current holder of a Certificate of Achievement may reproduce the Certificate in its immediately 
subsequent comprehensive annual financial report. Please refer to the instructions for reproducing 
your Certificate in your next report. 

 Award of Financial Reporting Achievement. When GFOA awards a government the Certificate 
of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting, we also present an Award of Financial 
Reporting Achievement (AFRA) to the department identified in the application as primarily 
responsible for achievement of the Certificate.

 Sample press release. Attaining this award is a significant accomplishment. Attached is a sample 
news release that you may use to give appropriate publicity to this notable achievement. 

17



In addition, award recipients will receive via mail either a plaque (if first-time recipients or if the 
government has received the Certificate ten times since it received its last plaque) or a brass medallion to 
affix to the plaque (if the government currently has a plaque with space to affix the medallion). Plaques 
and medallions will be mailed separately.

As an award-winning government, we would like to invite one or more appropriate members of the team 
that put together your comprehensive annual financial report to apply to join the Special Review 
Committee. As members of the Special Review Committee, peer reviewers get exposure to a variety of 
reports from around the country; gain insight into how to improve their own reports; achieve professional 
recognition; and provide valuable input that helps other local governments improve their reports. Please 
see our website for eligibility requirements and information on completing an application.

Thank you for participating in and supporting the Certificate of Achievement Program. If we may be of 
any further assistance, please contact the Technical Services Center at (312) 977-9700.

Sincerely,

Michele Mark Levine
Director, Technical Services

18

https://www.gfoa.org/CAFR-reviewer-eligibility
https://gfoa.org/certificate-achievement-excellence-financial-reporting-program-special-review-committee-applicatio-0


Government Finance Officers Association

Certificate of 
Achievement
for Excellence

in Financial 
Reporting

Presented to

City of Concord
North Carolina

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report

For the Fiscal Year Ended

June 30, 2020

Executive Director/CEO

19



   
 
 

                                                                                                        Staff Report             
 Planning and Zoning Commission 
 
DATE:   June 15, 2021 
 
CASE: TA-06-21 Text Amendment (Recreational Vehicles) 
 
PREPARED BY: Kevin Ashley, AICP –Deputy Planning Director 
  
BACKGROUND 
 
Due to some enforcement and administration issues, the staff is proposing a 
simple amendment to the CDO and a portion of the City Code to address the 
parking and temporary residential use of travel trailers/recreational vehicles on 
residential property.   The current portion of the CDO simply states that no 
RVs/campers, etc. may be utilized as a temporary residence.  
 
The staff feels that it may be reasonable to clarify this portion to allow very limited 
residential use (for visitors) on a developed residential parcel.   The amendment 
to the CDO allows for the use for a period of fourteen (14) days one time during 
any twelve  (12) month period.   The proposed amendment also includes allowing 
the use for Christmas tree lots and nonresidential construction projects greater 
than five (5) acres, for use as security measures.   
 
The City Code portion proposes to prohibit the storing of RVs and travel trailers on 
predominately residential public rights-of-way or on any unpaved portion of a front  
yard.  
 
The amendment is in approval form and at the Commission’s concurrence, it may 
be referred to Council for public hearing. 
 

20



8.8.4 NO RECREATIONAL VEHICLES  
No Recreational Vehicles shall be permitted as a Temporary Use or 
Structure.  No bus, slide-in camper, utility trailer, camping trailer, self-
contained travel trailer or house trailer (defined as a vehicular, portable 
structure built on a wheel chassis, designed to be towed by a self-
propelled vehicle for use as a temporary dwelling, for travel, recreation 
and vacation uses, having a body width not to exceed eight (8) feet and a 
body length not exceeding forty (40) feet when equipped for road travel) 
shall be used for living, sleeping, or business purposes on any lot within 
the zoning jurisdiction of the City of Concord, except as provided below. 
 
Camping trailers and self-contained travel trailers may be used as a 
temporary residence on residentially zoned property for no more than 
fourteen (14) days in any twelve (12) month period.  This provision shall 
only be used on property where an occupied residence is located. 
 
Camping trailers and self-contained travel trailers may be used as 
temporary security quarters for 1) Christmas tree sales lots and for 2) 
nonresidential construction projects greater than five (5) acres, and shall 
be permissible for the duration of the project/construction. 

 

(City Code Section 58-256(c)) Recreational vehicles (as defined in G.S. 20-4.01 (32a) 
except truck campers and conversion vehicles), trailers and boats stored on trailers 
shall not be parked or stored on any predominantly residential public right-of-way 
within the city nor on any unpaved portion of a front yard.  

 

21



8.8.4 NO RECREATIONAL VEHICLES  
No bus, slide-in camper, utility trailer, camping trailer, self-contained 
travel trailer or house trailer (defined as a vehicular, portable structure 
built on a wheel chassis, designed to be towed by a self-propelled vehicle 
for use as a temporary dwelling, for travel, recreation and vacation uses, 
having a body width not to exceed eight (8) feet and a body length not 
exceeding forty (40) feet when equipped for road travel) shall be used for 
living, sleeping, or business purposes on any lot within the zoning 
jurisdiction of the City of Concord, except as provided below. 
 
Camping trailers and self-contained travel trailers may be used as a 
temporary residence on residentially zoned property for no more than 
fourteen (14) days in any twelve (12) month period.  This provision shall 
only be used on property where an occupied residence is located. 
 
Camping trailers and self-contained travel trailers may be used as a 
temporary residence on residentially zoned property, subject to a 
temporary use permit, during construction of a single-family residence for 
a period not to exceed three hundred sixty five (365) days.  This provision 
shall only be used on property where a valid building permit has been 
issued to construct a new single-family residence.  At the expiration of 
the 365 day time period, the unit shall be removed and no extensions are 
permissible.    

 

Camping trailers and self-contained travel trailers may be used as 
temporary security quarters for 1) Christmas tree sales lots and for 2) 
nonresidential construction projects greater than five (5) acres, and shall 
be permissible for the duration of the project/construction. 

 

22



  

 AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE 

OF THE CITY OF CONCORD, NORTH CAROLINA 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Concord, North Carolina pursuant to the authority 
conferred by the North Carolina General Statute §160A-364 enacted an Official Zoning 
Ordinance for the City of Concord, North Carolina and the Area of Extraterritorial 
Jurisdiction on July 28, 1977; and 
 

 WHEREAS, the City of Concord, North Carolina pursuant to the authority conferred by 
North Carolina General Statute §§160D-6-1 through §§160D-6-5, 160D-7-1 through 160D-7-6 , 
160D-8-1 through 160D-8-8 and 160D-9-1 through 160D-9-51 may from time to time as necessary 
amend, supplement, change, modify or repeal certain of its zoning regulations and restrictions 
and zone boundaries; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Concord, North Carolina pursuant to the authority conferred by 
North Carolina General Statute §§160D-6-1 through §§160D6-5, 160D-7-1through 160D-7-6 , 
160D-8-1 through 160D-8-8 and 160D-9-1 through 160D-9-51 does hereby recognize a need to 
amend the text of certain articles of the City of Concord zoning Ordinance. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Concord, North 
Carolina: 

SECTION 1: That the following section of Concord Development Ordinance (CDO) Article 
8 “Use Regulations”  Section 8.8.4 “No Recreational Vehicles” be amended to the 
following: 
 

8.8.4 NO RECREATIONAL VEHICLES  
No bus, slide-in camper, utility trailer, camping trailer, self-contained 
travel trailer or house trailer (defined as a vehicular, portable structure 
built on a wheel chassis, designed to be towed by a self-propelled vehicle 
for use as a temporary dwelling, for travel, recreation and vacation uses, 
having a body width not to exceed eight (8) feet and a body length not 
exceeding forty (40) feet when equipped for road travel) shall be used for 
living, sleeping, or business purposes on any lot within the zoning 
jurisdiction of the City of Concord, except as provided below. 
 
Camping trailers and self-contained travel trailers may be used as a 
temporary residence on residentially zoned property for no more than 
fourteen (14) days in any twelve (12) month period.  This provision shall 
only be used on property where an occupied residence is located. 
 
Camping trailers and self-contained travel trailers may be used as a 
temporary residence on residentially zoned property, subject to a 
temporary use permit, during construction of a single-family residence for 
a period not to exceed three hundred sixty-five (365) days.  This provision 
shall only be used on property where a valid building permit has been 
issued to construct a new single-family residence.  At the expiration of 
the 365 day time period, the unit shall be removed and no extensions are 
permissible.    
 
Camping trailers and self-contained travel trailers may be used as 
temporary security quarters for 1) Christmas tree sales lots and for 2) 
nonresidential construction projects greater than five (5) acres, and shall 
be permissible for the duration of the project/construction. 

 

SECTION 2: That all remaining Articles and Sections of this Ordinance be renumbered to 
include the newly created Articles and Sections.   

SECTION 3: That this Ordinance be effective immediately upon adoption. 

23



  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Adopted in this June 8th, 2021. 

 

        CITY COUNCIL 

        CITY OF CONCORD 

        NORTH CAROLINA 

 

 

ATTEST:      _________________________          

William C. Dusch, Mayor 

______________________________ 

Kim Deason, City Clerk 

         

 

__________________________ 

VaLerie Kolczynski, City Attorney                            
 

 

24



  

 AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE 

OF THE CITY OF CONCORD, NORTH CAROLINA 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Concord, North Carolina pursuant to the authority 
conferred by the North Carolina General Statute §160A-364 enacted an Official Zoning 
Ordinance for the City of Concord, North Carolina and the Area of Extraterritorial 
Jurisdiction on July 28, 1977; and 
 

 WHEREAS, the City of Concord, North Carolina pursuant to the authority conferred by 
North Carolina General Statute §§160D-6-1 through §§160D-6-5, 160D-7-1 through 160D-7-6 , 
160D-8-1 through 160D-8-8 and 160D-9-1 through 160D-9-51 may from time to time as necessary 
amend, supplement, change, modify or repeal certain of its zoning regulations and restrictions 
and zone boundaries; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Concord, North Carolina pursuant to the authority conferred by 
North Carolina General Statute §§160D-6-1 through §§160D6-5, 160D-7-1through 160D-7-6 , 
160D-8-1 through 160D-8-8 and 160D-9-1 through 160D-9-51 does hereby recognize a need to 
amend the text of certain articles of the City of Concord zoning Ordinance. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Concord, North 
Carolina: 

SECTION 1: That the following section of Concord Development Ordinance (CDO) Article 
8 “Use Regulations”  Section 8.8.4 “No Recreational Vehicles” be amended to the 
following: 
 

8.8.4 NO RECREATIONAL VEHICLES  
No bus, slide-in camper, utility trailer, camping trailer, self-contained 
travel trailer or house trailer (defined as a vehicular, portable structure 
built on a wheel chassis, designed to be towed by a self-propelled vehicle 
for use as a temporary dwelling, for travel, recreation and vacation uses, 
having a body width not to exceed eight (8) feet and a body length not 
exceeding forty (40) feet when equipped for road travel) shall be used for 
living, sleeping, or business purposes on any lot within the zoning 
jurisdiction of the City of Concord, except as provided below. 
 
Camping trailers and self-contained travel trailers may be used as a 
temporary residence on residentially zoned property for no more than 
fourteen (14) days in any twelve (12) month period.  This provision shall 
only be used on property where an occupied residence is located. 
 
Camping trailers and self-contained travel trailers may be used as 
temporary security quarters for 1) Christmas tree sales lots and for 2) 
nonresidential construction projects greater than five (5) acres, and shall 
be permissible for the duration of the project/construction. 

 

SECTION 2: That all remaining Articles and Sections of this Ordinance be renumbered to 
include the newly created Articles and Sections.   

SECTION 3: That this Ordinance be effective immediately upon adoption. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

25



  

Adopted in this June 8th, 2021. 

 

        CITY COUNCIL 

        CITY OF CONCORD 

        NORTH CAROLINA 

 

 

ATTEST:      _________________________          

William C. Dusch, Mayor 

______________________________ 

Kim Deason, City Clerk 

         

 

__________________________ 

VaLerie Kolczynski, City Attorney                            
 

 

26



AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 58 RECREATONAL VEHICLES 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina, has adopted 
a Code of Ordinances; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City desires to amend the ordinance to address parking of 
recreational vehicles, 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Concord, 
North Carolina, after due consideration and in the best interests of its citizens and property 
of Concord, that the Concord Code of Ordinances be amended as follows: 
 

SECTION 1.  Chapter 58 “Traffic and Vehicles”,  Section 58-256 (c)  “Parking and 
Storage of Certain Vehicles” be amended to the following: 

 
Sec. 50-256. – Parking and storage of certain vehicles 
 

(c) Recreational vehicles (as defined in G.S. 20-4.01(32a) except truck campers and 
conversion vehicles), trailers and boats stored on trailers, shall not be parked or stored 
on any predominately residential public right-of-way within the city, or on any unpaved 
portion of a front yard.   

 
SECTION 2.  That all remaining Articles and Sections be renumbered to 

include the newly created Articles and Sections.   
 
 
SECTION 3.  This Ordinance be effective immediately upon adoption. 
 
 

Adopted this 8th day of July 2021 
 
 
        CITY COUNCIL 
        CITY OF CONCORD 
        NORTH CAROLINA 
 
 
ATTEST:      _________________________          

William C. Dusch, Mayor 
______________________________ 
Kim Deason, City Clerk 
         
 
__________________________ 
VaLerie Kolczynski, City Attorney                            
 

27



ROBE RTA CHURCH RD

ROBERTA CHURCH RD

£¤2
9

²
0 1,000500

Feet

Roberta Church Rd
Renaming

City of Concord, NC
Planning & Neighborhood Development Dept

Coordinate System - NC State Plane NAD83

Legend
Address Changes
Roberta Church
Rd
Parcels

Segment to be renamed

George W. Liles Pkwy SW

Stough Rd

Robe

rta
Rd

28



2506

2500

2490

ROBERTA CHURCH RD

£¤2
9

²
0 300150

Feet

Roberta Church Rd
Renaming

City of Concord, NC
Planning & Neighborhood Development Dept

Coordinate System - NC State Plane NAD83

Legend
Address
Changes
Roberta Church
Rd
Parcels
JRNC
Investments LLC
Bootsmead
JDM Cabarrus
Rentals
J&J Tractor
Repair of NC
Inc.
JDM Roberta
LLC

Segment to be renamed

JRNC Investments LLC
Farmington, MI

Bootsmead Leaseco LLC

JDM Cabarrus 
Rentals

House

House

Business

J&J Tractor Repair
of NC Inc.

JDM Roberta LLC

29



Aquamarine – Component 1 

 
Project Description 
 
Aquamarine 2.0 will be a vertically integrated beverage manufacturing campus containing three of the 
most recognizable global brands in the manufacturing and food and beverage industries. This campus-
style complex will have the capacity to not only convert aluminum coil into beverage containers, but 
also fill the containers and package them for distribution throughout the southeast.  
Site: The Grounds at Concord (2321 Concord Pkwy S, Concord, NC 28027) 
 
Project Details 
Ball Metal Beverage Container Corp. (Component 1) 
A state-of-the-art can manufacturing facility, producing various sized aluminum beverage containers. 
This 800k SF four-line beverage packaging facility will be capable of producing 6.4 billion units per year 
once fully operational. This company is a leading supplier of aluminum packaging for beverages, food, 
household products. 

• Investment: $383,874,400 
• Jobs: 220 
• Average wage: $70,555 
• Local 7-Year Grant Estimates:  

o County: $11,345,918  
o City: $7,359,514  

 

30



Project Aquamarine - Component 1

Cabarrus County Economic Development Grant Analysis 
2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029

Total Assessed Value (Real) $97,290,000 $97,290,000 $97,290,000 $97,290,000 $97,290,000 $97,290,000 $97,290,000

Total Assessed Value (Personal) $0 $174,552,840 $242,410,152 $217,543,924 $189,811,852 $163,092,888 $135,360,816

$193,947,600.00 $174,552,840 $159,037,032 $141,581,748 $122,186,988 $104,731,704 $85,336,944

$92,636,800.00 $83,373,120 $75,962,176 $67,624,864 $58,361,184 $50,023,872

County taxes at .74 $719,946 $2,011,637 $2,513,781 $2,329,771 $2,124,554 $1,926,833 $1,721,616

Grant @ 85 % $611,954 $1,709,891 $2,136,714 $1,980,305 $1,805,871 $1,637,808 $1,463,374

Net Taxes to County $107,992 $301,746 $377,067 $349,466 $318,683 $289,025 $258,242

Taxes 13,348,138$       

Grant 11,345,918$       

Net Taxes to County 2,002,221$         

City of Concord Economic Development Grant Analysis 
2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029

Total Assessed Value (Real) $97,290,000 $97,290,000 $97,290,000 $97,290,000 $97,290,000 $97,290,000 $97,290,000

Total Assessed Value (Personal) $0 $174,552,840 $242,410,152 $217,543,924 $189,811,852 $163,092,888 $135,360,816

$193,947,600.00 $174,552,840 $159,037,032 $141,581,748 $122,186,988 $104,731,704 $85,336,944

$92,636,800.00 $83,373,120 $75,962,176 $67,624,864 $58,361,184 $50,023,872

City taxes at .48 $466,992 $1,304,846 $1,630,561 $1,511,203 $1,378,089 $1,249,838 $1,116,724

Grant @ 85 % $396,943 $1,109,119 $1,385,977 $1,284,522 $1,171,376 $1,062,362 $949,215

Net Taxes to City $70,049 $195,727 $244,584 $226,680 $206,713 $187,476 $167,509

Taxes 8,658,252$         

Grant 7,359,514$         

Net Taxes to City 1,298,738$         

GRANT TOTAL: 18,705,432$       

31



Aquamarine – Component 2 

 
Project Description 
 
Aquamarine 2.0 will be a vertically integrated beverage manufacturing campus containing three of the 
most recognizable global brands in the manufacturing and food and beverage industries. This campus-
style complex will have the capacity to not only convert aluminum coil into beverage containers, but 
also fill the containers and package them for distribution throughout the southeast.  
Site: The Grounds at Concord (2321 Concord Pkwy S, Concord, NC 28027) 
 
Project Details 
 
RRB Beverage Operations Inc.  (Component 2) 
A state-of-the-art can filling operation, consisting of 1.4M SF of factory, distribution and office space. 
This will be a joint venture between two long-term partners: JV1 and JV2 - JV1 is a leading producer of 
fruit juices and tea beverages and is also JV2’s main bottler.  JV2 is one of the world’s most recognizable 
brands in the beverage industry. 
 

• Investment: $553,000,000 
• Jobs: 323 
• Average wage: $50,387 
• Local 7-Year Grant Estimates:  

o County: $17,193,212 
o City: $11,152,354 

 
 
 
 
 
 

32



Project Aquamarine - Component 2

Cabarrus County Economic Development Grant Analysis 
2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029

Total Assessed Value (Real) $200,000,000 $200,000,000 $200,000,000 $300,000,000 $300,000,000 $300,000,000 $300,000,000

Total Assessed Value (Personal) $47,700,000 $110,960,000 $145,190,000 $174,140,000 $175,870,000 $152,320,000 $127,240,000

$53,000,000 $47,700,000 $43,460,000 $38,690,000 $33,390,000 $28,620,000 $23,320,000 $17,490,000

$75,000,000 $67,500,000 $61,500,000 $54,750,000 $47,250,000 $40,500,000 $33,000,000

$50,000,000 $45,000,000 $41,000,000 $36,500,000 $31,500,000 $27,000,000

$50,000,000 $45,000,000 $41,000,000 $36,500,000 $31,500,000

$25,000,000 $22,500,000 $20,500,000 $18,250,000

County taxes at .74 $1,832,980 $2,301,104 $2,554,406 $3,508,636 $3,521,438 $3,347,168 $3,161,576

Grant @ 85 % $1,558,033 $1,955,938 $2,171,245 $2,982,341 $2,993,222 $2,845,093 $2,687,340

Net Taxes to County $274,947 $345,166 $383,161 $526,295 $528,216 $502,075 $474,236

Taxes 20,227,308$       

Grant 17,193,212$       

Net Taxes to County 3,034,096$         

City of Concord Economic Development Grant Analysis 
2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029

Total Assessed Value (Real) $200,000,000 $200,000,000 $200,000,000 $300,000,000 $300,000,000 $300,000,000 $300,000,000

Total Assessed Value (Personal) $47,700,000 $110,960,000 $145,190,000 $174,140,000 $175,870,000 $152,320,000 $127,240,000

$53,000,000 $47,700,000 $43,460,000 $38,690,000 $33,390,000 $28,620,000 $23,320,000 $17,490,000

$75,000,000 $67,500,000 $61,500,000 $54,750,000 $47,250,000 $40,500,000 $33,000,000

$50,000,000 $45,000,000 $41,000,000 $36,500,000 $31,500,000 $27,000,000

$50,000,000 $45,000,000 $41,000,000 $36,500,000 $31,500,000

$25,000,000 $22,500,000 $20,500,000 $18,250,000

City taxes at .48 $1,188,960 $1,492,608 $1,656,912 $2,275,872 $2,284,176 $2,171,136 $2,050,752

Grant @ 85 % $1,010,616 $1,268,717 $1,408,375 $1,934,491 $1,941,550 $1,845,466 $1,743,139

Net Taxes to City $178,344 $223,891 $248,537 $341,381 $342,626 $325,670 $307,613

Taxes 13,120,416$       

Grant 11,152,354$       

Net Taxes to City 1,968,062$         

GRANT TOTAL: 28,345,565$       

33



Aquamarine – Component 3 

 
 

Project Description 
 
Aquamarine 2.0 will be a vertically integrated beverage manufacturing campus containing three of the 
most recognizable global brands in the manufacturing and food and beverage industries. This campus-
style complex will have the capacity to not only convert aluminum coil into beverage containers, but 
also fill the containers and package them for distribution throughout the southeast.  
Site: The Grounds at Concord (2321 Concord Pkwy S, Concord, NC 28027) 
 
Project Details 
Red Bull North America, Inc. - Component 3 
An 800k SF supra-regional distribution center. This will be supported by a wholly-owned subsidiary of 
JV2. 
 

• Investment: $140,000,000 
• Jobs: 90 
• Average wage: $50,367 
• Local 7-Year Grant Estimates:  

o County: $4,549,809 
o City: $2,951,227 

34



Project Aquamarine - Component 3

Cabarrus County Economic Development Grant Analysis 
2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029

Total Assessed Value (Real) $30,000,000 $65,000,000 $75,000,000 $75,000,000 $75,000,000 $75,000,000 $75,000,000

Total Assessed Value (Personal) $0 $36,900,000 $55,220,000 $49,610,000 $43,350,000 $37,260,000 $31,000,000

$41,000,000.00 $36,900,000 $33,620,000 $29,930,000 $25,830,000 $22,140,000 $18,040,000

$24,000,000.00 $21,600,000 $19,680,000 $17,520,000 $15,120,000 $12,960,000

County taxes at .74 $222,000 $754,060 $963,628 $922,114 $875,790 $830,724 $784,400

Grant @ 85 % $188,700 $640,951 $819,084 $783,797 $744,422 $706,115 $666,740

Net Taxes to County $33,300 $113,109 $144,544 $138,317 $131,369 $124,609 $117,660

Taxes 5,352,716$         

Grant 4,549,809$         

Net Taxes to County 802,907$             

City of Concord Economic Development Grant Analysis 
2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029

Total Assessed Value (Real) $30,000,000 $65,000,000 $75,000,000 $75,000,000 $75,000,000 $75,000,000 $75,000,000

Total Assessed Value (Personal) $0 $36,900,000 $55,220,000 $49,610,000 $43,350,000 $37,260,000 $31,000,000

$41,000,000.00 $36,900,000 $33,620,000 $29,930,000 $25,830,000 $22,140,000 $18,040,000

$24,000,000.00 $21,600,000 $19,680,000 $17,520,000 $15,120,000 $12,960,000

City taxes at .48 $144,000 $489,120 $625,056 $598,128 $568,080 $538,848 $508,800

Grant @ 85 % $122,400 $415,752 $531,298 $508,409 $482,868 $458,021 $432,480

Net Taxes to City $21,600 $73,368 $93,758 $89,719 $85,212 $80,827 $76,320

Taxes 3,472,032$         

Grant 2,951,227$         

Net Taxes to City 520,805$             

GRANT TOTAL: 7,501,036$         

35



MEETING DATE: 
August 12th 2021 
 
 

BACKGROUND: 
The Planning and Zoning Commission heard the above referenced petition at their July 20th 
meeting and unanimously voted to forward the request to City Council with a 
recommendation that the zoning map be amended from Cabarrus County LDR (Low Density 
Residential) to City of Concord RM-1 (Residential Medium Density) and to amend the 2030 
Land Use Plan from “Rural” to “Suburban Neighborhood.”  
 
The property was annexed on a voluntary basis (ANX-02-21) with an effective date of June 
10, 2021.  At that hearing, the petitioner indicated as part of their annexation request that the 
purpose for annexation was to rezone to RM-1 (Residential Medium Density), which would 
necessitate a Land Use Plan amendment to Suburban Neighborhood, and develop the site 
with single-family detached dwellings.  The RM-1 (Residential Medium Density) zoning 
classification would permit single-family detached dwellings at 3 du/a, with 15,000sf lots, at a 
minimum of 75ft in width.   RM-1 zoning would be compatible with and/or similar to the 
approved lot sizes in the Buffalo Ranch PUD to the east as well as the Bedford Farms PUD 
Development to the west.   If approved, the development would essentially be a small infill 
project and access to the property would be via Heglar Road.   
 
The property has a Future Land Use designation of “Rural” which specifies a density of one 
unit per three acres.   Both the Buffalo Ranch and Bedford Farms developments are designated 
“Rural,” but were approved prior to the adoption of the 2030 Land Use Plan in 2018 and have 
lot sizes/densities that are more similar to those permitted in the “Suburban Neighborhood” 
designation.  The “Rural” designation does not permit RM-1 zoning as a corresponding zoning 
district and therefore a Land Use Plan amendment to “Suburban Neighborhood” would be 
needed to accommodate the proposed zoning. 
 
Because the property was annexed into the City limits, a City zoning designation must be 
applied.  Void of a new City zoning designation the parcel would be unzoned. 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission unanimously adopted the Statement of Consistency, 
listed below, at their July 20th public hearing.  Council may adopt the same statement, modify 
it, or adopt an entirely new Statement of Consistency. 
 

Statement of Consistency 
• The subject property is approximately 3.366 acres and is zoned Cabarrus County Low 

Density Residential (LDR).  
 

36



• The subject property was annexed on June 10th, 2021 and accommodates one single 
family home and an outbuilding.  The home was constructed in 1983.   
 

• The proposed zoning is inconsistent with the 2030 Land Use Plan (LUP) as RM-1 
(Residential Medium Density) is not a corresponding zoning classification to the 
“Rural” land use category. However, a rezoning to RM-1 would allow infill 
development to occur in a similar manner to the adjacent properties.   The rezoning 
would further the 2030 Land Use Plan guidance of sections 1.6 and 4.1 by providing 
infill housing that transitions between the smaller lots within the Buffalo Ranch PUD 
and Heglar Rd.  Should the rezoning to RM-1 be deemed appropriate, the Land Use 
Plan should be modified to Suburban Neighborhood to reflect the proposed zoning 
and use.  

 
• The zoning amendment is reasonable and in the public interest as the proposed zoning 

would allow development of a small infill project which is more consistent with the 
established development pattern along Heglar Road.   The development pattern along 
Heglar Road is more suburban in nature, as opposed to Rural.    
  

 

37



Case Z-12-21 
  1 

 

                                                                                                         Staff Report 
 Planning and Zoning Commission 
 
DATE:    July 20, 2021 
 
REZONING CASE #:  Z-12-21 
 
DESCRIPTION:  Zoning Map Amendment  

  From Cabarrus County LDR (Low Density Residential) to City of 
Concord RM-1 (Residential Medium Density) 

   
APPLICANT/OWNER:  Niblock Homes, LLC 
 
LOCATION: 2183 Heglar Road  
 
 PIN#s:   5549-49-9161 
 
AREA:   +/- 3.366 acres 

 
ZONING: Cabarrus County Low Density Residential (LDR) 
 
PREPARED BY:   Starla Rogers, Planning & Development Manager 

BACKGROUND 
The subject property is located at 2183 Heglar Road, consists of one (1) parcel, and encompasses 
+/- 3.366 acres, which includes one single family home and outbuildings.  Cabarrus County tax 
records indicate that the home was constructed in 1983.   
 
HISTORY 
The property was annexed on a voluntary basis (ANX-02-21) with an effective date of June 10, 
2021.   In accordance with the North Carolina General Statutes, the City has sixty (60) days to 
apply zoning to the property, or the County zoning will expire.   Nibolock Homes, LLC acquired 
the property in May, 2021.    
 

SUMMARY OF REQUEST 
The petitioner initially proposed to assemble the property with the adjacent Buffalo Ranch Planned 
Unit Development (PUD) to the east, but logistical issues have led to a stand-alone rezoning 
proposal.   The applicant proposes RM-1 (Residential Medium Density) zoning, which would 
permit single-family detached dwellings at 3 du/a, with 15,000sf lots, at a minimum of 75ft in 
width.   RM-1 zoning would be compatible with and/or similar to the approved lot sizes in the 
Buffalo Ranch PUD to the east as well as the Bedford Farms PUD Development to the west.   If 
approved, the development would essentially be a small infill project, and access to the property 
would be via individual driveways on Heglar Road.   
 

38



Case Z-12-21 
  2 

The property has a Future Land Use designation of “Rural” which specifies a density of one unit 
per three acres.   Both the Buffalo Ranch and Bedford Farms developments are designated “Rural,” 
but were approved prior to the adoption of the 2030 Land Use Plan in 2018 and have lot 
sizes/densities that are more similar to those permitted in the “Suburban Neighborhood” 
designation.  The “Rural” designation does not permit RM-1 zoning as a corresponding zoning 
district and therefore a Land Use Plan amendment to “Suburban Neighborhood” would be needed 
to accommodate the proposed zoning.  It should be noted that Council was aware of the potential 
need for a Land Use Plan amendment when the applicant requested annexation. 
 
Properties surrounding the subject parcel are zoned and developed with a variety of zoning districts 
and predominately residential uses.   Adjacent properties on all sides are zoned either Cabarrus 
County LDR or PUD (Buffalo Ranch and Bedford Farms).   These properties are vacant and single 
family residential.   RM-2 zoning is present to the west on the Old Farm subdivision.  
Approximately 13 acres to the north, on the west side of Heglar Road, is zoned Residential Estate 
(RE) and is under development by the City as an electric substation.   
 

 
COMPLIANCE WITH 2030 LAND USE PLAN 
 
The 2030 Land Use Plan (LUP) designates the subject property as “Rural.” It should be noted that 
the development pattern of the adjacent Bedford Farms and Buffalo Ranch PUDs are not consistent 
with the Rural designation as they were approved prior to the adoption of the 2030 Land Use Plan 
in 2018.  The subject property lies within an area between two PUD projects which were approved 
with higher density than the “Rural” land use designation would permit.  The RM-1 zoning 
classification is not considered a corresponding zoning classification to the “Rural” Land Use 
Category and therefore, approval of a rezoning would need to be recommended to City Council for 
consideration of both the zoning and to amend the Land Use Plan to “Suburban Neighborhood” to 
allow consideration of RM-1 zoning to permit the type of development consistent with the 
surrounding properties.  Staff has no objection to the rezoning to RM-1 or the modification to the 
Land Use Plan. 
 
Rural Land Use Category Details: 
The intent of the Rural (R) Future Land Use category is to identify a variety of land use types that 
are representative of working agricultural uses as well as a variety of residential types including, 

Existing Zoning and Land Uses (Subject Parcel) 
Current 
Zoning of 
Subject 
Property 

Zoning Within 500 Feet 
Land Uses(s) 

of Subject 
Property 

Land Uses within 500 Feet 

Cabarrus 
County 
LDR (Low 
Density 
Residential)  

North 
PUD, RE and 
County LDR 

Single 
Family 

Residential 

North 
Single family residential, 

vacant and planned electric 
substation 

South PUD and County 
LDR South Single family residential 

and vacant 
East PUD East Vacant 

West PUD and County 
LDR West Single family residential 

39



Case Z-12-21 
  3 

farmhouses, to large acreage rural family dwellings, to ecologically-minded “conservation 
subdivisions” which are designed to preserve open landscape, and traditional buildings, often with 
a mixture of residential and agricultural/rural-supported commercial uses.   
 

Rural Land Use Plan detail and guidance includes: 
5.2 (General Guidance)  

Fostering infill and redevelopment.  A key element of the city’s character is the combination of 
traditional neighborhood development patterns and newer, more suburban development 
patterns.   Where compatible, infill and redevelopment should be targeted in key areas that 
have the infrastructure and community facilities in place to absorb the additional intensity.  
Infill is most desirable within identified Mixed Use Activity Centers, Village Centers, and 
Urban Neighborhoods.   

Ensuring compatibility between neighboring land uses.   As the diversity of uses and housing 
types increases, the potential for incompatibility increases.   To maintain compatibility between 
adjacent uses, the City sill need, to ensure that there are seamless transitions between uses 
which will require a combination of separating certain uses, buffering between uses, and 
addressing the design, scale, height, orientation and intensity of development as appropriate 
to the land use transition and the site.   

 Policy Guidance for Objective 1.2: 

 Future Land Use Map Amendments: Prior to amending the Future Land Use Map, make 
findings that the proposed amendment will: 

-  Be consistent with the Plan goals and objectives; 

-  Be compatible with future land uses for surrounding areas; 

-  Not create a shortage of any category of residential or non-residential land; and 

-  Enhance the overall quality of life in the community. 
  
Objective 1.3: Ensure that the Future Land Use Map allows sufficient development opportunities 

to meet existing and projected needs for residential, commercial, industrial and 
other land uses.  

 

Policy Guidance for Objective 1.4:  
  

 Adjacent Development: Ensure that adjacent development and street networks are designed 
to safely and compatibly accommodate planned industrial uses and resulting traffic. 

 Policy Guidance for Objective 1.6: 

· Infill Housing:  Promote a variety of compatible infill housing types in areas with access to 
adequate facilities and services.  

 Goal 4:  Ensure compatibility between neighboring land uses. 
Objective 4.1: Use a combination of land use transitions, intensity gradients, buffering and 

design to ensure that land use transitions are compatible. 

40



Case Z-12-21 
4 

Objective 4.2: Ensure that industrial and commercial developments are designed to limit 
encroachment of incompatible traffic, noise, odors and lighting into nearby 
residential areas.   

 Policy Guidance for Objectives 4.1 to 4.3: 

 Land Use and Intensity Transitions:  Zoning use and site development standards should
promote a gradient in the type and intensity of uses. For instance, higher density
residential development can provide a compatible transition between medium-density 
residences and neighborhood commercial centers.  

 Buffers:  Buffers should be used to screen uses and activities that may detract from the
enjoyment of adjacent land uses. Where large buffers are not necessary, the landscape
design should soften land use transitions. 

 SUGGESTED STATEMENT OF CONSISTENCY 

• The subject property is approximately 3.366 acres and is zoned Cabarrus County Low 
Density Residential (LDR).

• The subject property was annexed on June 10th, 2021 and accommodates one single family 
home and outbuildings.  The home was constructed in 1983.

• The proposed zoning is inconsistent with the 2030 Land Use Plan (LUP) as RM-1 
(Residential Medium Density) is not a corresponding zoning classification to the “Rural” 
land use category. However, a rezoning to RM-1 would allow infill development to occur 
in a similar manner to the adjacent properties.   The rezoning would further the 2030 Land 
Use Plan guidance of sections 1.6 and 4.1 by providing infill housing that transitions 
between the smaller lots within the Buffalo Ranch PUD and Heglar Rd.  Should the 
rezoning to RM-1 be deemed appropriate, the Land Use Plan should be modified to 
Suburban Neighborhood to reflect the proposed zoning and use.

• The zoning amendment is reasonable and in the public interest as the proposed zoning 
would allow development of a small infill project which is more consistent with the 
established development pattern along Heglar Road.   The development pattern along 
Heglar Road is more suburban in nature, as opposed to Rural. 

SUGGESTED RECOMMENDATION AND CONDITIONS 
The staff finds the zoning map amendment inconsistent 2030 Land Use Plan.  However, staff has 
no objections to the petition and should the Planning and Zoning Commission find the rezoning to 
be appropriate, the Commission should forward the rezoning to City Council and recommend 
amending the Land Use Plan to “Suburban Neighborhood.”  

PROCEDURAL CONSIDERATIONS 
This particular case is a rezoning, which under the CDO, is “legislative” in nature.  Legislative 
hearings DO NOT require the swearing or affirming of witnesses prior to testimony at the public 
hearing.  As the request is not a “Conditional District” no conditions may be applied. 

41



42



43



44



HE
GL

AR
 R

D

OLD FARM RD SE

FAIRPORT DR SE

U S H W Y  29

R O G E R S  LA K E  R D

OA
KW

OO
D  A

V E

W
IN

E
C

O
F

F
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
R

D

R O B E R TA  R D

M C G I LL  AV E

LI
N

C
O

L
N

 S
T

WA R R E N  C  C O LE M A N  B L V D

N C  3

BR A NC
HV IEW

D
R

S
E

W E D D I N G T O N R D

PI T T S  S C H O O L R D

ZI O N  C H U R C H  R D

MO R E H E A D  R D

C O N C O R D  P K WY  S

C H U R C H  ST  N

WI L SH I R E  A VE

G O LD
 H I L

L R
D

O
LD

 C
H

A
R

L
O

T
TE

 R
D

D A LE EA R NH A
R D

T
B LV

D

C AB
A R R U S  A

VE

P
E

N N
I N

G
E

R
R

D

O LD  A I R P O R T R D

IN
T

E
R

N
A

TI
O

N
AL

 D
R

R
O

C
K

Y
 R

I V
E

R
 R

D

N
C

 3

BU
RR

A
G

E
R

D

N E

U N IO
N  S T  S

FL
O

W
E

S
ST

OR
E

R
D

C
O

N
C

O
R

D
 P

A
R

KW
A

Y
 N

MA
LL

 D
R  N

E

C O PP E R
FI E

L D
B L V

D
N

E

C EN T E R G R O V E R
D

C
R

E
S

T
M

O
N

T
D

R

BR U T O N  S M I T H  B LV D

PI T T S  S C H O
O L R D

TR I N I T Y C H U R C
H  R D

BO
Y S C O U T  C A MP  R D

R O C K  H IL L C H U R C H  R D

BR
O OK

W

O O
D

AV
E

N C  7 3

P O PL A R T E N
T R D

GE OR G E  W L I LE S  P K WY  N W

R OB E

R TA
C

H
U

R C
H

R
D

N C  H W Y  49

O
LD

 C
H

A
R

L
O

T
TE

 R
D

C O R B A N   A V E

NC HWY 49 S

US
 H

W
Y 

60
1 S

GOLD HILL RD
DAVIDSON HWY

NC HWY 73 E

NC HWY 49 N

UNION ST S

S MAIN ST

MIAMI CHURCH RD

PHARR MILL RD

STOUGH RD

HESS RD

EVA DR NW

ORPHANAGE RD

PENNINGER RD

SIMPLICITY RD

TILLEY RD

STALLINGS RD

MEX
ICO RD

HUDSON DR

Source: City of Concord
Planning Department

Z-12-21
Aerial

Proposed Zoning Amendment
Cabarrus County LDR

(Low Density Resdential)
to Concord RM-1 

(Residential Medium Density)

These maps and products are designed for general
reference only and data contained herein is subject 
to change. The City Of Concord, it's employees or 
agents make no warranty of merchantability or fitness 
for any purpose, expressed or implied, and assume no 
legal responsibility for the information contained therein. 
Data used is from multiple sources with various scales 
and accuracy. Additional research such as field surveys 
may be necessary to determine actual conditions.

Disclaimer

² 0 15075
Feet

Subject Property
Parcels
City of Concord

2183 Heglar Rd
PIN: 5549-49-9161

Subject
Property

45



PUD
PUD

RE

RM-2

County LDR

County CR

HE
GL

AR
 R

D

OLD FARM RD SE

NC HWY 49 N

FAIRPORT DR SE

LANGLEY DR SE

FO
X R

UN
 C

IR
 SE

FOX
RUN

CIR
SE

U S H W Y  29

R O G E R S  LA K E  R D

OA
KW

OO
D  A

V E

W
IN

E
C

O
F

F
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
R

D

R O B E R TA  R D

M C G I LL  AV E

LI
N

C
O

L
N

 S
T

WA R R E N  C  C O LE M A N  B L V D

N C  3

BR A NC
HV IEW

D
R

S
E

W E D D I N G T O N R D

PI T T S  S C H O O L R D

ZI O N  C H U R C H  R D

MO R E H E A D  R D

C O N C O R D  P K WY  S

C H U R C H  ST  N

WI L SH I R E  A VE

G O LD
 H I L

L R
D

O
LD

 C
H

A
R

L
O

T
TE

 R
D

D A LE EA R NH A
R D

T
B LV

D

C AB
A R R U S  A

VE

P
E

N N
I N

G
E

R
R

D

O LD  A I R P O R T R D

IN
T

E
R

N
A

TI
O

N
AL

 D
R

R
O

C
K

Y
 R

I V
E

R
 R

D

N
C

 3

BU
RR

A
G

E
R

D

N E

U N IO
N  S T  S

FL
O

W
E

S
ST

OR
E

R
D

C
O

N
C

O
R

D
 P

A
R

KW
A

Y
 N

MA
LL

 D
R  N

E

C O PP E R
FI E

L D
B L V

D
N

E

C EN T E R G R O V E R
D

C
R

E
S

T
M

O
N

T
D

R

BR U T O N  S M I T H  B LV D

PI T T S  S C H O
O L R D

TR I N I T Y C H U R C
H  R D

BO
Y S C O U T  C A MP  R D

R O C K  H IL L C H U R C H  R D

BR
O OK

W

O O
D

AV
E

N C  7 3

P O PL A R T E N
T R D

GE OR G E  W L I LE S  P K WY  N W

R OB E

R TA
C

H
U

R C
H

R
D

N C  H W Y  49

O
LD

 C
H

A
R

L
O

T
TE

 R
D

C O R B A N   A V E

NC HWY 49 S

US
 H

W
Y 

60
1 S

GOLD HILL RD
DAVIDSON HWY

NC HWY 73 E

NC HWY 49 N

UNION ST S

S MAIN ST

MIAMI CHURCH RD

PHARR MILL RD

STOUGH RD

HESS RD

EVA DR NW

ORPHANAGE RD

PENNINGER RD

SIMPLICITY RD

TILLEY RD

STALLINGS RD

MEX
ICO RD

HUDSON DR

Source: City of Concord
Planning Department

Z-12-21
Zoning Map

Proposed Zoning Amendment
Cabarrus County LDR

(Low Density Resdential)
to Concord RM-1 

(Residential Medium Density)

These maps and products are designed for general
reference only and data contained herein is subject 
to change. The City Of Concord, it's employees or 
agents make no warranty of merchantability or fitness 
for any purpose, expressed or implied, and assume no 
legal responsibility for the information contained therein. 
Data used is from multiple sources with various scales 
and accuracy. Additional research such as field surveys 
may be necessary to determine actual conditions.

Disclaimer

² 0 250125
Feet

Subject Property
Parcels
City of Concord

Zoning
PUD
RE
RM-2

County Zoning
CR
LDR

2183 Heglar Rd
PIN: 5549-49-9161

Subject
Property

46



Rural

Village Center

HE
GL

AR
 R

D

OLD FARM RD SE

NC HWY 49 N

FAIRPORT DR SE

LANGLEY DR SE

FO
X R

UN
 C

IR
 SE

FOX
RUN

CIR
SE

U S H W Y  29

R O G E R S  LA K E  R D

OA
KW

OO
D  A

V E

W
IN

E
C

O
F

F
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
R

D

R O B E R TA  R D

M C G I LL  AV E

LI
N

C
O

L
N

 S
T

WA R R E N  C  C O LE M A N  B L V D

N C  3

BR A NC
HV IEW

D
R

S
E

W E D D I N G T O N R D

PI T T S  S C H O O L R D

ZI O N  C H U R C H  R D

MO R E H E A D  R D

C O N C O R D  P K WY  S

C H U R C H  ST  N

WI L SH I R E  A VE

G O LD
 H I L

L R
D

O
LD

 C
H

A
R

L
O

T
TE

 R
D

D A LE EA R NH A
R D

T
B LV

D

C AB
A R R U S  A

VE

P
E

N N
I N

G
E

R
R

D

O LD  A I R P O R T R D

IN
T

E
R

N
A

TI
O

N
AL

 D
R

R
O

C
K

Y
 R

I V
E

R
 R

D

N
C

 3

BU
RR

A
G

E
R

D

N E

U N IO
N  S T  S

FL
O

W
E

S
ST

OR
E

R
D

C
O

N
C

O
R

D
 P

A
R

KW
A

Y
 N

MA
LL

 D
R  N

E

C O PP E R
FI E

L D
B L V

D
N

E

C EN T E R G R O V E R
D

C
R

E
S

T
M

O
N

T
D

R

BR U T O N  S M I T H  B LV D

PI T T S  S C H O
O L R D

TR I N I T Y C H U R C
H  R D

BO
Y S C O U T  C A MP  R D

R O C K  H IL L C H U R C H  R D

BR
O OK

W

O O
D

AV
E

N C  7 3

P O PL A R T E N
T R D

GE OR G E  W L I LE S  P K WY  N W

R OB E

R TA
C

H
U

R C
H

R
D

N C  H W Y  49

O
LD

 C
H

A
R

L
O

T
TE

 R
D

C O R B A N   A V E

NC HWY 49 S

US
 H

W
Y 

60
1 S

GOLD HILL RD
DAVIDSON HWY

NC HWY 73 E

NC HWY 49 N

UNION ST S

S MAIN ST

MIAMI CHURCH RD

PHARR MILL RD

STOUGH RD

HESS RD

EVA DR NW

ORPHANAGE RD

PENNINGER RD

SIMPLICITY RD

TILLEY RD

STALLINGS RD

MEX
ICO RD

HUDSON DR

Source: City of Concord
Planning Department

Z-12-21
Land Use Plan

Proposed Zoning Amendment
Cabarrus County LDR

(Low Density Resdential)
to Concord RM-1 

(Residential Medium Density)

These maps and products are designed for general
reference only and data contained herein is subject 
to change. The City Of Concord, it's employees or 
agents make no warranty of merchantability or fitness 
for any purpose, expressed or implied, and assume no 
legal responsibility for the information contained therein. 
Data used is from multiple sources with various scales 
and accuracy. Additional research such as field surveys 
may be necessary to determine actual conditions.

Disclaimer

² 0 250125
Feet

Subject Property
Parcels
City of Concord

Land Use Plan
Village Center
Rural

2183 Heglar Rd
PIN: 5549-49-9161

Subject
Property

47



MEETING DATE: 
August 12, 2021 
 

BACKGROUND: 
The Planning and Zoning Commission heard the above referenced petition at their July 20th, 
2021 public hearing and acted to approve the request with conditions.  An appeal was 
submitted on July 28th, by Mrs. and Mr. Carolyn and Pete Barnhardt and shall now be 
forwarded to City Council for reconsideration of the rezoning request.  Below is the approved 
Statement of Consistency and three conditions of approval. The full staff report presented to 
the Planning and Zoning Commission is attached to provide details on the subject request.  
 

Statement of Consistency Approved by Planning and Zoning: 
• The subject property is approximately 0.64 Acres +/- and is zoned B-1 

(Neighborhood Commercial) and RC (Residential Compact). 
 

• The subject property was incorporated into the City Limits sometime between 1882 
and 1932 and consists of one (1) parcel of record (5621-30-8773) with a single-family 
detached house and a portion of a parcel (5621-30-9561) with a parking lot in the 
portion of the parcel to be developed. 

• The proposed RC-CD (Residential Compact Conditional District) zoning 
classification is considered corresponding to the 2030 Land Use Plan’s Civic 
Institutional and Urban Neighborhood land use categories.  Single-family attached 
dwellings are also an option for infill development within the urban neighborhood 
future land use category and would further Land Use Plan Objective 1.6 to provide a 
mix and range of housing options through infill development. The townhomes would 
be connected by sidewalk to civic uses, medical offices, and neighborhood businesses 
along McGill Ave. NW. 
 

• The zoning amendment is reasonable and in the public interest because it 
demonstrates compatibility with the 2030 Land Use Plan as it relates to infill 
development, ensuring compatibility between neighboring land uses through 
transitions in land use intensity and buffers, and providing a walkable community 
between the proposed neighborhood and nearby commercial and civic uses.   

 
 

Approved Conditions Approved by Planning and Zoning: 
1. Compliance with the “212 McGill Avenue Concord, NC Preliminary Site Plan” Sheet 

PP-1 dated 1-26-21 and last revised 7-12-21, limiting the development to 8 single-
family attached dwellings at 12.5 dwelling units per acre. 
 

2. Compliance with all minimum requirements relative to landscaping, stormwater, 
transportation and fire protection 
 

3. Technical site review and approval plan shall be required. 
 
 

48



Planning & Neighborhood Development 
35 Cabarrus Ave. West    P. O. Box 308    Concord, NC  28025 

Phone (704) 920-5152    Fax (704) 786-1212  www.concordnc.gov 

Application to  
Appeal Planning and Zoning Commission Decision 

to the City Council 

In Accordance with CDO (Concord Development Ordinance) Section 3.2.4.B: 
“Any person aggrieved by the decision of the Planning and Zoning Commission shall 
have the right to appeal the action to the City Council. The appeal shall be filed by giving 
notice in writing to the Administrator as designated by the City Manager within fifteen 
(15) days of the decision of the Planning and Zoning Commission. The City Council shall
place the item on the next available City Council agenda”

1. Appellant Name:  _____________________________________________________________________
2. Appellant Address: ___________________________________________________________________

City:  ____________________ State:  _______ Zip Code:  __________
3. Appellant Telephone: ________________________
4. Location of Subject Property:

(a) Street Address or P.I.Ns:
___________________________________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________________

5. Project Case Number (Example: Z-00-00): _________________________________________________
6. Date of Planning and Zoning Commission Hearing:  _________________________________________
7. Description of Appeal (May Be Submitted As An Attachment):
______________________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________________

  Signature of Appellant(s):   Date: 

________________________________________________  ____________________________ 

.

49



Page | 1 
 

 
 Staff Report 

______________________________________________        Planning and Zoning Commission 

 

 

DATE:                                                           July 20th, 2021 

 

DESCRIPTION:                                              Zoning Map Amendment from City of Concord B-1 

(Neighborhood Commercial) and RC (Residential 

Compact) to RC-CD (Residential Compact 

Conditional District) 

 

CASE NUMBER:               Z (CD)-08-21          

 

APPLICANTS Lasharee Rogers, Upper Room Outreach Center 

 

LOCATION:   P/O 212 McGill Ave. NW, 193 Freeze Ave NW 

 

PARCEL PIN: PINs P/O 5621-30-9561, 5621-30-8773 

 

AREA:     +/- 0.64 acres 

 
ZONING:                                                      Concord B-1 (Neighborhood Commercial) and RC 

(Residential Compact) 

        

REPORT PREPARED BY:  Katherine Godwin, Senior Planner 

 

BACKGROUND 

The subject property is located on the southwestern side of the intersection of Freeze Ave NW and 

St. James St. NW and is +/- 0.64 acres.  It consists of a portion of a parcel (PIN 5621-30-9561, 212 

McGill Ave. NW) which contains a church, outreach center, and daycare center. The portion of the 

parcel where rezoning is being requested is currently a parking lot. The parcel located at 193 Freeze 

Ave NW (PIN 5621-30-8773) contains a single-family detached house. The parking lot and house 

would be demolished to construct eight (8) townhomes, a parking lot, and passive common open 

space. 

 

HISTORY 

Historic city limit maps show that the subject property was annexed into the City sometime in 

between 1882 and 1932. 

 

On April 14, 2021 an application was filed to rezone the two parcels from City of Concord B-1 

(Neighborhood Commercial) and RC (Residential Compact) to RC-CD (Residential Compact 

Conditional District) in order to construct (8) townhomes, a parking lot, and passive common 

open space. The case was advertised for the June 15, 2021 meeting of the Planning and Zoning 

Commission, but tabled until July 20th.  

 

 

 

50



Page | 2 
 

 

 

SUMMARY OF REQUEST 

The applicant has requested to rezone the subject property from City of Concord B-1 

(Neighborhood Commercial) and RC (Residential Compact) to RC-CD (Residential Compact 

Conditional District) in order to construct (8) townhomes, a parking lot, and passive common open 

space. Under the current zoning classification, the property zoned RC (+/- 0.142 acres) could have 

been developed, by right, with up to 2 townhomes at a density of up to 15 dwelling units per acre 

(DUA) and the residential uses could have been single family detached, single family attached, 

multifamily/apartment, duplex, triplex, or group living in the form of congregate care senior 

housing, group home, or a family care home. However, the larger portion of the subject property 

(+/- 0.498) is zoned B-1 (Neighborhood Commercial) and only multifamily, congregate care senior 

housing, a group home, a homeless shelter, or social service institution would have been permitted 

in terms of housing. Therefore, the applicant has requested to combine the parcels and rezone to 

RC-CD (Residential Compact Conditional District) in order to build the townhomes. As a 

conditional district the applicant has submitted conditions, and an associated site plan, to limit the 

uses and design of the site. 

 

According to the site plan, submitted as a condition of rezoning, the proposal would be limited to 

eight (8) new townhome units (approximately 1,366 SF each), divided between two (2) structures. 

The overall density of the project would be 12.5 DUA. Parking for the townhomes would come in 

the form of a shared parking lot accessed from Freeze Ave NW which meets parking requirements 

for the development. An additional shared parking lot accessible from St. James St. NW with 14 

parking spaces could be used for visitor parking, although this is not part of the rezoning.  

 

The front setback is 20’ from the front property line and a concrete walkway would connect each 

townhome entrance to the public sidewalk in front of each unit and the sidewalk would connect 

into the parking lot. The sidewalk would be back of curb and the planting strip would be within the 

front yard. A proposed 5’ Public Utility Easement is shown along the perimeter of the parcel behind 

the sidewalk and along the adjacent parking lot and parcels to the south and west. 

 

Required open space for the RC zoning district is a minimum of 12% or 0.0768 acres. Under the 

current conditional district proposal, the applicant has provided for a minimum of 0.31 acres in the 

form of passive greenspace behind the townhomes. 

 

In addition to the open space, the site plan provides for a 15’ Class B buffer along the southern 

property line of the development and an 8’ Class B buffer along the western property line. 

 

The site plan has been reviewed by all applicable City departments and no outstanding issues have 

been left unresolved. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

51



Page | 3 
 

Existing Zoning and Land Uses 

Zoning of 

Subject 

Property 

Zoning Within 500 Feet 

Land 

Uses(s) of 

Subject 

Property 

Land Uses Within 500 Feet 

B-1 

(Neighborhood 

Commercial) 

and RC 

(Residential 

Compact)  

North 
RV (Residential 

Village) 

Single 

Family 

Detached, 

Parking Lot 

North 
Single Family 

Detached, Duplexes 

East B-1 

(Neighborhood 

Business), RC 

(Residential 

Compact) 

East 

Medical Office, 

Single Family 

Detached 

South RC (Residential 

Compact) 
South 

Single Family 

Detached 

West B-1 

(Neighborhood 

Business), RC 

(Residential 

Compact) 

West 
Single Family 

Detached, Businesses 

 

COMPLIANCE WITH 2030 LAND USE PLAN 

 

The 2030 LUP designates the subject property as a “Civic Institutional” for 212 McGill and 

“Urban Neighborhood” for 193 Freeze Ave. NW for which the RC (Residential Compact) and 

conditional district variations are considered corresponding zoning districts to the land use 

category. 

 

From the 2030 Land Use Plan- “Civic/Institutional” (CI) 

Uses in this future land use category include public facilities, public and private schools, places 

of worship, cemeteries and other community gathering facilities. 

 

From the 2030 Land Use Plan- “Urban Neighborhood” (UN) 

The Urban Neighborhood (UN) Future Land Use category includes a mix of moderate- to high-

density housing options. These neighborhoods are relatively compact, and may contain one or 

more of the following housing types: small lot, single family detached, townhomes, 

condominiums, or apartments. The design and scale of development in an urban neighborhood 

encourages active living with a complete and comprehensive network of walkable streets. Cul-de-

sacs are restricted to areas where topography, environment, or existing development makes other 

connections prohibitive. Lots at intersections of collector and arterial streets within or at the 

edges of urban neighborhoods may support neighborhood- and community-serving, pedestrian-

oriented commercial or service uses such as coffee shops, cafes, beauty salons and light retail. 

Drive-through uses may be appropriate if designed and located so they access side streets and do 

not compromise pedestrian safety. Non-residential and multi-family uses are typically developed 

with minimal street setbacks in the urban neighborhood future land use category. 

 

The following goals, objectives and policy guidance relate to the proposed zoning amendment. 

 

52



Page | 4 
 

Goal 1: Maintain a sustainable balance of residential, commercial, and industrial land 

uses. 

 

Objective 1.6: Provide a diverse mix and range of housing options throughout the City that will 

accommodate the current and future needs of the citizens of Concord. 

 

• Infill Housing:  Promote a variety of compatible infill housing types in areas 

with access to adequate facilities and services.  

• Housing Balance:  Ensure that zoning allows for a mix of housing types at a 

variety of prices to meet the demands of existing and future residents.  

• Mixed-Density Housing:  Foster a compatible mix of higher density housing 

types at different densities within mixed-use activity centers and village 

centers.  

  
Goal 4:  Ensure compatibility between neighboring land uses 

 

Objective 4.1:  Use a combination of land use transitions, intensity gradients, buffering, and 

design to ensure that land use transitions are compatible. 

 

Policy Guidance for Objectives 4.1 to 4.3: 

 

• Land Use and Intensity Transitions:  Zoning use and site development 

standards should promote a gradient in the type and intensity of uses.  For 

instance, higher density residential development can provide a compatible 

transition between medium-density residences and neighborhood commercial 

centers. 

• Buffers:  Buffers should be used to screen uses and activities that may detract 

from the enjoyment of adjacent land uses.  Where large buffers are not 

necessary, the landscape design should soften land use transitions; 

 

• Building and Site Design Standards:  Where land use transitions are necessary 

to support a walkable mix of uses or housing types, a variety of development 

standards should ensure that the location, scale, height and orientation of 

buildings and site improvements provide for compatible transitions.  

 

SUGGESTED STATEMENT OF CONSISTENCY 

 

• The subject property is approximately 0.64 Acres +/- and is zoned B-1 (Neighborhood 

Commercial) and RC (Residential Compact). 

 

• The subject property was incorporated into the City Limits sometime between 1882 and 

1932 and consists of one (1) parcel of record (5621-30-8773) with a single-family 

detached house and a portion of a parcel (5621-30-9561) with a parking lot in the portion 

of the parcel to be developed. 

 

53



Page | 5 
 

• The proposed RC-CD (Residential Compact Conditional District) zoning classification is 

considered corresponding to the 2030 Land Use Plan’s Civic Institutional and Urban 

Neighborhood land use categories.  Single-family attached dwellings are also an option for 

infill development within the urban neighborhood future land use category and would 

further Land Use Plan Objective 1.6 to provide a mix and range of housing options through 

infill development. The townhomes would be connected by sidewalk to civic uses, medical 

offices, and neighborhood businesses along McGill Ave. NW. 

 

• The zoning amendment is reasonable and in the public interest because it demonstrates 

compatibility with the 2030 Land Use Plan as it relates to infill development, ensuring 

compatibility between neighboring land uses through transitions in land use intensity and 

buffers, and providing a walkable community between the proposed neighborhood and 

nearby commercial and civic uses.   

 

SUGGESTED RECOMMENDATION AND CONDITIONS  

The staff finds the request consistent with the 2030 Land Use Plan.  The plan also meets the 

requirements of the Concord Development Ordinance.  Because this petition is a parallel 

conditional district request, the Commission, should they decide to approve the request, may, 

according to Section 3.2.8.E of the CDO, suggest “reasonable additional conditions or augment 

those already provided with the petition, but only those conditions mutually agreed upon by 

the petitioner and the Commission or Council may be incorporated into the approval.  Any 

such condition should relate to the relationship of the proposed use to surrounding property, 

proposed support facilities such as parking areas and driveways, pedestrian and vehicular 

circulation systems, screening and buffer areas, the timing of development, street and right-

of-way improvements, water and sewer improvements, storm water drainage, the provision 

of open space and other matters that the Commission or Council may find appropriate.”   

 

In the event that the Commission approve the petition, staff recommends the following conditions: 

1. Compliance with the “212 McGill Avenue Concord, NC Preliminary Site Plan” Sheet PP-

1 dated 1-26-21 and last revised 7-12-21, limiting the development to 8 single-family 

attached dwellings at 12.5 dwelling units per acre. 

2. Compliance with all minimum requirements relative to landscaping, stormwater, 

transportation and fire protection 

3. Technical site review and approval plan shall be required. 

 

PROCEDURAL CONSIDERATIONS 

This particular case is a rezoning to a conditional district, which under the CDO, is “legislative” in 

nature.  Legislative hearings DO NOT require the swearing or affirming of witnesses prior to 

testimony at the public hearing. 

54



55

sullivank
Text Box
193 Freeze Ave NW and 212 McGill Ave NW, Concord, NC 28025



56



57



58



32.7'

74.3'

28.1'

20.1'

74.1'

20.1'

74.1'

20.1'

27.1'

74.1'

27.1'

74.2'

74.2'

27
.1

'

74.2'

27
.1

'

20
.1

'

20
.1

'

74.2'

20
.1

'

20
.1

'

74.2'

35
.1

'

74.2'

35
.1

'

24.3'

15.0'

12.3'

48.4'

29
.4

'

20.0'

91.0'

20.1'

97
.0

'

12.2'

5.1'

SHEET

Sc
al

e

D
ES

IG
N

ED
 B

Y
C

H
EC

KE
D

 B
Y

JO
B 

N
U

M
BE

R

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y

D
AT

E

N
O

.
D

AT
E

BY
IS

SU
E

AS
 S

H
O

W
N

1-
26

-2
02

1
-KE

W
KE

W
KE

W

PP-1M
AG

N
ET

IC

LO
C

AT
IO

N
:

PR
EP

AR
ED

 F
O

R
:

21
2 

M
cG

IL
L 

AV
EN

U
E

C
O

N
C

O
R

D
, N

C
PR

EL
IM

IN
AR

Y 
SI

TE
 P

LA
N

WILLIAMS LAND DESIGN &
DEVELOPMENT, LLC
10728 ALVARADO WAY
CHARLOTTE, NC 28277

TEL: 704-858-7811
E: kwdesign40@gmail.com

www.williamslanddesign.com

ENGINEERING - PLLC
8331 McClure Circle

Charlotte, North Carolina 28216
(803) 431-6940 ~ NC FIRM# P-1690

CDM+R

SEAL:

PROPOSED PARCEL AREA:

SITE DATA

FRONT SETBACK: 20
REAR SETBACK: 5'
SIDE SETBACK: 7'

REQUIRED SETBACKS:

PROPOSED IMPERVIOUS AREA

PROPOSED BUILDINGS:

PROPOSED PARKING: PARKING REQUIRED 1.5 SPACES PER UNIT

2-STORY 1,366 SF PER UNIT
(SEE PRELIMINARY FLOOR PLANS)

N
O

.
D

AT
E

BY
IS

SU
E

VICINITY MAP
NOT TO SCALE

M
AG

N
ET

IC

PROPOSED STORM SYSTEM:

PROPOSED WATER SYSTEM:

PUBLIC (CITY OF CONCORD)

PROPOSED SEWER SYSTEM:

PUBLIC (CITY OF CONCORD)

PROPOSED POWER SYSTEM:

PUBLIC (CITY OF CONCORD)

B-1 (NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL)

±13,760.09 SF (52% WITHIN BOUNDARY)

 ±29,649.07 SF (0.68 AC)

U
PP

ER
 R

O
O

M
O

U
TR

EA
C

H
 IN

TE
R

N
AT

IO
N

AL
C

O
N

C
O

R
D

, N
C

EXISTING ZONING:

PUBLIC (CITY OF CONCORD)

1
3-

2-
20

21
KE

W
AD

D
R

ES
SE

D
 1

ST
 R

O
U

N
D

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
EN

TS

702

ST. JAM
ES STR

EET N
W

20' FR
O

N
T SETBAC

K

20' FRONT SETBACK

8' CLASS "A"  SIDE BUFFER

15' CLASS "B" SIDE BUFFER
15' CLASS "B" REAR BUFFER

CABARRUS COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER /
UPPER ROOM KIDS CDC
PID: 5621-30-9561-0000

70
0

69
8

698

696

FREEZE AVENUE NW

PID: 5621-30-8773-0000

PID: 5621-30-8627-0000

SITE

NOTES:
1. THE BOUNDARY AND EXISTING TOPOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SHOWN WAS OBTAINED FROM

CABARRUS COUNTY GIS DATA SETS.

2. BUILDING FOOTPRINTS ARE PRELIMINARY. THE PROPOSED BUILDINGS ARE INTENDED TO BE
TWO STORY WITH AN APPROXIMATE TOTAL OF 1,366 SF PER TOWNHOME UNIT. SEE
PRELIMINARY ARCHITECTURAL PLANS PROVIDED BY MOORE ARCHITECTS.

3. REAR PATIO SHALL BE A CONCRETE PAD AS SHOWN.

4. PROPOSED IMPERVIOUS AREA INCLUDES STRUCTURES, PARKING, AND PATIO, WITHIN THE
BOUNDARY LIMITS.

5. PROPOSED SETBACKS AND BUFFERS SHOWN ARE PER ARTICLES 5 AND 11 OF THE CITY OF
CONCORD DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE FOR RESIDENTIAL COMPACT (RC) ZONING.

6. THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT SHALL COMPLY WITH THE APPLICABLE BUFFER PLANTING
REQUIREMENTS FOR THE PROPOSED ZONING. SOD SHALL BE PLACED IN ALL OTHER OPEN
SPACE AREAS AS SHOWN.

7. ALL EXISTING ELECTRICAL LINES ON SITE SHALL BE RELOCATED WITHIN PROPOSED PUBLIC
UTILITY EASEMENT.

8. EACH UNIT SHALL HAVE IT'S OWN WATER METER AND SEWER SERVICE CONNECTION TO
PUBLIC UTILITY MAINS.

9. EACH UNIT SHALL BE ON IT'S OWN INDIVIDUAL LOT AS SHOWN.

10. THE REMAINING OPEN SPACE SHALL BE MAINTAINED BY THE DEVELOPER OR ASSIGNED
PROPERTY MANAGEMENT COMPANY.

11. MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHT OF PROPOSED BUILDINGS IS ±24.4 FEET.

12. PROPOSED PATIOS SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 5 FEET SETBACK FROM PROPOSED REAR
PROPERTY LINE.

13. ANY SIGNS ON THE PROPERTY WILL ABIDE BY ARTICLE 12 OF THE C.D.O.

14. THE PROPOSED ELECTRICAL TRANSFORMER LOCATION IS TENTATIVE. THE FINAL LOCATION
WILL BE SHOWN ON THE FINAL CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS.

15. THE PROPOSED REMAINING COMMON OPEN SPACE LOT LABELED "PASSIVE PLAY AREA"
SHALL BE PLAY AREA GRADED AS FLAT AS PRACTICAL AND TOPPED WITH SOD, AND SHALL
BE MAINTAINED BY THE DEVELOPER OR ASSIGNED PROPERTY MANAGEMENT COMPANY.

16. EACH UNIT SHALL BE SEPARATED WITH FIRE WALLS AND SHALL BE 1,366 SF PER UNIT.

ZONING: R
C

ZONING: B-1

PID: 5621-30-8980-0000

ZONING: R
V

PID: 5621-30-9952-0000

ZONING: R
V

PID: 5621-30-7778-0000

ZONING: R
V

PID: 5621-30-7853-0000

ZONING: R
V

CABARRUS COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER
PID: 5621-40-2535-0000

ZONING: B-1

PID: 5621-40-0851-0000
ZONING: RC

PROPOSED ZONING:

PROPOSED USE:

0.14 AC (20% WITHIN BOUNDARY)

RECIPROCAL PARKING AREA FOR
EXISTING COMMERCIAL BUSINESSES
SOUTH OF PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT

TOTAL PARKING SPACES AVAILABLE = 71

PROPOSED DRIVEWAY APRON

PROPOSED 2.5' CURB & GUTTER

APPROXIMATE
LOCATION OF EXISTING

2.5' CURB & GUTTER

APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF
EXISTING 2.5' CURB & GUTTER

PROPOSED 2.5'
CURB & GUTTER

APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF
EXISTING ROLLED GUTTER

PROPOSED TOWNHOME UNITS
NOT TO SCALE

APPROXIMATE SQUARE FOOTAGE PER UNIT = 1,366 SF
SEE PRELIMINARY ARCHITECTURAL

PLANS FOR MORE DETAILS

OPEN SPACE REQUIRED:
OPEN SPACE PROVIDED: ±0.36 AC (53% WITHIN BOUNDARY)

FRONT: N/A
REAR: 15' CLASS "B" BUFFER
SIDE: 8' CLASS "B" BUFFER

REQUIRED BUFFERS:

RC (RESIDENTIAL COMPACT)

ZONING: R
C

BY AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF CONCORD
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS, THIS SITE PLAN IS HEREBY
APPROVED.

DATE                           DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DIRECTOR

DATE                           DIRECTOR OF ENGINEERING

CERTIFICATE OF SITE PLAN APPROVAL

49' (TYP)

C
O

N
C

R
ETE

PATIO
 (TYP)

9'
(TYP)

18'
(TYP)

PID: 5621-40-0947-0000
ZONING: RV

PROPOSED 5' SIDEWALK

PROPOSED 5' SIDEWALK

PROPOSED ADA RAMP

EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT TO
REMAIN IN PLACE

EX. 8"SS

EX. 8"SS
EX. 6"W

EX. 6"W

EX. 6"W

EX. 6"W

EX. 6"W
EX. 8"SS

EX. 2"W

EX. 8"SS
EX. 8"SS

FUTURE RIGHT-OF-WAY DEDICATION
(ALONG BACK OF PROPOSED SIDEWALK)

℄

℄

℄

℄

℄

℄

D
N

D
N

APPROXIMATE LOCATION
OF SCREENED GAS &
ELECTRICAL SERVICES

DN

EXISTING IMPERVIOUS AREA ±19,786.2 SF (71% WITHIN BOUNDARY)

25' SIGHT TRIANGLES

RC-CD  (RESIDENTIAL COMPACT
CONDITIONAL DISTRICT)

AC PARKING LOT W
ITH W

HEEL STOPS

(12 SPACES)

9 SHARED PARKING SPACES

5 SHARED PARKING SPACES

2
4-

6-
20

21
KE

W
SI

TE
 R

ED
ES

IG
N

 P
ER

 T
R

C
 C

O
M

M
EN

TS

PROPOSED LEAD WALK
TO EACH UNIT (TYP)

3
4-

8-
20

21
KE

W
FR

EE
ZE

 T
R

EE
S 

TO
 B

E 
O

R
N

AM
EN

TA
L 

@
 2

0'
 O

.C
. P

ER
 C

IT
Y 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

PROPOSED ORNAMENTAL STREET TREES
20' ON CENTER (TYP) OUTSIDE OF 5' PUE

LOT 1

±2,253.5 SF

±0.05 AC

LOT 2

±1,492.1 SF

0.03 AC

LOT 3

±1,491.8 SF

±0.03 AC

LOT 4

±2,011.5 SF

±0.05 AC

COMMON OPEN
SPACE LOT

±0.13 AC

LOT 5
±2,011.8 SF

0.05 AC

LOT 6
±1,492.6 SF

±0.03 AC

LOT 7
±1,492.6 SF

±0.03 AC

LOT 8
±2,605.1 SF

±0.06 AC

4
4-

30
-2

02
1

KE
W

C
H

AN
G

ED
 T

O
 IN

D
IV

ID
U

AL
 L

O
TS

 &
 S

EP
AR

AT
E 

W
AT

ER
 M

ET
ER

S 
PE

R
 C

IT
Y 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

5'

5'

5'

7'

7'

PROPOSED DRIVEWAY, SEE DETAIL HEREON

PROPOSED MAILBOX
CLUSTER LOCATION

PROPOSED 5' PUE

PARKING PROVIDED: 11 SPACES, 1 ADA
SPACE (12 TOTAL)

UTILITY NOTES

1. PER CITY OF CONCORD CODE OF ORDINANCE CHAPTER 62, ARTICLE 3, SECTION 62-98 (2) ALL
MATERIALS, EQUIPMENT, LABOR, AND WORKMANSHIP ASSOCIATED WITH PUBLIC WATER AND /OR
SEWER EXTENSION AND/OR MODIFICATION SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH AND SUBJECT TO
THE WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY OF CABARRUS COUNTY’S STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS; THE
CITY OF CONCORD’S ORDINANCES, POLICIES, AND STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS, AND THE NORTH
CAROLINA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE FOR WASTEWATER COLLECTION AND WATER DISTRIBUTION
SYSTEMS. IN THE EVENT OF CONFLICT BETWEEN THE WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY OF
CABARRUS COUNTY’S STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS; THE CITY OF CONCORD’S ORDINANCES,
POLICIES, AND STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS, OR THE NORTH CAROLINA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE,
THE MORE RESTRICTIVE REQUIREMENTS SHALL APPLY.

2. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF THE PLANS DOES NOT RELIEVE THE OWNER, CONTRACTOR, OR
DEVELOPER FROM MEETING THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE CITY OF CONCORD’S OR CABARRUS
COUNTY ORDINANCES, POLICIES, AND STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS, (AS APPLICABLE), CONCORD
WATER & SEWER POLICIES AND TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS, THE “STANDARD SPECIFICATION
FOR WASTEWATER COLLECTION & WASTE DISTRIBUTION FOR CABARRUS COUNTY (WSACC
MANUAL) AND ANY OTHER LOCAL, STATE, AND FEDERAL REGULATIONS & APPROVALS.

3. THE CONTRACTOR MUST CONTACT THE CITY OF CONCORD ENGINEERING CONSTRUCTION
MANAGER AT 704-920-5425 AT LEAST 24-HOURS PRIOR TO INITIATING ANY CONSTRUCTION
ACTIVITY.

4. THE EXISTING WATER MAIN VALVE RIMS AND STEMS AND THE EXISTING SEWER MAIN MANHOLES
RIMS ARE TO BE RAISED OR LOWERED TO FINAL GRADE, AS APPLICABLE AND AT LEAST 3-FT OF
GROUND COVER IS TO BE MAINTAINED OVER THE EXISTING UTILITIES AT ALL TIMES PER THE CITY
OF CONCORD CODE OF ORDINANCE CHAPTER 62, ARTICLE 3, SECTION 62-98.

5. CONCORD CODE OF ORDINANCES CHAPTER 62, ARTICLE II WATER AND SEWER SERVICE, SEC.
62-34(I) - THE CUSTOMER SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR INSTALLING THE NECESSARY APPROVED
DEVICE(S) TO MAKE ANY ADJUSTMENTS TO THE WATER PRESSURE SUPPLIED BY CONCORD
UTILITIES AND SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE MAINTENANCE OF ALL SUCH DEVICES.”

6. PER THE CITY OF CONCORD CODE OF ORDINANCE CHAPTER 62, ARTICLE 3, SECTION 62-98- THE
FOLLOWING MINIMUM SEPARATIONS MUST BE   INDICATED, UNLESS OTHERWISE APPROVED BY
THE CITY:
• A MINIMUM HORIZONTAL SEPARATION OF FIVE FEET SHALL BE MAINTAINED BETWEEN ANY TYPE
OF MAINTENANCE OBSTRUCTION AND THE CITY'S WATER DISTRIBUTION LINES, WASTEWATER
COLLECTION LINES, AND ASSOCIATED APPURTENANCES, UNLESS AN EXCEPTION IS GRANTED.
GREATER SEPARATION DISTANCES MAY BE REQUIRED AS SPECIFIED BY FEDERAL, STATE, OR
LOCAL REGULATIONS.

• A MINIMUM VERTICAL SEPARATION OF TWO FEET SHALL BE MAINTAINED BETWEEN ANY TYPE OF
MAINTENANCE OBSTRUCTION, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO ANY OTHER UTILITY PROVIDER'S
LINES OR EQUIPMENT, AND THE CITY WATER DISTRIBUTION LINES, WASTEWATER COLLECTION
LINES, AND ASSOCIATED APPURTENANCES, UNLESS AN EXCEPTION IS GRANTED. IF AN
EXCEPTION IS GRANTED, A MINIMUM VERTICAL SEPARATION OF ONE FOOT MUST BE MAINTAINED
AND THE CITY WATER DISTRIBUTION LINES, WASTEWATER COLLECTION LINES, AND ASSOCIATED
APPURTENANCES SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED OF DUCTILE IRON PIPE OR AN APPROVED FERROUS
MATERIAL WITH JOINTS THAT ARE EQUIVALENT TO POTABLE WATER MAIN STANDARDS FOR A
DISTANCE OF TEN FEET ON EITHER SIDE OF THE POINT OF CROSSING. GREATER SEPARATION
DISTANCES MAY BE REQUIRED AS SPECIFIED BY FEDERAL, STATE, OR LOCAL REGULATIONS.

• A MINIMUM HORIZONTAL SEPARATION OF TEN FEET SHALL BE MAINTAINED BETWEEN THE CITY
WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM AND WASTEWATER COLLECTION LINES, AND ASSOCIATED
APPURTENANCES, UNLESS AN EXCEPTION IS GRANTED.

SINGLE FAMILY ATTACHED
8 TOWNHOMES (4 UNITS PER BUILDING)

PARCEL ID (PIN): 5621-30-9561-0000 & 5621-30-8773-0000

5
6-

3-
20

21
KE

W
U

PD
AT

ED
 S

KE
TC

H
 P

LA
N

 P
ER

 2
N

D
 R

O
U

N
D

 O
F 

ST
AF

F 
C

O
M

M
EN

TS

PROPOSED 5' PUE

PROPOSED ELECTRICAL
TRANSFORMER LOCATION

5' PUE

5' PU
E

5' PUE

LANDSCAPE LEGEND

PROPOSED SHADE TREE

PROPOSED ORNAMENTAL TREE

PROPOSED MEDIUM EVERGREEN SHRUB

PROPOSED  SMALL EVERGREEN SHRUB

20

18

32

134

PLANT TYPE TOTALSYMBOL

O
VE

R
H

EA
D

 P
O

W
ER

 L
IN

ES
 (T

YP
)

PP

PPPP

PP

PP

PP

PP

PP

PP

6
6-

14
-2

02
1

KE
W

U
PD

AT
ED

 S
KE

TC
H

 P
LA

N
 P

ER
 3

rd
 R

O
U

N
D

 O
F 

ST
AF

F 
C

O
M

M
EN

TS

APPROXIMATE LOCATION
OF SCREENED GAS &
ELECTRICAL SERVICES

PROPOSED STREET TREES
40' ON CENTER (TYP)
OUTSIDE OF 5' PUE

WATER & SEWER
SERVICE (TYP)

EXISTING OVERHEAD UTILITY LINE TO BE
RELOCATED UNDERGROUND IN PROPOSED
PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT (TYP)

PROPOSED LEAD WALK
TO EACH UNIT (TYP)

134GRAND TOTAL:

7' MIN
SIDE

SETBACK

7' MIN
SIDE

SETBACK

5' MIN REAR
SETBACK

20'
FRONT

SETBACK

20.1'20.1'27.1' MIN 27.1' MIN

74
.1

' M
IN

74
.1

' M
IN

74
.1

' M
IN

74
.1

' M
IN

74
.1

' M
IN

20.1'20.1'27.1' MIN 27.1' MIN

TYPICAL LOT LAYOUT
NOT TO SCALE

RIGHT-OF-WAY  OR
BOUNDARY LINE

LOT 1 LOT 2 LOT 3 LOT 4

PASSIVE PLAY AREA
±3,792.7 SF

±0.09 AC

COMMON OPEN
SPACE LOT

±0.18 AC

PROPOSED
LOTLINE

(TYP)

PROPOSED
PARCEL

±29,649.07 SF
(0.68 AC)

(PRS2021-01118)

PROPOSED FUTURE R/W LINE

PROPOSED LOT LINE

PROPOSED SIDEWALK EASEMENT

EXISTING BOUNDARY LINE

EXISTING WATER LINE

EXISTING SEWER LINE

EXISTING OVERHEAD ELECTRICAL LINE

PROPOSED SETBACK / BUFFER LINE

PROPOSED PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

PROPOSED GUTTER FLOWLINE

PROPOSED SEWER LATERAL

PROPOSED WATER METER

FUTURE RIGHT-OF-WAY DEDICATION LINE

PROPOSED GRASS AREA

PROPOSED PAVEMENT AREA

(PASSIVE PLAY AREA)
PROPOSED GRASS AREA 

EXISTING
ELECTRICAL
TRANSFORMER
LOCATION

6-
22

-2
02

1
KE

W
U

PD
AT

ED
 S

KE
TC

H
 P

LA
N

 P
ER

 3
rd

 R
O

U
N

D
 O

F 
ST

AF
F 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

7
7-

2-
20

21
KE

W
M

O
VE

D
 S

ID
EW

AL
K 

TO
 B

AC
K 

O
F 

C
U

R
B 

PE
R

 C
IT

Y 
C

O
M

M
EN

TS
 A

N
D

 V
AR

IA
N

C
E

8

PROPOSED BOUNDARY LINE

SITE LEGEND

5'

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: PROPOSED PARCEL IS A PORTION OF UPPER ROOM PROPERTIES UNLIMITED (DEED BOOK 12772 PAGE 0106).

BEGINNING AT  P.K. NAIL IN THE PAVEMENT SOUTHWEST INTERSECTION EDGE OF FREEZE AVE; THENCE WITH THE WESTERN EDGE
OF ST. JAMES AVENUE S.13-58-04 E. 211.81’ TO A POINT, THENCE CROSSING WEST THROUGH UPPER ROOM UNLIMITED PARCEL
(DEED BOOK 12772 PAGE 0106), (5) LINES AS FOLLOWS: (1) S. 76-01-56 W. 99.17’ TO A POINT; (2) N. 13-58-04 W. 29.44’ TO A POINT; (3) S.
69-59-44 W. 48.43’ TO A POINT; (4) N. 35-50-32 W. 12.32’ TO AN EXISTING IRON PIN; (5) FROM EXISTING IRON PIN TO AN EXISTING IRON
PIN AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LASHREE ROGERS (DEED BOOK 14173 PAGE 0129) N. 35-50-32 W. 15.01’ THENCE CONTINUING
ACROSS THE SOUTH PROPERTY LINE OF LASHREE ROGERS (DEED BOOK 14173 PAGE 0129)  TO AN IRON PIN N. 55-18-07 E. 57.08’;
THENCE ALONG THE EAST PROPERTY OF LASHREE ROGERS (DEED BOOK 14173 PAGE 0129) TO AN IRON PIN BESIDE A POWER POLE
N. 31-37-14 W. 101.31’, THENCE ALONG THE SOUTH SIDE OF FREEZE AVE NW TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING N. 57-26-19 E. 142.27’
CONTAINING +/- 0.54 ACRES.

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: LASHREE ROGERS (DEED BOOK 14173 PAGE 0129).

BEGINNING AT IRON PIN NEAR POWER POLE ON SOUTH SIDE OF FREEZE AVE NW
THENCE ALONG THE WESTERLY PROPERTY LINE OF UPPER ROOM UNLIMITED
PARCEL (DEED BOOK 12772 PAGE 0106) TO AN IRON PIN, S. 31-37-14 E. 101.31’,
THENCE TO AN IRON PIN BESIDE WOODEN FENCE, S. 55-18-07 W. 57.08’, THENCE
TO AN IRON PIN BEHIND RETAINING WALL ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF FREEZE AVE
NW, N. 36-03-50 W. 103.79’, THENCE ALONG THE SOUTH SIDE OF FREEZE AVE TO
THE POINT OF BEGINNING, N. 57-35-08 E. 65.05’ CONTAINING +/- 0.14 ACRES.

7-
12

-2
02

1
KE

W
U

PD
AT

ED
 S

Q
U

AR
E 

FO
O

TA
G

E 
O

F 
BU

IL
D

IN
G

S 
PE

R
 C

IT
Y 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

9

59



FREEZE AVE N
W

MCGILL AVE NW

S
T

 J
A

M
E

S
 S

T
 N

W

A
L
L

IS
O

N
 S

T
 N

W

C
O

O
K

 S
T

 N
W

IV
E

Y
 S

T
 N

W

U S H W
Y  29

R
O

G
E

R
S

 LA
K

E
 R

D

O
A

K
W

O
O

D
 A

V
E

W
I
N

E
C

O
F

F
 S

C
H

O
O

L
 
R

D

R O B E R TA  R D

M C G I LL  AV E

L
I
N

C
O

L
N

 
S
T

WA R R E N  C  C O LE M A N  B L V D

N
C

 3

B
R

A
N

C
H
V
I E

W
D

R
S
E

N C  H W Y  73

W
E D D I N G T O N R

D

PI T T S  S C H O
O L R D

ZI O
N

 C
H

U
R

C
H

 R
D

C
O N C

O R
D

M
IL

L
S

B L
V

D

I-
8

5

M
O

R
E

H
E

A
D

 R
D

C
O

N
C

O
R

D
 P

K
W

Y
 S

C
H

U
R

C
H

 ST
 N

WI L SH I R E  A VE

G
O

LD
 H

I L
L 

R
D

W
I
N

D
Y

 
R

D

D
E
R

I
T

A
 R

D

O
L
D

 
C

H
A

R
L

O
T

T
E

 
R

D

D A
L E

E
A

R
N

H

A
R
D

T
B

L
V
D

C
AB

A
R

R
U

S
 A

VE

P
E

N
N

IN
G

E
R

R
D

O LD  A I R P O R T R D

O
D

E
L
L

 S
C

H
O

O
L
 
R

D

IN
T

E
R

N
A

T
I
O

N
A
L

 
D

R

R
O

C
K

Y
 R

I
V

E
R

 
R

D

N
C

 3

B
U

R
R
A

G
E

R
D

N
E

U
N

IO
N

 S
T

 S

F
L

O
W

E
S

S
T
O

R
E

R
D

C
O

N
C

O
R

D
 
P

A
R

K
W

A
Y

 N

M
A

LL
 D

R
 N

E

C
O

P
P

E
R
F

I

E
L
D

B
L
V

D
N

E

C
EN

T
E

R
G

R
O

V
E 

R
D

C
R

E
S

T
M

O
N

T
D

R

BR
U

T
O

N
 S

M
I T

H
 B

LV
D

PI T
T

S
 S

C
H

O
O

L R
D

TR
I N

I T
Y C

H
U

R
C

H
 R

D

B
O

Y
 
S

C
O

U
T

 
C

A
M

P
 
R

D

R
O

C
K

 H
IL

L C
H

U
R

C
H

 R
D

L
I
T

T
L

E
 
T
E

X
A

S
 
R

D

B
R

O
O
K

W

O
O

D
A
V

E

N C  7 3

C
O

X
 M

I
L
L

 R
D

P O P L A
R

T E
N

T
R
D

G
E

O
R

G
E

 W
 L

I LE
S

 P
K

W
Y

 N
W

R
O

B
E

R
T
A

C
H

U
R

C
H

R
D

N C  H W Y  49

O
L
D

 
C

H
A

R
L

O
T

T
E

 
R

D

C
O

R
B

A
N

  A
V

E

U
S IN

TER
STATE 8

5 S
DAVIDSON HWY

NC H
W

Y 4
9 S

U
N

IO
N

 S
T
 S

S
 M

A
IN

 S
T

UNTZ RD

STOUGH RD

EVA DR NW

ORPHANAGE RD

TOM QUERY RD

P
E

N
N

IN
G

E
R

 R
D

F
A
L
C

O
N

 D
R

STALLINGS RD

M
E

X
IC

O
 R

D

B
E

L
T

 R
D

Source: City of Concord

Planning Department

These maps and products are designed for general

reference only and data contained herein is subject 

to change. The City Of Concord, it's employees or 

agents make no warranty of merchantability or fitness 

for any purpose, expressed or implied, and assume no 

legal responsibility for the information contained therein. 

Data used is from multiple sources with various scales 

and accuracy. Additional research such as field surveys 

may be necessary to determine actual conditions.

Disclaimer

0 10050

Feet

Subject Properties

Parcels

City of Concord

Freeze Ave NW & St. JamesSt NW

PINs p/o 5621-30-9561 & 5621-30-8773

Subject

Properties

Z(CD)-08-21
Subject Property

Townhome Project

Proposed Zoning Amendment
B1 (Neighborhood Commercial) &

RC (Residential Compact)
to

RC-CD (Residential Compact -
Conditional District)

60



RV

B-1

RC

RC

RC

FREEZE AVE N
W

MCGILL AVE NW

S
T

 J
A

M
E

S
 S

T
 N

W

A
L
L

IS
O

N
 S

T
 N

W

C
O

O
K

 S
T

 N
W

BROOKWOOD AVE NW

IV
E

Y
 S

T
 N

W

U S H W
Y  29

R
O

G
E

R
S

 LA
K

E
 R

D

O
A

K
W

O
O

D
 A

V
E

W
I
N

E
C

O
F

F
 S

C
H

O
O

L
 
R

D

R O B E R TA  R D

M C G I LL  AV E

L
I
N

C
O

L
N

 
S
T

WA R R E N  C  C O LE M A N  B L V D

N
C

 3

B
R

A
N

C
H
V
I E

W
D

R
S
E

N C  H W Y  73

W
E D D I N G T O N R

D

PI T T S  S C H O
O L R D

ZI O
N

 C
H

U
R

C
H

 R
D

C
O N C

O R
D

M
IL

L
S

B L
V

D

I-
8

5

M
O

R
E

H
E

A
D

 R
D

C
O

N
C

O
R

D
 P

K
W

Y
 S

C
H

U
R

C
H

 ST
 N

WI L SH I R E  A VE

G
O

LD
 H

I L
L 

R
D

W
I
N

D
Y

 
R

D

D
E
R

I
T

A
 R

D

O
L
D

 
C

H
A

R
L

O
T

T
E

 
R

D

D A
L E

E
A

R
N

H

A
R
D

T
B

L
V
D

C
AB

A
R

R
U

S
 A

VE

P
E

N
N

IN
G

E
R

R
D

O LD  A I R P O R T R D

O
D

E
L
L

 S
C

H
O

O
L
 
R

D

IN
T

E
R

N
A

T
I
O

N
A
L

 
D

R

R
O

C
K

Y
 R

I
V

E
R

 
R

D

N
C

 3

B
U

R
R
A

G
E

R
D

N
E

U
N

IO
N

 S
T

 S

F
L

O
W

E
S

S
T
O

R
E

R
D

C
O

N
C

O
R

D
 
P

A
R

K
W

A
Y

 N

M
A

LL
 D

R
 N

E

C
O

P
P

E
R
F

I

E
L
D

B
L
V

D
N

E

C
EN

T
E

R
G

R
O

V
E 

R
D

C
R

E
S

T
M

O
N

T
D

R

BR
U

T
O

N
 S

M
I T

H
 B

LV
D

PI T
T

S
 S

C
H

O
O

L R
D

TR
I N

I T
Y C

H
U

R
C

H
 R

D

B
O

Y
 
S

C
O

U
T

 
C

A
M

P
 
R

D

R
O

C
K

 H
IL

L C
H

U
R

C
H

 R
D

L
I
T

T
L

E
 
T
E

X
A

S
 
R

D

B
R

O
O
K

W

O
O

D
A
V

E

N C  7 3

C
O

X
 M

I
L
L

 R
D

P O P L A
R

T E
N

T
R
D

G
E

O
R

G
E

 W
 L

I LE
S

 P
K

W
Y

 N
W

R
O

B
E

R
T
A

C
H

U
R

C
H

R
D

N C  H W Y  49

O
L
D

 
C

H
A

R
L

O
T

T
E

 
R

D

C
O

R
B

A
N

  A
V

E

U
S IN

TER
STATE 8

5 S
DAVIDSON HWY

NC H
W

Y 4
9 S

U
N

IO
N

 S
T
 S

S
 M

A
IN

 S
T

UNTZ RD

STOUGH RD

EVA DR NW

ORPHANAGE RD

TOM QUERY RD

P
E

N
N

IN
G

E
R

 R
D

F
A
L
C

O
N

 D
R

STALLINGS RD

M
E

X
IC

O
 R

D

B
E

L
T

 R
D

Source: City of Concord

Planning Department

These maps and products are designed for general

reference only and data contained herein is subject 

to change. The City Of Concord, it's employees or 

agents make no warranty of merchantability or fitness 

for any purpose, expressed or implied, and assume no 

legal responsibility for the information contained therein. 

Data used is from multiple sources with various scales 

and accuracy. Additional research such as field surveys 

may be necessary to determine actual conditions.

Disclaimer

² 0 10050

Feet

Subject Properties

Parcels

Zoning
B-1

RC

RV

Freeze Ave NW & St. JamesSt NW

PINs p/o 5621-30-9561 & 5621-30-8773

Subject

Properties

Z(CD)-08-21
Zoning

Townhome Project

Proposed Zoning Amendment
B1 (Neighborhood Commercial) &

RC (Residential Compact)
to

RC-CD (Residential Compact -
Conditional District)

61



Urban Neighborhood

Civic-Institutional

Commercial

Urban Neighborhood

FREEZE AVE N
W

MCGILL AVE NW

S
T

 J
A

M
E

S
 S

T
 N

W

A
L
L

IS
O

N
 S

T
 N

W

C
O

O
K

 S
T

 N
W

BROOKWOOD AVE NW

IV
E

Y
 S

T
 N

W

U S H W
Y  29

R
O

G
E

R
S

 LA
K

E
 R

D

O
A

K
W

O
O

D
 A

V
E

W
I
N

E
C

O
F

F
 S

C
H

O
O

L
 
R

D

R O B E R TA  R D

M C G I LL  AV E

L
I
N

C
O

L
N

 
S
T

WA R R E N  C  C O LE M A N  B L V D

N
C

 3

B
R

A
N

C
H
V
I E

W
D

R
S
E

N C  H W Y  73

W
E D D I N G T O N R

D

PI T T S  S C H O
O L R D

ZI O
N

 C
H

U
R

C
H

 R
D

C
O N C

O R
D

M
IL

L
S

B L
V

D

I-
8

5

M
O

R
E

H
E

A
D

 R
D

C
O

N
C

O
R

D
 P

K
W

Y
 S

C
H

U
R

C
H

 ST
 N

WI L SH I R E  A VE

G
O

LD
 H

I L
L 

R
D

W
I
N

D
Y

 
R

D

D
E
R

I
T

A
 R

D

O
L
D

 
C

H
A

R
L

O
T

T
E

 
R

D

D A
L E

E
A

R
N

H

A
R
D

T
B

L
V
D

C
AB

A
R

R
U

S
 A

VE

P
E

N
N

IN
G

E
R

R
D

O LD  A I R P O R T R D

O
D

E
L
L

 S
C

H
O

O
L
 
R

D

IN
T

E
R

N
A

T
I
O

N
A
L

 
D

R

R
O

C
K

Y
 R

I
V

E
R

 
R

D

N
C

 3

B
U

R
R
A

G
E

R
D

N
E

U
N

IO
N

 S
T

 S

F
L

O
W

E
S

S
T
O

R
E

R
D

C
O

N
C

O
R

D
 
P

A
R

K
W

A
Y

 N

M
A

LL
 D

R
 N

E

C
O

P
P

E
R
F

I

E
L
D

B
L
V

D
N

E

C
EN

T
E

R
G

R
O

V
E 

R
D

C
R

E
S

T
M

O
N

T
D

R

BR
U

T
O

N
 S

M
I T

H
 B

LV
D

PI T
T

S
 S

C
H

O
O

L R
D

TR
I N

I T
Y C

H
U

R
C

H
 R

D

B
O

Y
 
S

C
O

U
T

 
C

A
M

P
 
R

D

R
O

C
K

 H
IL

L C
H

U
R

C
H

 R
D

L
I
T

T
L

E
 
T
E

X
A

S
 
R

D

B
R

O
O
K

W

O
O

D
A
V

E

N C  7 3

C
O

X
 M

I
L
L

 R
D

P O P L A
R

T E
N

T
R
D

G
E

O
R

G
E

 W
 L

I LE
S

 P
K

W
Y

 N
W

R
O

B
E

R
T
A

C
H

U
R

C
H

R
D

N C  H W Y  49

O
L
D

 
C

H
A

R
L

O
T

T
E

 
R

D

C
O

R
B

A
N

  A
V

E

U
S IN

TER
STATE 8

5 S
DAVIDSON HWY

NC H
W

Y 4
9 S

U
N

IO
N

 S
T
 S

S
 M

A
IN

 S
T

UNTZ RD

STOUGH RD

EVA DR NW

ORPHANAGE RD

TOM QUERY RD

P
E

N
N

IN
G

E
R

 R
D

F
A
L
C

O
N

 D
R

STALLINGS RD

M
E

X
IC

O
 R

D

B
E

L
T

 R
D

Source: City of Concord

Planning Department

These maps and products are designed for general

reference only and data contained herein is subject 

to change. The City Of Concord, it's employees or 

agents make no warranty of merchantability or fitness 

for any purpose, expressed or implied, and assume no 

legal responsibility for the information contained therein. 

Data used is from multiple sources with various scales 

and accuracy. Additional research such as field surveys 

may be necessary to determine actual conditions.

Disclaimer

² 0 10050

Feet

Subject Properties

Parcels

Land Use Plan
Urban Neighborhood

Commercial

Civic-Institutional

Freeze Ave NW & St. JamesSt NW

PINs p/o 5621-30-9561 & 5621-30-8773

Subject

Properties

Z(CD)-08-21
Land Use Plan

Townhome Project

Proposed Zoning Amendment
B1 (Neighborhood Commercial) &

RC (Residential Compact)
to

RC-CD (Residential Compact -
Conditional District)

62



UNION STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT
ILLUMINATING CONCEPTS INC, LLC – INTELLISTREETS™© 

City Council Regular Session: Thursday – August 12th, 2021

63



EXISTING LIGHT POLES VS. INTELLISTREETS SMART LIGHT POLES

64



PURCHASING DIRECT FROM MANUFACTURER
• Intellistreets purchasing policy is to recognize cities that contact Intellistreets 

directly as a direct-sale customer. 

• Ongoing system deployments, systems added in stages, are best managed by a 
direct relationship, where the communication is direct.  

65



UNIQUE AND PATENTED ADVANTAGES OF INTELLISTREETS

• Only system to have wireless audio communications. A patented synchronization 
system allows music and announcements to be echo-free

• No speaker wires, amplifiers, mixers, or source players necessary

• Only system to conceal Wi-Fi in the base of the pole and conceal antennas by an 
invisible patent pending printed circuit board antenna

• Only system to have multi-colored indicator LEDs for traffic notification, sequential 
strobing for evacuation routing, and parade/holiday lighting occasions (patented)

• Only system to have a wireless color adjustable flood-light control (patented)

• Only system to have wireless switched receptacle control

• The thinnest LED banners in the industry – ten years in development

• A complete set of sensors are available with the software integrated in the User 
Interface. A unique “one pane of glass” software package. 

66



PATENT NAME - DATE STATUS PATENT # ISSUE DATE APPLICATION #

2 TRACK LIGHTING SYSTEM AND LIGHTING TRUSS FOR USE THEREIN Granted-AFP 6033097 3/7/2000 08/943636

3 POLE SPEAKER Granted 6769509 8/3/2004 10/324563

4 SYSTEM FOR PROVIDING  PATHWAY INDICATIONS THROUGH UNLIT AREAS Granted 6778093 8/17/2004 10/202746

5 ILLUMINATED SIGN Granted 7188986 3/13/2007 11/324602

8 SUPPORT BASE FOR A STRUCTURAL SUPPORT Granted 7219873 5/22/2007 10/874822

9 SYSTEM FOR PROVIDING PATHWAY INDICATIONS THROUGH UNLIT AREAS Granted 7242313 7/10/2007 10/920007

12 LIGHTING DEVICE WITH MULTIPLE POWER SOURCES AND MULTIPLE MODES OF OPERATION Granted 7391159 6/24/2008 11/748066

13 METHOD AND SYSTEM OF CONTROLLING LIGHTING FIXTURE Granted 7451001 11/11/2008 11/188427

14 SPEAKER ASSEMBLY FOR A STRUCTURAL POLE AND A METHOD FOR MOUNTING SAME Granted 7607512 10/27/2009 11/209794

15 METHOD AND SYSTEM OF CONTROLLING MEDIA DEVICES CONFIGURED TO OUTPUT SIGNALS TO SURROUNDING AREA Granted 7630776 12/8/2009 11/209890

16 PATHWAY INDICATING LUMINAIRE Granted 7696895 4/13/2010 11/701255

18 METHOD AND SYSTEM OF CONTROLLING MEDIA DEVICES CONFIGURED TO OUTPUT SIGNALS TO SURROUNDING AREA Granted 8090453 1/3/2012 12/628746

19 ACOUSTIC REFLECTOR AND ENERGY STORAGE FOR MEDIA ASSEMBLIES Granted 8098852 1/17/2012 12/631943

20 ACOUSTIC REFLECTOR Granted 8442242 5/14/2013 12/888545

21 ACOUSTIC REFLECTOR AND ENERGY STORAGE FOR MEDIA ASSEMBLIES Granted 8477967 7/2/2013 13/330103

22 ACOUSTIC REFLECTOR - GCC (European) Granted GC0003268 1/19/2015 GCC2011-19339

23 HOUSING FOR INTELLIGENT LIGHTS Granted 8960967 2/24/2015 13/565887

24 METHOD AND SYSTEM OF CONTROLLING MEDIA DEVICES CONFIGURED TO OUTPUT SIGNALS TO SURROUNDING AREA Granted 9071911 B2 6/30/2015 13/312134

25 INTELLIGENT MEDIA SYNCHRONIZATION Granted 10741217 7/1/7201

26 INTELLIGENT MEDIA SYNCHRONIZATION Granted 9812171 7/7/2015

27 METHOD AND SYSTEM OF CONTROLLING MEDIA DEVICES CONFIGURED TO OUTPUT SIGNALS TO SURROUNDING AREA Granted 10061555 8/23/2005

28 METHOD AND SYSTEM OF CONTROLLING MEDIA DEVICES CONFIGURED TO OUTPUT SIGNALS TO SURROUNDING AREA Granted 7630776 8/23/2005

28 FAST CAP Granted 10492271 3/27/2017

30 SMART ARM Pending 63/049,355

INTELLISTREETS LIST OF PATENTS

67



Unique

68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



INTELLISTREETS DESIGN FOR UNION STREETSCAPE

22 Intellistreets Smart Light Poles

3 Intellistreets Full 
Feature Light Poles

8 Intellistreets Post
Top Modules

4 Obelisks & String Lights

76



INTELLISTREETS – FULL FEATURE LIGHT POLES

77



GATEWAY TRUSS OBELISKS & STRING LIGHTS

78



COST BREAKDOWN:

Intellistreets (Poles & Accessories): $544,764
Includes 22 new Intellistreet smart light poles with standard features, two added 50 amp receptacles, 
concealed wi-fi access points, secondary audio speaker system for live sound (during events), three 
LED Banners, three 360 degree view cameras, three push blue notification buttons, and color changing 
flood lights.

Gateway Truss Obelisks & String Lights: $321,000
Includes four custom gateway truss obelisk columns and color changing theatrical string lights. 
Programming and special effects lighting software controlled by the user interface. 

TOTAL COST: $865,764 ($108,170 under the proposed Budget)

79



RECOMMENDATION: Motion to approve the 
Lighting Design and authorize the City Manager 
to negotiate and execute a sole source 
contract with Illuminating Concepts for 
Intellistreets Light Poles & Accessories in the 
amount of $865,764 as part of the Union 
Streetscape Improvements Project. 

80



 

Memo to: Mayor Bill Dusch, City Manager Lloyd Payne, Concord City Council Members 

From: Barbi Jones, Executive Director, The Chamber, Leading Business in Cabarrus 

Re: Request to briefly change City of Concord’s sign ordinance for temporary banners 

Dear friends,  

You are all very aware of the challenges our local businesses are facing filling vital employment 

positions. We know one of the major issues in workforce shortages is the extension of federal 

unemployment benefits that are currently set to expire September 6. We have heard from Washington 

that these could be extended through the end of the year depending on potential COVID spikes.  

Businesses have told us that they need help getting the word out that they are hiring. One proposed 

way would be to post banners in front of their businesses advertising openings and potential bonuses or 

incentives. City of Concord’s present sign ordinance (which we are very supportive of) allows temporary 

banners for 14 days posted in front of businesses and 30 days if attached to the buildings. I believe there 

is a similar grace period extended during race weeks.  

I would like to request on behalf of The Chamber and our members for you to remove the 14- and 30-

day limits for temporary banners and extend it until five days after the federal unemployment benefits 

expire (whether that is September 6 or later). This would give them the opportunity to utilize this option 

and advertise in an affordable manner.  

We appreciate all you do to keep Concord business-friendly and for the support you generously offer to 

our businesses.  

81



26, 30 & 34 Powder St NW
3 vacant lots

69 Powder St NW
vacant lot

243 Corban Ave SW
house to be demolished

CA
BA

RR
US

 AV
E W

CORBAN AVE SW

POWDER ST NW

VALLEY ST NW

GOLD ST SW

POWDER ST SW

HOWERTON AV
EN

W

SKIPWITH ST SW
PINE ST NW

SCOTT ST SW

BAY
 CT N

W

YOUNG AVE SWROBBINS ST SW

MORRISON PL SW

McClamrock Properties
Parcels

CABARRUS AVE E

WILSON ST NE

PATTE
RSON AVE SE

ASHLYN DR SE ASHLYN DR SE

224 Cabarrus Ave E
house to be demolished

Estate of
Barry K. McClamrock

Properties

200
Feet

200
Feet

¯

¯

26 Powder St NW
30 Powder St NW
34 Powder St NW
69 Powder St NW
224 Cabarrus Ave E
243 Corban Ave SW

82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



107



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



RESOLUTION GIVING PRELIMINARY APPROVAL TO ISSUANCE OF 
MULTIFAMILY HOUSING REVENUE BONDS TO FINANCE THE 
ACQUISITION, REHABILITATION AND EQUIPPING OF THE GREENS OF 
CONCORD 

WHEREAS, the City Council (the “City Council”) of the City of Concord, North Carolina (the 
“City”) met in Concord, North Carolina at 6:00pm on the 12th day of August, 2021; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 160D-1311(b) of the General Statutes of North Carolina, the City 
is granted the power to exercise directly the powers of a housing authority organized pursuant to the North 
Carolina Housing Authorities Law, Article 1 of Chapter 157 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, as 
amended (the “Act”); and 

WHEREAS, the Act in N.C.G.S. §§ 157-9 and 157-37 gives the City acting as a housing authority 
the power “to provide for the construction, reconstruction, improvement, alteration or repair of any housing 
project” and “to borrow money upon its bonds, notes, debentures or other evidences of indebtedness and to 
secure the same by pledges of its revenues”; and 

WHEREAS, Greens of Concord Apartments, LP, a North Carolina limited partnership, or an 
affiliated or related entity (the “Company”), intends to provide affordable housing in the City; and 

WHEREAS, the Company has requested that the City assist it in financing the acquisition, 
rehabilitation and equipping of a 152-unit multifamily residential rental development known as the Greens 
of Concord and located at 1400 Daley Circle NE in the City (the “Development”); and 

WHEREAS, the Company has described to the City the benefits of the Development to the City 
and the State of North Carolina and has requested the City to agree to issue its multifamily housing revenue 
bonds in such amounts as may be necessary to finance the costs of acquiring, rehabilitating and equipping 
the Development; and 

WHEREAS, the City is of the opinion that the Development is a facility that can be financed under 
the Act and that the financing of the same will be in furtherance of the purposes of the Act; and 

WHEREAS, the Bonds will not be deemed to constitute a debt or a pledge of the faith and credit 
of the City, the State of North Carolina or any political subdivision thereof and will be payable solely from 
the revenues and other funds provided for under the agreements related to the Bonds; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CONCORD: 

1. It is hereby found and determined that the Development will involve the acquisition, 
rehabilitation and equipping of a multifamily housing facility, and that therefore, pursuant to the terms and 
subject to the conditions hereinafter stated and the Act, the City agrees to assist the Company in every 
reasonable way to issue bonds to finance the acquisition, rehabilitation and equipping of the Development, 
and, in particular, to undertake the issuance of the City’s multifamily housing revenue bonds (the “Bonds”) 
in an amount now estimated not to exceed Twenty-Four Million Dollars ($24,000,000) to provide all or 
part of the cost of the Development. 

2. The City intends that the adoption of this resolution be considered as “official action” 
toward the issuance of the Bonds within the meaning of the regulations issued by the Internal Revenue 

175



Service pursuant to Section 1.150-2 of the Treasury Regulations issued under the Internal Revenue Code 
of 1986, as amended (the “Code”). 

3. The Bonds shall be issued in such series and amounts and upon such terms and conditions 
as are mutually agreed upon between the City and the Company. The City and the Company shall enter into 
a “financing agreement” pursuant to the Act for a term and upon payments sufficient to pay the principal 
of, premium if any, and interest on the Bonds and to pay all of the expenses of the City in connection with 
the Bonds and the Development. The Bonds will be issued pursuant to an indenture or security agreement 
between the City and a trustee (the “Trustee”) or the bondholder which will set forth the form and terms of 
the Bonds and will assign to the Trustee for the benefit of the holders of the Bonds, or directly to the 
bondholder, the City’s rights to payments under the financing agreement, except the City’s rights to 
payment of fees and expenses and indemnification. The Bonds shall not be deemed to constitute a debt or 
a pledge of the faith and credit of the State of North Carolina or any political subdivision or agency thereof, 
including the City, but shall be payable solely from the revenues and other funds provided under the 
proposed agreements with the Company. 

4. The City hereby authorizes the Company to proceed, upon the prior advice, consent and 
approval of bond counsel and the City’s counsel, to obtain approvals in connection with the issuance and 
sale of the Bonds and to obtain an allocation of a sufficient amount of the State of North Carolina’s “private 
activity bond limit”, as required by Section 146 of the Code and as defined in Section 146 of the Code, for 
the Bonds. 

5. It having been represented to the City that it is desirable to proceed with the acquisition, 
rehabilitation and equipping of the Development, the City agrees that the Company may proceed with plans 
for such acquisition, rehabilitation and equipping, enter into contracts for the same, and take such other 
steps as it may deem appropriate in connection therewith, provided that nothing herein shall be deemed to 
authorize the Company to obligate the City without its written consent in each instance to the payment of 
any monies or the performance of any act in connection with the Development and no such consent shall 
be implied from the City’s adoption of this resolution.  The Company has indicated that it expects to incur 
and pay expenses relating to the Development prior to the issuance of the Bonds and expects to reimburse 
those expenditures with proceeds of the Bonds.  The City agrees that the Company may be reimbursed from 
the proceeds of the Bonds, if and when issued, for all qualifying costs so incurred as permitted by Treasury 
Regulations Section 1.150-2. 

6. All obligations hereunder of the City are subject to the further agreement of the City and 
the Company to terms for the issuance, sale and delivery of the Bonds and the execution of a financing 
agreement, indenture or security agreement and other documents and agreements necessary or desirable for 
the issuance of the Bonds. The City has not authorized and does not authorize the expenditure of any funds 
or monies of the City from any source other than the proceeds of the Bonds. All costs and expenses in 
connection with the financing and the acquisition, rehabilitation and equipping of the Development, 
including the reasonable fees and expenses of the City’s counsel, bond counsel and the agent or underwriter 
for the sale of the Bonds, shall be paid from the proceeds of the Bonds or by the Company, but if for any 
reason the Bonds are not issued, all such expenses shall be paid by the Company and the City shall have no 
responsibility therefor. It is understood and agreed by the City and the Company that nothing contained in 
this resolution shall be construed or interpreted to create any personal liability of the officers or council 
members from time to time of the City. 

7. The officers of the City are hereby authorized and directed to take all actions in furtherance 
of the resolution and the issuance of the Bonds. 

176



8. The City hereby approves McGuireWoods LLP, Raleigh, North Carolina, to act as bond 
counsel for the Bonds. 

9. This resolution shall take effect immediately. 

Council member ____________ moved the passage of the foregoing resolution and Council 
member ____________ seconded the motion, and the resolution was passed by the following vote: 

Ayes:  

Nays:  

Not voting:  

* * * * * * * 

I, Kim Deason, City Clerk to the City of Concord, North Carolina, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that 
the foregoing is a true and complete copy of so much of the proceedings of the City Council for the City of 
Concord, North Carolina, at a regular meeting duly called and held on August 12, 2021, as it relates in any 
way to the resolution hereinabove set forth, and that such proceedings are recorded in the minutes of the 
City Council.   

WITNESS my hand and the seal of the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina, this 
____ day of August, 2021. 

 
(SEAL)             

Kim Deason, City Clerk 
City of Concord, North Carolina 

 
 

177



Greens of Concord Rehabilitation

Greens of Concord Project Summary

July 2021

178



2

Greens of Concord
Table of Contents

• Lincoln Avenue Capital Introduction

• Project History & Overview

• Projected Timeline

• Financing Structure and Sources & Uses Summary

1

2

3

4

179



3

1 Greens of Concord
LAC Introduction

1 Representative of Company and portfolio data as of January-2021.

• Our Approach

– We own, develop, and invest in affordable housing to support thriving 

communities

– Our experienced, creative and agile team works to provide low-income 

families with quality affordable housing through federal, state, and local 

programs

• Value Proposition

– Our affiliation with a large family office provides flexibility and unique 

access to capital; we utilize our balance sheet for acquisitions and can 

execute quickly

MISSION DRIVEN. FAMILY OWNED. IMPACT FOCUSED.

1

Rica Vista

180



4

2 Greens of Concord
Geographic Overview

181



5

Greens of Concord
Photo Overview

2

182



6

Greens of Concord
Project History & Overview

• Overview: 152-townhouse style units located at 1400 Daley Cir NE in Concord, NC. The site is comprised of 20 buildings (19 of 

which are residential Townhomes with 1 clubhouse)

• History: Built in 1996 / 1997 under Section 42 (Low Income Housing Tax Credit program)

• Current Affordability Restrictions: The Project is subject to an existing Land Use Restriction Agreement with the North Carolina 

Housing Finance Agency (“NCHFA”). Under the terms of the LURA, 100% of the units shall be made continuously available to 

persons earning not more than 60% of the area median income. 

• Unit Amenities: A mix of two-, three-, and four-bedroom townhome units featuring a patio, walk-in closets, additional storage 

space, dishwasher, garbage disposal, air conditioning, and in-unit washer and dryer connections

• Community Amenities: Include a business center, clubhouse / leasing office, swimming pool, barbecue and picnic area, 

playground and a basketball court

2

183



7

Greens of Concord
Floorplan Overview

2

184



8

12 Greens of Concord
Unit Mix

Unit Mix

Bedrooms Type AMI % / Type Units Square Feet 60% AMI Rents

2 2x2 60% 4 858 $1,063

2 2x2 TH 60% 44 1,093 $1,063

3 3x2 60% 4 1,048 $1,220

3 3x2 TH 60% 68 1,309 $1,220

4 4x2 TH 60% 32 1,358 $1,352

Total / Weighted Average 152 1,238 $ 1,198

185



9

Greens of Concord
Rehabilitation Scope

2

Anticipated Rehab Scope: $6,850,000 (~$45,000 per unit) plus contingency

Although the scope of the rehab is still being developed, based on initial inspections and LAC standard scope items, we expect it will 

include:

• Units:

o New cabinets and countertops, new appliances, new HVAC and water heaters, new sinks and low-flow plumbing fixtures, new 

LED lighting, new flooring, new patio doors, new tub surrounds, new doors and door hardware, new window treatments, new 

bath accessories, new exhaust fans, new ceiling fans and accessibility upgrades.

• Exterior:

o Replacement of existing exterior vinyl siding with impact resistant siding, new windows, accessibility and drainage 

improvements, new gutters and downspouts, landscaping, new energy efficient site lighting, solar, retaining wall 

improvements, reseal of the parking lot, and new signage.

• Community:

o Clubhouse upgrades, new playground and pavilion/grilling areas, new mail kiosks

186



10

Greens of Concord
Project Team

2

Developer/Owner:  Lincoln Avenue Capital

Architect: E+A Architecture

General Contractor: Legacy Construction

Management Agent: Elmington Property Management

187



11

• August, 2021 – Targeted initial bond inducement from The City of Concord

• September, 2021 – Submit full application to NCHFA for tax-credit and bond approvals

• January, 2022 – Receive 42M letter from NCHFA

• January, 2022 – Notice of Public Hearing for Bond Approvals

• February, 2022 – Receive Final City Bond Approvals

• March, 2022 – Closing and beginning of construction

• December, 2022 – Complete the construction on the renovations

3 Greens of Concord
Projected Timeline

188



12

4 Greens of Concord
Financing Overview and Sources & Uses

• Bond Inducement Request: Up to $24,000,000

• Anticipated Structure: Privately Placed as a Long-Term Tax-Exempt Loan

Sources

Construction Per Unit Permanent Per Unit

First Mortgage – – $ 22,692,443 149,292

Construction Loan 22,692,443 149,292 – –

LIHTC Equity 2,069,741 13,617 13,798,274 13,617

GP Capital Contribution 100 1 100 1

Developer Equity – – 651,226 4,284

Equity Bridge Loan 9,711,782 63,893 – –

Total Sources $34,474,066 $226,803 $37,142,043 $244,356 

Uses

Construction Per Unit Permanent Per Unit

Acquisition 23,050,000 151,645 $ 23,050,000 151,645

Construction Hard Costs 8,090,660 53,228 8,090,660 53,228

Project Soft Costs 592,500 3,898 592,500 3,898

Tax Credit Fees 497,772 3,275 497,772 3,275

Bond Costs 436,264 2,870 436,264 2,870

Bridge Loan Costs 248,042 1,632 248,042 1,632

Permanent Loan Costs 138,550 912 138,550 912

Closing Costs 140,000 921 140,000 921

Escrows and Reserves – – 685,048 4,507

Interim Acquisition Costs 563,207 3,705 563,207 3,705

Developer Fee 717,071 4,718 2,700,000 17,763

Total Uses $34,474,066 $226,803 $37,142,043 $244,356 

189



AN ORDINANCE TO TEMPORARILY CLOSE CERTAIN STATE-MAINTAINED ROADS FOR A SPECIAL EVENT 
ORGANIZED BY THE CITY OF CONCORD, NC 

 
 

 
 

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute 20-169 authorizes local authorities 
to regulate by ordinance the use of a highway within their jurisdiction by processions, 
assemblages or anything that may be construed as a procession or assemblage, and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Concord will consult with the local NCDOT Division 

office to verify that a proposed event will not 1) interfere with other planned special 
events and 
2) impact or be impacted by planned maintenance or other activities., and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Concord will co-sponsor with El Puente 

Hispano and hold The Concord International Festival on October 2, 2021; 
and 

WHEREAS, this event will require the temporary closing of Cabarrus Ave 
(SR 1002) between Market St., SW and Church St., S. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Concord, North Carolina, that Cabarrus Ave (SR 1002) between Market St., SW and 
Church St., S be closed to vehicular traffic on October 2, 2021 between the hours of 
8:00 A.M. and 8:00 P.M. 

City will place signage as appropriate advising the Public of the closing. 
 

A copy of this Ordinance shall be forwarded to the local NCDOT Division 
Office. Adopted this 12th day of August, 2021. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

190



191



August 10, 2021

Conceptual Master Plan
J.E. “Jim” Ramseur Park
City of Concord, North Carolina

192



AgendaAgenda

 Master Plan Process

 Site Analysis

 Public Survey Results

 Concepts

 Master Plan

 Next Steps

 Open Discussion (Q&A)

193



J.E. “Jim” Ramseur Park 

Master Plan Process
194



Discovery and Assessment

YOUR TITLE 03

Research & Analysis

Communications 
Committee #1

Public  
Survey

Focus 
Group 

Meetings
Public 

Meeting #1

Needs Assessment

Envision and Planning

Conceptual 
Design (s)

Communications 
Committee #2

Public 
Meeting #2

Preliminary Master Plan

Public Website
(preliminary 
master plan)

Final Master 
Plan

City Council 
Adoption

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n

Pr
oj

ec
t K

ic
ko

ff

Public Steering Committee Planning Team

We 
Are 

Here 

JIM RAMSEUR PARK MASTER PLAN PROCESS

195



J.E. “Jim” Ramseur Park 

Site Analysis 
196



Map focusing on the 
property, including 
photography of the 
site’s character and 
unique features 

Aerial 
Map

197



Map is focusing on 
the boundaries of 
potential 
jurisdictional 
wetlands and 
waters of the U.S. 
by a field review of 
the property on 
August 31, 2020

Wetlands 
Map 

Wetlands 
(+/- 11.2 Acres)

198



Map showing 
natural and man-
made features 
on and around 
the property 

Composite
Analysis Map

199



Suitability
Map

• High: Easier and more 
accessible land to develop

• Medium: Less accessible 
and more challenging land 
to develop

• Low: Limited opportunity 
to develop due to 
easements, agency 
regulations or difficult 
environmental conditions

H

M

L

Map showing levels of 
suitability blended from the 
aerial and composite map. 

200



ODELL         
SPORTS FIELDS

HIGHLAND 
CREEK 

SUBDIVISION

CABARRUS CO. SOIL & 
WATER CONSERVATION

COX MILL HIGH 
SCHOOL

COX MILL 
ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

PARK VIEW at 
COX MILL 

(Proposed)

GRANARY OAKS 
SUBDIVISION

EDENTON at 
COX MILL 

SUBDIVISION

Potential Trail 
Connectivity

CHRISTENBURY 
SUBDIVISION

WINDING WALK 
SUBDIVISION

ALLEN MILLS

201



J.E. “Jim” Ramseur Park 

Public Survey Results
202



Northwest Community Park
• 2016 Comprehensive Parks and Recreation Master Plan

• Serve the City with a new community park in the northwest
• PROGRAMMING ASSESSMENT

• Potential programs needs supporting a community park:

• FACILTIES ASSESSMENT
• Potential facilities needs supporting a community park:

• Active sports
• Environmental facilities
• Indoor recreation center
• Greenway trails
• Splash pad

– Outdoor Programs
» Youth Sports
» Nature-Based /  Environmental *
» Water Based Activities

* New Position for Director of  
Environmental Education programs

– Indoor Programs 
» Arts/ Crafts
» Indoor Courts
» Indoor Fitness/ Therapeutic
» Family & Multigenerational

203



Public Online 
Survey

The team developed a public online survey to seek community input for the project’s 
desired wants/ needs in fall 2020. In addition, the team held a drop-in workshop onsite 
to assist in the needs for the programming for the proposed park.  This information was 
used to guide the development of the two (2) current conceptual site designs.

SAMPLE QUESTIONS FROM THE SURVEY (www.publicinput.com/concord)

204



1st Public 
Online Survey

Results

The following are the results 
from the 1st public online survey 
on the vote for OUTDOOR / 
INDOOR leisure activities and 
recreation programming 
wants/needs they would like to 
see at the new park. Highlighted 
are the top 10.  

1ST SURVEY RESULTS (closed 10/18/20)

Full survey 
participants = 

+/- 1000
Total write in 
comments = 

+/- 500

205



2nd Public 
Online Survey

Results

2nd SURVEY RESULTS (Top 5 needs)The following are the results 
from the 1st public online survey 
on the vote for OUTDOOR / 
INDOOR leisure activities and 
recreation programming 
wants/needs they would like to 
see at the new park. 

2nd survey 
participants = 

+/- 190

206



J.E. “Jim” Ramseur Park 

Concepts
207



First Survey Top 4 (closed 10/18/20) Focus Group Ideas (Fall 2020)

1. Walking/Jogging/Hiking/Biking/Nature Trails 1. Basketball/Open Gym/Volleyball
• Recreation Forest Space

2. Playground (Traditional + Adventure) 2. Walking/Jogging Track • Demonstration Garden(s) + Outdoor Ed.
3. Outdoor Court (Tennis/Pickleball, Basketball) 3. Indoor Fitness limited – no equipment • Nature Center
4. Splash Pad 4. Arts/Crafts/Cultural Art • Open Space

• Trails
• Themed Playground

Second Survey Top 5 (closed 11/10/20) • Basketball Court(s) (Indoor & Outdoor)
• Cultural Arts
• Indoor Classrooms (i.e. Cooking, Fitness, 

Cultural Classes)
1. Greenways/Trails/Boardwalks 1. Indoor Gym (Basketball, Volleyball, Pickleball, etc. • Space for Children & Students & Special Needs
2. Adventure/Obstacle Playground 2. Walking/Jogging Track • Community Event Space
3. Open Lawn/Event Space 3. Community/Multi-Purpose Room • Splash Pads
4. Splash Pad 4. Classroom Space (Arts & Crafts, Camps, etc.) • Athletic Courts & Fields
5. Traditional Playground+ Adventure) 5. Activity Studio (Dance, Gymnastics, Karate, etc.) • Picnic Shelters

• Accessible
• Rec Center
• Disc Golf
• Indoor Multi-Sport
• Senior Center (Cabarrus County)
• Library/ ”Book Vending Machine”
• Dog Park
• Meeting/Event Facility

Community 
Center 

Concept

The following lists are the top programming results/ ideas that were received through the 
various online public project surveys and focus groups during the project’s discovery and 
assessment stage which drove the programming for the design concepts.  

• Highlighted blue items are applied in the concept 

• Red / strikethrough  items are not included in the concept

A

B

C
Top Outdoor Programming Results Top Indoor Programming Results 

Top Outdoor / Indoor Programming Results 

Top Outdoor Programming Results Top Indoor Programming Results 

PROGRAMMING- TOP ITEMS MET: 15

PR0GRAMMING
WORKSHEET

208



# legend
police substation (6,000 SF) - +/- 15 
cars

splash pad w/ restroom/ pavilions

one-way drive/parking - +/- 150 spaces

open lawn/ event space (300’ x 150’)

traditional playground w/ restroom 
/pavilions

amphitheater /  classroom/  seating

outdoor education / programming 
areas w/ pavilion shelters

environmental / multi-use space/ 
community center (20,000 SF)

greenway trail / boardwalks

dog park

maintenance area

pickleball / sport court / restroom/ 
pavilion

Community Center 
Concept

10

11

1

46 2

35

11

12

8

7

10

1
2

5
6

8

10

3
4

7

9

Planned trails connection to 
Cabarrus Co. Soils and 

Water Conservation property

Potential dedicated open 
space / trail from “future” 

development 

Potential vehicular/ 
pedestrian connection to 

“future” development 

Planned 
pedestrian 
connection 
to school

Potential vehicular/ 
connection to school

Planned trails connection 
to “future” Clarke Creek 
Greenway and Highland 
Creek subdivision and 

Odell Fields

129

Wetlands

100 Year 
Floodplain

209



PR0GRAMMING
WORKSHEET

First Survey Top 4 (closed 10/18/20) Focus Group Ideas (Fall 2020)

1. Walking/Jogging/Hiking/Biking/Nature Trails 1. Basketball/Open Gym/Volleyball
• Recreation Forest Space

2. Playground (Traditional + Adventure) 2. Walking/Jogging Track • Demonstration Garden(s) + Outdoor Ed.
3. Outdoor Court (Tennis/Pickleball, Basketball) 3. Indoor Fitness • Nature Center
4. Splash Pad 4. Arts/Crafts/Cultural Art • Open Space

• Trails
• Themed Playground

Second Survey Top 5 (closed 11/10/20) • Basketball Court(s) (Indoor & Outdoor)
• Cultural Arts
• Indoor Classrooms (i.e. Cooking, Fitness, 

Cultural Classes)
1. Greenways/Trails/Boardwalks 1. Indoor Gym (Basketball, Volleyball, Pickleball, etc.) • Space for Children & Students & Special Needs
2. Adventure/Obstacle Playground 2. Walking/Jogging Track • Community Event Space
3. Open Lawn/Event Space 3. Community/Multi-Purpose Room • Splash Pads
4. Splash Pad 4. Classroom Space (Arts & Crafts, Camps, etc.) • Athletic Courts & Fields
5. Traditional Playground + Adventure) 5. Activity Studio (Dance, Gymnastics, Karate, etc.) • Picnic Shelters

• Accessible
• Rec Center
• Disc Golf
• Indoor Multi-Sport
• Senior Center (Cabarrus County)
• Library/ ”Book Vending Machine”
• Dog Park
• Meeting Event/ Facility
• Tennis / Pickleball (Indoor/Outdoor)

The following lists are the top programming results/ ideas that were received through the 
various online public project surveys and focus groups during the project’s discovery and 
assessment stage which drove the programming for the design concepts. 

• Highlighted blue items are applied in the concept 

• Red / strikethrough  items are not included in the concept

A

B

C
Top Outdoor Programming Results Top Indoor Programming Results 

Top Outdoor / Indoor Programming Results 

Top Outdoor Programming Results Top Indoor Programming Results 

Recreation 
Center 

Concept
PROGRAMMING- TOP ITEMS MET: 20

210



# legend
recreation center  (+/- 40,000 SF) 

open lawn/ event space (150’ circle) 

basketball (½ courts) w/ pavilion

police substation (6,000 SF) - +/- 25 
cars

parking ( +/- 200 spaces)

maintenance area

outdoor education / programming 
area 

splash pad w/ restroom/ pavilion

adventure / obstacle playground

greenway trail / boardwalks

Indoor/ outdoor education 
classroom/ programming areas w/ 
pavilion shelters

Recreation Center 
Concept

1
2

5
6

8

10

3
4

7

9

1
3

4

7

2

5

6

8

10

Planned trails connection to 
Cabarrus Co. Soils and 

Water Conservation property

Potential dedicated open 
space / trail from “future” 

development 

Potential vehicular/ 
pedestrian connection to 

“future” development 

Planned 
pedestrian 
connection 
to school

Potential 
vehicular/ 

connection to 
school

Planned trails connection 
to “future” Clarke Creek 
Greenway and Highland 
Creek subdivision and 

Odell Fields 11

11

9

100 Year 
Floodplain

Wetlands

211



J.E. “Jim” Ramseur Park 

Master Plan
212



3rd Public Online 
Survey
Results

75%

79%

71%

Open Recreation/Fitness (Open to
the public, no registration)

City Programmed Recreation,
Activities & Events (Registration

required)

Reservations

In the Northwest Park, how important is the availability of 
INDOOR spaces for your household?

(152 responses)

79% 73% 71% 71% 68% 62% 54%
40%

24%
Nature Center /

Community
Room

Multi-Activity
Court (Pickleball,

Soccer, etc.)

Running Track Group Fitness
Studio

Gymnasiums Reservable Event
Space (10-49
attendees)

Art Classroom Reservable Event
Space (50-99
attendees)

Reservable Event
Space (100+
attendees)

How important are the following INDOOR spaces to your 
household? (167 responses)

Very Important (50 %)
Important (25%)

Very Important (47%)
Important (32%)

Very Important (18%)
Important (53%)

213



56%

33%

8% 3%

Consider both types Adventure-style Traditional No preference

Outdoor Playground Preferences
(192 responses)

26% 25%
21% 21%

7%

Tennis Basketball Pickleball No preference I prefer indoor courts

Outdoor Courts Preference 
(190 responses)

3rd Public Online 
Survey
Results

214



3rd Public Online Survey
Results

35%

25%
19% 18%

2%
Flexible Open Space
(Outdoor Open Play,

Events, etc.)

Nature Preserve Dog Park Activity Zones
(Shelters, Outdoor

Games, etc.)

Other

Which additional OUTDOOR amenities is most important 
to your household? 

(187 responses)

With the write-in comments, the participants wrote preferred comments 
for the following options:

• Recreation Center - 41 preferred comments (78%)

• Community Center - 11 preferred comments (22%)

3rd survey participants = 
+/- 190

Total write in comments = 
+/- 70

215



Outdoor Court Area w/ Pavilion
216



Open Lawn

217



Recreation 
Center

Small 
Playground

10ft Multi-Use Trail

Stage

Drop OffAccessible 
Parking

Plaza

Potential Offsite 
Pedestrian Access

Open Lawn/ 
Event Area

Oval Perimeter 
Walk

Food Trucks

Park Drive

Potential Offsite 
Vehicular Access

218



219



Courts

220



Pickleball / 
Tennis Courts

Restrooms / 
Pavilion 

Plaza

Evergreen 
Screening

10ft Multi-Use Trail
½ Basketball 

Court 

Park Entrance

Parking
(+/- 200 Cars)

Parking
(+/- 40 Cars)

Cox Mill 
Elementary 

Property

CO
X M

ILL RO
AD

Open Lawn/ 
Event Area

221



222



Adventure
Playground

223



Recreation 
Center

10ft 
Multi-Use 

Trail

Plaza

Accessible & 
On-street Parking

Parking
(+/- 200 Cars)

Nature 
Trails

Outdoor 
Classroom

Treetop 
Walk

Outdoor 
Education 

Shelter

Wetlands

Boardwalk

Stream Channel

Pavilion 
Adventure 
Playground 

Obstacle 
Playground/ 

Zipline 

Viewing 
Deck(s)

Educational 
Gardens

Restrooms / 
Pavilion 

Splashpad 

Trail to 
County’s 
Property

224



225



Police Station  / 
Maintenance 

Areas

226



Access To 
Odell Sports 

Fields

10ft Multi-Use Trail

Maintenance 
Area

Potential Connection 
to Future Clarks Creek 

Greenway 

Stream Channel / 
Buffer

Parking
(+/- 200 Cars

Parking
(+/- 50 Cars)

Vehicular 
Access To 

Existing Drive

Cox Mill Elementary School 
Open Field/ Walking Track

Police 
Station

Service

ODELL         
SPORTS 
FIELDS 227



Recreation 
CenterRecreation Center

228



Recreation Center
DiagramsSTREET LEVEL - MAIN ENTRANCE 

229



LOWER “SUNKEN” LEVEL
Recreation Center

Diagrams

230



231



232



233



Optional Dog 
Park

Dog Park Alternative

234



Police 
Station

Optional Dog 
Park

Police Station 
Attached Alternative

Reduced 
Open Space

235



Recreation Center
DiagramsSTREET LEVEL - MAIN ENTRANCE 

Potential Police 
Station SF Addition

236



LOWER “SUNKEN” LEVEL

Potential Police 
Station SF Addition

Above

Sally Port 
(garage)

Recreation Center
Diagrams

237



Trails

238



Trails
Boardwalk/Bridge

Boardwalk/ 
Pedestrian 

Bridge

(1200 LF)

239



Boardwalk/ 
Pedestrian 

Bridge

10ft Multi-
Use Trail

(6500 LF or 1.23 Miles)

Trails
Greenway

240



Boardwalk/ 
Pedestrian 

Bridge

10ft Multi-
Use Trail

Concrete 
Sidewalk

(5600 LF or 1.06 Miles)

Trails
Sidewalk

241



PR0GRAMMING
WORKSHEET

First Survey Top 4 (closed 10/18/20) Focus Group Ideas (Fall 2020)

1. Walking/Jogging/Hiking/Biking/Nature Trails 1. Basketball/Open Gym/Volleyball
• Recreation Forest Space

2. Playground (Traditional + Adventure) 2. Walking/Jogging Track • Demonstration Garden(s) + Outdoor Ed.
3. Outdoor Courts (Tennis, Pickleball, Basketball) 3. Indoor Fitness • Nature Center
4. Splash Pad 4. Arts/Crafts/Cultural Art • Open Space

• Trails
• Themed Playground

Second Survey Top 5 (closed 11/10/20) • Basketball Court(s) (Indoor & Outdoor)
• Cultural Arts
• Indoor Classrooms (i.e. Cooking, Fitness, 

Cultural Classes)
1. Greenways/Trails/Boardwalks 1. Indoor Gym (Basketball, Volleyball, Pickleball, etc.) • Space for Children & Students & Special Needs
2. Adventure/Obstacle Playground 2. Walking/Jogging Track • Community Event Space
3. Open Lawn/Event Space 3. Community/Multi-Purpose Room • Splash Pads
4. Splash Pad 4. Classroom Space (Arts & Crafts, Camps, etc.) • Athletic Courts & Fields
5. Playground (Traditional + Adventure) 5. Activity Studio (Dance, Gymnastics, Karate, etc.) • Picnic Shelters

• Accessible
• Rec Center
• Disc Golf
• Indoor Multi-Sport
• Senior Center (Cabarrus County)
• Library/ ”Book Vending Machine”
• Dog Park (option w/o PS)
• Meeting Event/ Facility
• Pickleball/Tennis

The following lists are the top programming results/ ideas that were received through the 
various online public project surveys and focus groups during the project’s discovery and 
assessment stage which drove the programming for the design concepts. 

• Highlighted blue items are applied in the concept 

• Red / strikethrough  items are not included in the concept

A

B

C
Top Outdoor Programming Results Top Indoor Programming Results 

Top Outdoor / Indoor Programming Results 

Top Outdoor Programming Results Top Indoor Programming Results 

Final 
ConceptPROGRAMMING- TOP ITEMS MET: 22 (23 w/ Dog Park Option)

242



J.E. “Jim” Ramseur Park 

Next Steps
243



JIM RAMSEUR  PARK  PLAN  DEVELOPMENT  PROCESS

Schematic 
Design

Schematic Design

Client Meetings

Construction Documents, Bidding and  
Construction

Programming /  
Due Diligence

“R
IB

BO
N

 C
UT

TIN
G

” 
O

pe
ni

ng

M
as

te
r P

la
n 

A
pp

ro
ve

d

Design 
Development

Client Meetings Client / Contractors Meetings

Design Development Construction Documents

Materials / Renderings
Permitting

Bidding
Construction 
Observation

Construction

Aug to Nov
2021

Nov 2021 to 
Summer 2022

To Be Determined 

We Are Here 

Council 
Briefings

Council 
Briefings

Council 
Briefings

*Addendum No. 2

244



J.E. “Jim” Ramseur Park 

Questions
245



JIM RAMSEUR  PARK  PLAN  DEVELOPMENT  PROCESS

Schematic 
Design

Schematic Design

Client Meetings

Construction Documents, Bidding and  
Construction

Programming /  
Due Diligence

“R
IB

BO
N

 C
UT

TIN
G

” 
O

pe
ni

ng

M
as

te
r P

la
n 

A
pp

ro
ve

d

Design 
Development

Client Meetings Client / Contractors Meetings

Design Development Construction Documents

Materials / Renderings
Permitting

Bidding
Construction 
Observation

Construction

Aug to Nov
2021

Nov 2021 to 
Summer 2022

To Be Determined 

We Are Here 

Council 
Briefings

Council 
Briefings

Council 
Briefings

*Addendum No. 2

246



247



248



249



250



251



252



253



254



Reinhausen Manufacturing Inc., 2549 North 9th Avenue, Humboldt, TN 38343

City of Concord
Concord North Carolina
PO Box 308
Concord NC  28026

Dear Sir or Madam,

We thank you for your above mentioned inquiry and offer - based on the conditions stated below - as
specified on the following pages.

NOTE:
A $5,000.00 discount per project will be given For multiple projects ordered

______________________________________________________________________________________

Item Material no. Designation

Qty. Unit of measure Price (USD) / Unit Value (USD)
______________________________________________________________________________________

1 MREXPENSEF EXPENSES - FLAT
1 PU

Note sales Expenses prices are calculated based on the
normal duration of the works according the scope
of work.  If additional time is needed for extra
activities such as safety training, special labor or
weather delays, additional expenses would be
charged at the correspondent daily rates.

2 MRSERVICEF SERVICE - FLAT MR0000000
1 PU

Equipment Description: Dummy Equipment Service

Reinhausen Manufacturing Inc.  Phone +1 (731) 784-7681         President:   Bernhard Kurth Reinhausen Group
2549 North 9th Avenue  Fax     +1 (731) 784-7682
Humboldt, TN 38343  www.reinhausen.com

Regions Bank    Account: 7510125407 ABA number: 062005690 Swift Code: UPNBUS44 Federal Id # 62-1413391

Offer 10410924

Contact person Wayne Brewster
E-mail w.brewster@us.reinhausen.com

Phone +1-731-562-4152
Fax +1-731-784-7682
Your inquiry Email

Date of inquiry 05/06/2021

Project MRC012155 Set RMT-I-13/3

Notification 300519009
Your customer no 751906

Date 05/20/2021
Page 1 / 17

255



City of Concord

PO Box 308

Concord NC  28026

______________________________________________________________________________________

Item Material no. Designation

Qty. Unit of measure Price (USD) / Unit Value (USD)
______________________________________________________________________________________

General:

Service type Product replacement

Number of employees 2

Number of days for the service 4 Day(s)

Production resources / tools Automobile

Production resources / tools Lifting device RMT

Production resources / tools Lifting device UTT-LTX

Note sales Depending upon the findings of the technician, a
return trip may be necessary in order to correct
any issues which may be discovered.  A return trip
would be billed to the customer at the applicable
rate.  (Per RM Rate Sheet).

Prices do not include Special Labor or Site Specific
Safety Rules or Special Customer Requirements
for this type of work.  If there are specific
requirements, please let us know wo we can we
can review and revise the offer accordingly (if
needed).

Extra time, such as Safety Training or Special
Customer Requirements will be billed at the
appropriate crew and equipment rates.
Delays beyond the control of RM, including
weather, will be billed at appropriate crew and
equipment rates.

10 79920000 Transformer Services
1 PU

Type Service: Maintenance / repair / inspection / modification
Equipment:

Travelling costs and allowances are not included and will be charged
separately.

Place of work:
Period of service provision:

20 SETRM Set consisting of
following items 30 to 40:
ON-LOAD TAP-CHANGER VACUTAP® UTT-LTX: UTT-LTX-1320-15
Reactor-type tap-changer Accessories

1 Pcs

General:

Reinhausen Manufacturing Inc.  Phone +1 (731) 784-7681         President:   Bernhard Kurth Reinhausen Group
2549 North 9th Avenue  Fax     +1 (731) 784-7682
Humboldt, TN 38343  www.reinhausen.com

Regions Bank    Account: 7510125407 ABA number: 062005690 Swift Code: UPNBUS44 Federal Id # 62-1413391

Document number Page

10410924 2 / 17

256



City of Concord

PO Box 308

Concord NC  28026

______________________________________________________________________________________

Item Material no. Designation

Qty. Unit of measure Price (USD) / Unit Value (USD)
______________________________________________________________________________________

Ambient temperature -25°C...+50°C

Language of drawings English

Language of nameplates and decals English

Painting exterior Finish, gray ANSI #70

Painting LTC tank, interior Primer, gray, catalyzed epoxy

Quantity of operation instructions for the
transformer-operator

1

Language of operating instructions for the
transformer-operator

English

Transformer data:

Type of transformer Separate winding transformer

Number of phases for transformer(s) 3-phase

Mode of operation Network application

Rated power of transformer 27.00 MVA

Capacity RCBN

Frequency 60.00 Hz

Insulating medium (Transformer) Mineral oil

Electrical connection of tapped winding Star, in neutral

Range of regulation "PLUS" [%] 10.00

Range of regulation "MINUS" [%] 10.00

Regulated voltage 13.20 kV

Vector connection regulated voltage Y

Constant voltage 43.80 kV

Vector connection constant voltage D

Number of electrical steps 32

Induction of tapped transformer constant

Type of change-over selector Reversing change-over selector

Max voltage between Utap-tap 95.30 V

Max. rated through current 1,181.00 A

Voltages:

Test voltages according to Technical Data

30 BRMUT000 ON-LOAD TAP-CHANGER VACUTAP® UTT-LTX:
UTT-LTX-1320-15

1 Pcs

40 BRMVAC00 Reactor-type tap-changer Accessories
1 Pcs

Design:

Tap changer design 33 positions / 32 steps

Number of positions 33

Reinhausen Manufacturing Inc.  Phone +1 (731) 784-7681         President:   Bernhard Kurth Reinhausen Group
2549 North 9th Avenue  Fax     +1 (731) 784-7682
Humboldt, TN 38343  www.reinhausen.com

Regions Bank    Account: 7510125407 ABA number: 062005690 Swift Code: UPNBUS44 Federal Id # 62-1413391

Document number Page

10410924 3 / 17

257



City of Concord

PO Box 308

Concord NC  28026

______________________________________________________________________________________

Item Material no. Designation

Qty. Unit of measure Price (USD) / Unit Value (USD)
______________________________________________________________________________________

Designation of positions 16L...N...16R

Position with maximum number of turns 16R

Accessories:

Lead assembly complete

Storage Tank with

This Storage Tank is to be returned by customer to Reinhausen Manufacturing upon completion of work.
50 D04033 Returnable Storage Tank

1 Pcs

60 1001535400 DRIVE SHAFTS FOR UTT-LTX
1 Pcs

Drive shafts:

Painting ANSI 70, Light gray

Corrosion resistance C4H in accordance with ISO 12944-2 (2018)
Coating for exterior applications with duration of
protection up to 25 years
Typical environments: Industrial areas and marine
areas with moderate salt pollution.

1 horizontal shaft H1 =
with guard plate + mounting material

400 mm

1 vertical shaft V1 =
with mounting material

400 mm

70 1001535300 TAPMOTION ED200L FOR UTT-LTX
1 Pcs

80 77421300 MPreC 10psi / 685-SM10NS1A1LM
1 Pcs

Product MPREC® Pressure relief device

Article designation LMPRD-10psi

Pickup pressure 10 psi / 68.9 kPa / 0.69 bar

Number of micro-switches 1

Micro-switch-design per microswitch 1x NO, 1x NC galvanically
insulated

Max. continuous current 10.0 A

Switching capacity 24V DC to 220V DC
Making capacity 130W L/R < 40 ms
Breaking capacity 25W L/R < 40 ms
230V AC
Making capacity 250VA cos  > 0,5
Breaking capacity 60VA cos  > 0,5

Insulation test voltage 2,5kV AC / 1min.

Electrical connection ANSI, 3 pin, 1 switch

Reinhausen Manufacturing Inc.  Phone +1 (731) 784-7681         President:   Bernhard Kurth Reinhausen Group
2549 North 9th Avenue  Fax     +1 (731) 784-7682
Humboldt, TN 38343  www.reinhausen.com

Regions Bank    Account: 7510125407 ABA number: 062005690 Swift Code: UPNBUS44 Federal Id # 62-1413391

Document number Page

10410924 4 / 17

258



City of Concord

PO Box 308

Concord NC  28026

______________________________________________________________________________________

Item Material no. Designation

Qty. Unit of measure Price (USD) / Unit Value (USD)
______________________________________________________________________________________

Gasket material NBR for mineral insulating oils

Color of indicator pin red (for NBR-Gasket)

Type Standard-cover

Bleed screw provided

Cover material Aluminium

Color powder coated RAL 7038

Semaphore provided (color yellow)

Protection class IP65

Ambient temperature -40°C ... +80°C

Quantity of operation instructions for the
transformer-manufacturer

1

Language of operating instructions for the
transformer-manufacturer

English

90 74887900 ANSI FEM.CONN.+CABLE_3PIN_300"
1 Pcs

100 SERVICERM Spare part(s) / Modification:
MESSKO PRD MOUNTING HARDWARE

1 Pcs

General:

Corresponding message 300518102

Corresponding equipment number MRC012155

Corresponding product Messko-Products

Component assembly, detail PRD mounting hardware

110 77012002 MTO-1FOOOA0516G1CALORA059C0200
1 Pcs

Product MTO-oil level indicator

Article designation MTO-STF160/1CO/RM

Switching capacity 15A/250VAC or 0.25A/220VDC

Indicator:

Housing RAL 7038 standard achat grey

Term. cover/inscription color USA version yellow

Dial markings HI (70°)

-- +25°C (0°)

-- LO (-35°)

Number limit switches 1

Switch type not adjustable

Switching mark -35°

Analogue / digital output not provided

Switching point K1 not provided

Reinhausen Manufacturing Inc.  Phone +1 (731) 784-7681         President:   Bernhard Kurth Reinhausen Group
2549 North 9th Avenue  Fax     +1 (731) 784-7682
Humboldt, TN 38343  www.reinhausen.com

Regions Bank    Account: 7510125407 ABA number: 062005690 Swift Code: UPNBUS44 Federal Id # 62-1413391

Document number Page

10410924 5 / 17

259



City of Concord

PO Box 308

Concord NC  28026

______________________________________________________________________________________

Item Material no. Designation

Qty. Unit of measure Price (USD) / Unit Value (USD)
______________________________________________________________________________________

Electrical connection ANSI connector

Flange:

Special option not provided

mounting flange RM

Type of drive Radial, straight design

Support tube length 59 mm

Float:

Float design Radial, RM design, cylindrical float, brass rod

Length of rod 200 mm

Protection class IP55

Ambient temperature -40°C ... +70°C

Dial code 0516

Quantity of operation instructions for the
transformer-manufacturer

1

Language of operating instructions for the
transformer-manufacturer

English

120 74887900 ANSI FEM.CONN.+CABLE_3PIN_300"
1 Pcs

130 77138800 RM- GASKET (OIL GAGE) 50114100
1 Pcs

140 40007400 HEXAGON HEAD SCREW
4 Pcs

150 1012982600 SEALING WASHER TYPE A
4 Pcs

160 1012689900 MTRAB-1SAA4NTLPNNNNN03
1 Pcs

Product MTRAB® Dehydrating Breather

Article designation DB100RM (OLTC/LTC)

Design DB100

Voltage / Design 120 V

Control Alpha control

Analog output signal 2x 4-20mA

Test button provided

Terminal box RAL 7038 achat grey

Electrical connection 3x ½" - 14NPT

Special design no special option

Supply voltage 120 V AC / DC - 480 W

Reinhausen Manufacturing Inc.  Phone +1 (731) 784-7681         President:   Bernhard Kurth Reinhausen Group
2549 North 9th Avenue  Fax     +1 (731) 784-7682
Humboldt, TN 38343  www.reinhausen.com

Regions Bank    Account: 7510125407 ABA number: 062005690 Swift Code: UPNBUS44 Federal Id # 62-1413391

Document number Page

10410924 6 / 17

260



City of Concord

PO Box 308

Concord NC  28026

______________________________________________________________________________________

Item Material no. Designation

Qty. Unit of measure Price (USD) / Unit Value (USD)
______________________________________________________________________________________

Power 480 W

Signaling contact 1x Change-over for device malfunction
1x Change-over for silica heating

mechanical installation Oval flange acc. to DIN 2558
80x45mm, 2 holes ø11.5mm on a PCDø55mm
including a paper gasket

Protection class IP66/67

Ambient temperature 0°C to +70°C

Quantity of operation instructions for the
transformer-manufacturer

1

Language of operating instructions for the
transformer-manufacturer

English

170 77251301 CIRCUIT BREAKER SIEMENS 1 POLE 15 AMP, D
1 Pcs

180 58190501 END CLAMP
2 Pcs

190 77115500 DIN RAIL PERFORATED - NS 35/ 7,5
4 "

200 RMMATERIAL SERVICE MATERIAL FOR OLTC MR0000000
1 Pcs

Equipment Description: Dummy Equipment Service

General:

Corresponding equipment number MR0000000

Note sales Re-stocking fee:
For  $1,000: $375 (base price)
For > $1,000: $375 + 20% of the amount above
$1,000
**ITEMS WITH MATERIAL NUMBER SET,
SETRM, SETERSATZ, SERVICERM OR BRMEL
CANNOT BE RETURNED**

Items shipped (parts, tools, fixtures, etc) are not
prepared for storage in unheated buildings or
outdoors.
For this reason, such items must be stored in a
moisture-free, dry, & clean environment.

270 79970000 FLEETSCAN2D
1 Pcs

Reinhausen Manufacturing Inc.  Phone +1 (731) 784-7681         President:   Bernhard Kurth Reinhausen Group
2549 North 9th Avenue  Fax     +1 (731) 784-7682
Humboldt, TN 38343  www.reinhausen.com

Regions Bank    Account: 7510125407 ABA number: 062005690 Swift Code: UPNBUS44 Federal Id # 62-1413391

Document number Page

10410924 7 / 17

261



City of Concord

PO Box 308

Concord NC  28026

______________________________________________________________________________________

Item Material no. Designation

Qty. Unit of measure Price (USD) / Unit Value (USD)
______________________________________________________________________________________

Flat rate.
Type of diagnosis: "Description and requirements"

Including working time, measuring device(s) and written report and
recommended action.

Necessary preparations to be done by the customer:
The transformer must be de-energized and disconnected on all sides in
accordance with valid safety regulations.

A 100-240 VAC / 50-60Hz / 16 A power supply must be available for the
measuring device.

The customer must provide a manlift for access to the bushings if they
are not accessible from the ground.

Reinhausen Manufacturing Inc.  Phone +1 (731) 784-7681         President:   Bernhard Kurth Reinhausen Group
2549 North 9th Avenue  Fax     +1 (731) 784-7682
Humboldt, TN 38343  www.reinhausen.com

Regions Bank    Account: 7510125407 ABA number: 062005690 Swift Code: UPNBUS44 Federal Id # 62-1413391

Document number Page

10410924 8 / 17

262



City of Concord

PO Box 308

Concord NC  28026

______________________________________________________________________________________

Item Material no. Designation

Qty. Unit of measure Price (USD) / Unit Value (USD)
______________________________________________________________________________________

"Flatrate, including:
Evaluation of provided data and final report.
The evaluation contains condition assessment based to the 2-index MR method. The result shows all
transformers with regard to their failure risk and their remaining lifetime. In addition to the illustration of the
complete transformer fleet the report also will display the result of each single transformer including
recommended action.

Please provide minimum the following data:
- Oil analysis (DGA and chemical) not older than 1 year
- Oil analysis history (older reports)
- Service reports (Tap-changer and Transformer)
- some photos of the transformer
and if available:
- results of electrical measurements
- raw photos of thermography
- other technical information

The evaluation and creating the report will take about 4 weeks, after all required data was received."

"Disclaimer

Rights of use
The customer hereby grants MR and its affiliated companies (in accordance with §§ 15et seqq. AktG ,
German Companies Act) a non-exclusive, irrevocable, transferable, perpetual, worldwide and unrestricted
right to use the technical data and documents for all types of use free of charge, in particular to use the
technical data and documents internally and externally in whole or in part, online or offline, and to modify, to
duplicate and to combine them with other data, to distribute and/or to publish them in an anonymized form
and/or to use them in the process of developing products and services; this also applies to the customer data
collected by MR and/or its affiliates.

Warranty and liability
The analysis results exclusively refer to the collected data and/or to the technical data and information
provided by the customer (if any). The analysis results as well as the interpretation and recommendation
derived hereof are provided to the best of MR´s knowledge on the basis of the current state of the art
technology. MR assumes no warranty, guaranty and/or liability, expressed or implied, for any effects on field
devices, processes, workflows by using the analysis results and/or for measures derived from the analysis
results.

© All rights reserved by Maschinenfabrik Reinhausen GmbH 2020
Dissemination and reproduction of this document and use and disclosure of its content are strictly prohibited
unless expressly permitted. Infringements will result in liability for compensation. All rights reserved in the
event of the granting of patents, utility models or designs."

Reinhausen Manufacturing Inc.  Phone +1 (731) 784-7681         President:   Bernhard Kurth Reinhausen Group
2549 North 9th Avenue  Fax     +1 (731) 784-7682
Humboldt, TN 38343  www.reinhausen.com

Regions Bank    Account: 7510125407 ABA number: 062005690 Swift Code: UPNBUS44 Federal Id # 62-1413391

Document number Page

10410924 9 / 17

263



City of Concord

PO Box 308

Concord NC  28026

______________________________________________________________________________________

Item Material no. Designation

Qty. Unit of measure Price (USD) / Unit Value (USD)
______________________________________________________________________________________

Reinhausen Manufacturing Inc.  Phone +1 (731) 784-7681         President:   Bernhard Kurth Reinhausen Group
2549 North 9th Avenue  Fax     +1 (731) 784-7682
Humboldt, TN 38343  www.reinhausen.com

Regions Bank    Account: 7510125407 ABA number: 062005690 Swift Code: UPNBUS44 Federal Id # 62-1413391

Document number Page

10410924 10 / 17

264



City of Concord

PO Box 308

Concord NC  28026

______________________________________________________________________________________

Item Material no. Designation

Qty. Unit of measure Price (USD) / Unit Value (USD)
______________________________________________________________________________________

Reinhausen Manufacturing Inc.  Phone +1 (731) 784-7681         President:   Bernhard Kurth Reinhausen Group
2549 North 9th Avenue  Fax     +1 (731) 784-7682
Humboldt, TN 38343  www.reinhausen.com

Regions Bank    Account: 7510125407 ABA number: 062005690 Swift Code: UPNBUS44 Federal Id # 62-1413391

Document number Page

10410924 11 / 17

265



City of Concord

PO Box 308

Concord NC  28026

______________________________________________________________________________________

Item Material no. Designation

Qty. Unit of measure Price (USD) / Unit Value (USD)
______________________________________________________________________________________

Reinhausen Manufacturing Inc.  Phone +1 (731) 784-7681         President:   Bernhard Kurth Reinhausen Group
2549 North 9th Avenue  Fax     +1 (731) 784-7682
Humboldt, TN 38343  www.reinhausen.com

Regions Bank    Account: 7510125407 ABA number: 062005690 Swift Code: UPNBUS44 Federal Id # 62-1413391

Document number Page

10410924 12 / 17

266



City of Concord

PO Box 308

Concord NC  28026

______________________________________________________________________________________

Item Material no. Designation

Qty. Unit of measure Price (USD) / Unit Value (USD)
______________________________________________________________________________________

280 79920000 Beckwith Controller and Installation
1 PU

Type Service: Maintenance / repair / inspection / modification
Equipment:

Travelling costs and allowances are not included and will be charged
separately.

Place of work:
Period of service provision:

______________________________________________________________________________________

Total of items  159,888.25

Delivery costs  550.43

Final amount  160,438.68

Reinhausen Manufacturing Inc.  Phone +1 (731) 784-7681         President:   Bernhard Kurth Reinhausen Group
2549 North 9th Avenue  Fax     +1 (731) 784-7682
Humboldt, TN 38343  www.reinhausen.com

Regions Bank    Account: 7510125407 ABA number: 062005690 Swift Code: UPNBUS44 Federal Id # 62-1413391

Document number Page

10410924 13 / 17

267



City of Concord

PO Box 308

Concord NC  28026

Reinhausen Manufacturing (RM) will provide non-union labor, crew and equipment to remove existing parts
from existing tap changer in an effort to install an UTT-LTX solution.

RM General Responsibilities:
1. Provide UTT-LTX Parts
2. Provide UTT-LTX Trained Technicians
3. Provide testing of transformer as described
4. Provide Test Equipment
5. Provide Beckwith Controller Model M-2001D and Installation

Scope of Work:
1. Mobilize to Sub H  289 US Hwy 601 Bypass, Concord, NC
2. Perform Pre-Job Brief to Identify Hazards
3. Perform pre-testing of unit as listed:
- TTR in all OLTC positions with DETC in as found
- Winding Power Factor and Capacitance
- Insulation Resistance (Megger)
- Winding Resistance in all OLTC positions with DETC in as found
4. Drain OLTC existing oil into customer provided drums
            - Customer to provide disposal
5. Perform internal disconnect of OLTC leads and components
            - Internal inspection and work within main tank of unit is not included
6. Remove existing OLTC
            - Customer to provide disposal of existing OLTC
7. Install UTT-LTX Solution
8. Perform internal UTT-LTX connections
9. Perform pressure check to ensure no leaks
10. Perform TTR on all OLTC taps with DETC in as found
11. Perform OLTC check-out and testing to include
- Make/Before Break
- Monitoring system operation (trip test)
- Electrical limit verification
- Mechanical limit operation
- Contact engagement
- Correct operation of vacuum interrupter assembly
12. Fill UTT-LTX with customer provided mineral oil - approx. 360 USG
            - Oil to be filled utilizing a filter press
13. Perform control cabinet modifications as required for new UTT-LTX
14. Install new motor drive and wire as required
15. Perform Final Testing as listed:
- Transformer Turns Ratio (TTR)
- DETC in as found tap position
- OLTC all positions
- Winding insulation power factor and capacitance
- Bushing PF and Capacitance (C1/C2)
- Single phase excitation current, with reduced voltage
- Winding Resistance in as found tap position only
- Insulation Resistance (Megger) Core Ground (if accessible)
- Insulation Resistance (Megger)
- Verify Controls and Alarms
- FLIR (to be performed while transformer is energized

Reinhausen Manufacturing Inc.  Phone +1 (731) 784-7681         President:   Bernhard Kurth Reinhausen Group
2549 North 9th Avenue  Fax     +1 (731) 784-7682
Humboldt, TN 38343  www.reinhausen.com

Regions Bank    Account: 7510125407 ABA number: 062005690 Swift Code: UPNBUS44 Federal Id # 62-1413391

Document number Page

10410924 14 / 17

268



City of Concord

PO Box 308

Concord NC  28026

- Operational check of LTC controls
16. Provide redline mark-up of existing wiring drawings
17. Review test results with customer personnel
18. Clean-up site and prepare for demobilization
19. Demobilize from site after approval from customer

Customer s Responsibilities:
1. Provide Clear and Easy access to the transformer
2. Provide to RM UTT-LTX Retrofit parts storage location for shipment and delivery to respective worksite
as required
3. Provide legacy Test Reports; Oil & Electrical
4. Provide Non-PCB Reports
5. Provide Wire Pull and/or Conduit Runs as required
6. Provide Oil Containment (Scrap Drums for old Oil) for waste oil and any/all disposal activities thereof
7. De Energize unit, open switches on both ends, lock out/tag out and provide visible grounds
8. Any and All Site Safety Equipment outside of hardhat, safety shoes & safety glasses
9. Perform any and all Safety Training/Instruction to RM Technician on site and provide RM PPE List prior to
mobilization such that proper PPE can be obtained.
10. Lock-Out/Tag-Out, FME and Confined Space Procedures as site requires
Note: The transformer must be properly grounded, disconnected, and safe guarded against reconnection. All
grounding must be visible.
11. Providing of control power
12. Scaffolding
13. Small crane or boom truck
14. Oil containment for existing OLTC oil and disposal
15. Purchase and delivery of new mineral oil for OLTC - Approx 360 USG
16. Wiring between the transformer control cabinet and control house or any design work of new control
features

Notes/Proposal Options:
1. Price based on one day mobilization to site.
2. Price does not include utilization of existing INCON Devices or similar
3. Price does not include dry-out of existing LTC nor oil
4. Price does not include repair of LTC nor any associated parts as a result of water damage, or other
5. Price does not include repair of existing damaged or worn LTC parts. This will involve additional time and
additional parts
6. Price assumes existing stationary and moveable contacts are in fit-for-duty condition
7. Price does not include welding or leak repairs associated with LTC
8. Prices do not include Special Labor or Site Specific Safety Rules or Requirements for this type of work.  If
there are specific requirements, please forward and we can review.
9. Two Reinhausen LTC specialist and two Transformer specialist working 10 hours per day, 7 days per
week for a period of 4-5 days. Extra time, such as safety training, will be billed at the appropriate crew and
equipment rates.
10. Delays beyond the control of RM, including weather, will be billed at appropriate crew and equipment
rates.
11. Purchaser shall provide communication and sanitation facilities
12. No Provisions have been made for Secondary Oil Containment as may be required for compliance to
local site programs
13. INCO  Terms ( Parts ): Exworks Concord, USA
14. Service dates have yet to be determined

Reinhausen Manufacturing Inc.  Phone +1 (731) 784-7681         President:   Bernhard Kurth Reinhausen Group
2549 North 9th Avenue  Fax     +1 (731) 784-7682
Humboldt, TN 38343  www.reinhausen.com

Regions Bank    Account: 7510125407 ABA number: 062005690 Swift Code: UPNBUS44 Federal Id # 62-1413391

Document number Page

10410924 15 / 17

269



City of Concord

PO Box 308

Concord NC  28026

15. Service (Travel; Work Hours and Expenses) calculated for week days work ONLY. Rates for the
weekend (Saturday, Sundays and Holidays) are different from the one s on this offer  these will be
applicable should work or travel occur on Sundays or Holidays.
17. Taxes, Duties and any other Customs fees are the responsibility of the customer. These charges must
be paid by the customer.
18. Price is US Dollars
20. Terms and Conditions are hereby set forth by Reinhausen Manufacturing Inc.
21. Special tools are required for the installation and assembly of the UTT-LTX Load Tap Changer.
22. ***IMPORTANT*** PARTS MUST BE STORED IN CLIMATE CONTROL ENVIRONTMENT TO
PREVENT ANY SOURCE OF RUST AND CORROSION.

______________________________________________________________________________________

INCOTERMS: EXW Humboldt, TN

Terms of payment: 30 days after date of invoice

Terms of delivery: The delivery and/or service is based on enclosed "REINHAUSEN
MANUFACTURING, INC. STANDARD SALES TERMS AND CONDITIONS".

Validity period: 08/08/2021

Price agreement: The offer with the stipulated prices applies to orders made within the above
mentioned validity period and for deliveries until 12/31/2021

Delivery time: The delivery time is approx. 12 weeks (ex works) after receipt of the order for
which all technical and commercial details have been clarified.

If we can be of any further assistance, please do not hesitate to contact us.

Best regards,

Reinhausen Manufacturing Inc.

This document was computer-generated and does not require a signature.

Reinhausen Manufacturing Inc.  Phone +1 (731) 784-7681         President:   Bernhard Kurth Reinhausen Group
2549 North 9th Avenue  Fax     +1 (731) 784-7682
Humboldt, TN 38343  www.reinhausen.com

Regions Bank    Account: 7510125407 ABA number: 062005690 Swift Code: UPNBUS44 Federal Id # 62-1413391

Document number Page

10410924 16 / 17

270



City of Concord

PO Box 308

Concord NC  28026

Please refer to the attached enclosures as applicable.

Kindly note:
Please settle prospective payments only to one of the below mentioned accounts.

ETOS®. Automation of power transformers - experience digitalization.for yourself

Reinhausen Manufacturing Inc.  Phone +1 (731) 784-7681         President:   Bernhard Kurth Reinhausen Group
2549 North 9th Avenue  Fax     +1 (731) 784-7682
Humboldt, TN 38343  www.reinhausen.com

Regions Bank    Account: 7510125407 ABA number: 062005690 Swift Code: UPNBUS44 Federal Id # 62-1413391

Document number Page

10410924 17 / 17

271



äöüÄÖÜß

10410924

Drawing Version Description Item

5068921 00 UTT- 30

5078778 00 UTT- 30

100161430E 00 UTT- LTX (Standard) 30

2672235 03 Terms and Conditions RM

2792698 03 Service conditions RM

Page  1/1

 Enclosures

272



 

REINHAUSEN MANUFACTURING, INC.  
STANDARD SALES TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
Reinhausen Manufacturing Inc.  Phone +1 731 7847681 Managing Director: Reinhausen Group  Page 1 of 4 
2549 North 9th Avenue, Fax +1 731 7847682 Bernhard Kurth RM_2020_07 
Humboldt, TN 38343, USA  www.reinhausen.com   

Application: The predominant purpose of the transaction set 
forth in the Order Confirmation is for a sale of goods from 
Reinhausen Manufacturing, Inc. (“Seller”) to Buyer and any 
services are merely incidental. To the extent the Order 
Confirmation reflects incidental or non-incidental services, the 
attached Reinhausen Manufacturing, Inc. Standard Service 
Terms and Conditions shall apply in addition to Reinhausen 
Manufacturing, Inc.’s Standard Sales Terms and Conditions.  
 
General:  
 
a. This sale is made, and expressly conditioned on, 

Buyer’s assent to the terms and conditions contained 
herein and no others. Notice of objection is hereby given 
to any different or additional terms and conditions 
whether major or minor in character. Buyer’s 
acceptance of the product or service shall be conclusive 
evidence of Buyer’s assent to the terms and conditions 
contained herein.  

 
b.  This writing is intended as the final, complete and 

exclusive statement of the terms and conditions on 
which this sale is made. This writing supersedes all prior 
written agreements and correspondence and any oral 
agreements or representations made 
contemporaneously herewith.  

 
c.  The terms and conditions contained herein will govern 

all future sales by Seller to Buyer unless otherwise 
agreed by Seller in writing.  

 
d.  Quotations, proposals and other related documents, 

such as drawings, wiring diagrams, etc. and weight 
indications, are not binding upon Seller unless so 
specifically stated in writing. Seller retains exclusive 
ownership and copyrights of all documents. Drawings 
and other documents relating to quotations and/or 
proposals are to be returned without delay on demand if 
order is not placed.  

 
Agreement Documents: The Order Confirmation and any 
attachments are the sole and exclusive agreement of Seller 
and Buyer for the products and services in the Order 
Confirmation, and no other document, will be part of this 
agreement. Terms contained in the Buyer’s response to, or 
acknowledgment or acceptance of, this Order Confirmation, if 
any, that are additional to, or different from, the terms set forth 
herein (which terms would constitute a counter-offer by Buyer) 
are specifically rejected by Seller. Seller’s offer to sell as 
provided in the Order Confirmation may not be modified by 
Buyer’s counter-offers. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if this 
Order Confirmation is deemed an acceptance by Seller of a 
Buyer offer or counter-offer, then such acceptance is 
expressly made conditional on Seller’s assent to all of the 
terms of this Order Confirmation, including those that are 
additional to, or different from, the terms of Buyer’s offer or 
counter-offer. The terms and conditions of this Order 
Confirmation are subject to change without notice.  
 
Prices: Prices are calculated to correspond with the cost 
situation at the time of the Order Confirmation. Seller reserves 
the right to adjust prices accordingly should the cost situation 
change. Prices quoted are valid for thirty (30) days unless 

otherwise stated in the quotation. Changes in product 
specifications or deliveries shall be subject to change in prices.  
 
Taxes: Buyer is responsible for and will pay all applicable 
taxes, charges, fees, levies, or other assessments imposed or 
collected by any governmental entity (or political subdivision 
thereof) worldwide on sales of products or services, or sales, 
use, transfer, goods, and services or value added tax or any 
other duties or fees related to any payment by Buyer to Seller 
for products and/or services provided to Buyer under or 
pursuant to the Order Confirmation.  
 
Terms of Payment and Acceptance:  
 
a.  An invoice will be issued when the products set forth in 

the Order Confirmation are shipped or when the 
services set forth in the Order Confirmation are 
scheduled, and terms of payment are net within thirty 
days from date of invoice unless different terms were 
stated by the seller in the quotation/order confirmation.  

 
b.  If payments are not made in accordance with these 

terms, a service charge will, without prejudice to any 
rights of Seller, including that to immediate payment, be 
added to the account of Buyer in an amount equal to the 
lower of 1-1/2 % per month or fraction thereof or the 
highest legal rate on the unpaid balance.  

 
c.  If, in the judgment of Seller, the financial condition of 

Buyer, at any time during the period of the contract, does 
not justify the terms of payment specified, Seller may 
require full or partial payment in advance.  

 
d.  In the event Buyer becomes insolvent or insolvency or 

bankruptcy proceedings are instituted by or against 
Buyer under state and/or federal law, Seller may refuse 
to deliver products or to render services except for cash, 
including payment for all products previously delivered 
and services previously performed, may stop delivery of 
any products in transit or performance of any services in 
progress, and may, if permitted by applicable state 
and/or federal law, cancel this order and recover its 
proper cancellation charges from Buyer or Buyer’s 
estate.  

 
Terms of Delivery:  
 
a.  Unless otherwise agreed in writing by Seller, all products 

are sold F.O.B. point of shipment, and do not include 
installation. Regardless of the manner of shipment, title 
to the goods and the risk of loss or damage thereto shall 
pass to Buyer upon delivery to the Buyer by Seller at the 
Buyer’s location or upon tender to Buyer at Seller’s 
location.  

 
b.  Except in the case of F.O.B. destination shipments, 

Seller shall have no liability for concealed or other 
shipment damage. When shipment has been made on 
an F.O.B. destination basis, Buyer must unpack 
immediately and, if damage is discovered, must:  

 
 
 

273



 

REINHAUSEN MANUFACTURING, INC.  
STANDARD SALES TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
Reinhausen Manufacturing Inc.  Phone +1 731 7847681 Managing Director: Reinhausen Group  Page 2 of 4 
2549 North 9th Avenue, Fax +1 731 7847682 Bernhard Kurth RM_2020_07 
Humboldt, TN 38343, USA  www.reinhausen.com   

o Not move the product from the point of examination; 
retain shipping container and packing material;  

 
o Notify the carrier of any apparent damage in writing 

on the carrier’s delivery receipt and request the 
carrier to make an inspection;  

 
o Notify the Seller’s location for which the shipment 

originated within 72 hours of delivery; and  
 

o Send Seller a copy of the carrier’s inspection report.  
 
c.  The period for delivery shall be calculated from the date 

on which Seller has signed a written agreement 
accepting Buyer’s order. The delivery period can only be 
maintained if all necessary documents, specifications, 
authorizations, etc. to be provided by Buyer have been 
received in due time, and all commitments as well as 
terms of payment agreed upon have been fulfilled. 
Should these prerequisites not be complied in due time, 
the delivery period will be extended appropriately.  

 
d.  In the event of mobilization, war or insurrection or of 

strike or lock-out of the relevant departments of Seller or 
subsuppliers, or of a rejection of an important 
component or of other circumstances beyond Seller’s 
control, thus preventing Seller from timely carrying out 
its obligations, the delivery period will be extended 
appropriately.  

 
e.  Seller will endeavor to keep to the indicated delivery 

periods to the best of its ability. Seller, however, shall 
have no liability for damages due to delay, and Buyer 
shall have no right to cancel its order, unless Seller and 
Buyer have executed a separate written agreement in 
this respect.  

 
f.  Partial deliveries are permissible.  
 
Risk of Loss:  
 
a.  Regardless of the manner of shipment, all risk of loss or 

damage will pass to Buyer upon the earlier of (1) tender 
to the carrier at the factory or warehouse of Seller or (2) 
if shipment is delayed at Buyer’s request, at the time the 
product is ready for shipment. If requested by Buyer in 
writing, Seller will insure the product against shipment 
damage at Buyer’s expense.  

 
b.  Shipment shall not be delayed at Buyer’s request except 

on terms that will indemnify Seller against all loss and 
additional expense including, but not limited to, 
demurrage, handling and storage charges. If requested 
by Buyer in writing, Seller will insure the product for the 
period of such delay at Buyer’s expense.  

 
Limited Warranty:  
 
a.  Except as otherwise agreed to in writing by Seller, Seller 

warrants that the products manufactured by it and 
services performed by it will be free of defects in 
workmanship and material for the period of (2) year from 
the date of shipment or performance. This limited 
warranty does not cover, and Seller makes no warranty 

regarding, the following: (1) parts that are not 
manufactured by Seller; (2) defects or failures caused 
by accident or improper handling or installation by 
persons other than Seller; (3) defects or failures caused 
by the failure to use or maintain the products according 
to Seller’s recommendations; (4) products 
manufactured pursuant to plans, specifications, 
drawings or designs submitted or approved by Buyer; 
and (5) defects or failures caused by alteration, 
modification, or repair of products by persons other than 
Seller. This warranty extends to Buyer only and does not 
extend to any transferee, assignee or successor of 
Buyer.  

 
b.  THIS SALE IS MADE WITHOUT ANY WARRANTY OR 

REPRESENTATION, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AS TO 
THE DESIGN, FITNESS, CAPACITY, QUALITY OR 
ANY OTHER MATTER CONCERNING THE 
PRODUCTS EXCEPT AS SET FORTH IN THE 
PRECEDING PARAGRAPH WITHOUT LIMITING THE 
FOREGOING, THIS SALE IS MADE WITHOUT ANY 
WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR 
A PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR NON-
INFRINGEMENT, ALL OF WHICH ARE HEREBY 
EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMED.  

 
Exclusive Remedy; No Consequential Damages 
  
a.  In the event any product or service supplied hereunder 

fails to comply with the limited warranty set forth in the 
preceding section and Buyer provides written notice to 
Seller within two years from the date of shipment or 
performance, Seller will correct such nonconformity by 
repair or, at its option, by replacement of the defective 
part, parts or service F.O.B. its factory or repair facility. 
In no event shall Seller be responsible for gaining 
access to the product, disassembly, reassembly and 
transportation of the product or parts from and to the 
place of installation. If Seller is unable to remedy the 
defect within a reasonable time, Seller shall, at its 
election and in its discretion, either replace the product 
or refund the purchase price.  

 
b.  THE REMEDIES PROVIDED FOR IN THIS SECTION 

SHAL BE THE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE REMEDIES 
FOR SELLER’S BREACH OF THE LIMITED 
WARRANTY SET FORTH HEREIN.  

 
Limitation of Liability:  
 
a.  TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, 

UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL SELLER ITS 
AFFILIATES ITS CONTRACTORS AND SUPPLIERS 
OF ANY TIER, BE LIABLE IN CONTRACT, IN TORT 
(INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE OR STRICT LIABILITY) 
OR OTHERWISE FOR DAMAGE OR LOSS OF OTHER 
PROPERTY OR EQUIPMENT, LOSS OF PROFITS OR 
REVENUE, LOSS OF USE OF EQUIPMENT OR 
POWER SYSTEM, COST OF CAPITAL, COST OF 
PURCHASED OR REPLACEMENT POWER OR 
TEMPORARY EQUIPMENT (INCLUDING 
ADDITIONAL EXPENSES INCURRED IN USING 
EXISTING FACILITIES), CLAIMS OF CUSTOMERS 
OF SELLER, OR FOR ANY SPECIAL, PUNITIVE, 

274



 

REINHAUSEN MANUFACTURING, INC.  
STANDARD SALES TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
Reinhausen Manufacturing Inc.  Phone +1 731 7847681 Managing Director: Reinhausen Group  Page 3 of 4 
2549 North 9th Avenue, Fax +1 731 7847682 Bernhard Kurth RM_2020_07 
Humboldt, TN 38343, USA  www.reinhausen.com   

INCIDENTAL, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES 
WHATSOEVER.  

 
b.  THE TOTAL CUMULATIVE LIABILITY OF SELLER 

WITH RESPECT TO THIS CONTRACT OR ANY- 
THING DONE IN CONNECTION THEREWITH SUCH 
AS THE PERFORMANCE OR BREACH THEREOF, 
OR FROM THE MANUFACTURE, SALE, DELIVERY, 
RESALE, OR USE OF ANY PRODUCT COVERED BY 
OR FURNISHED UNDER THIS CONTRACT, 
WHETHER IN CONTRACT, IN TORT (INCLUDING 
NEGLIGENCE OR STRICT LIABILITY) OR 
OTHERWISE, SHALL NOT EXCEED THE PRICE OF 
THE PRODUCT, PART OR SERVICE ON WHICH 
SUCH LIABILITY IS BASED.  

 
Termination: Any order or contract may be terminated by 
Buyer only by written notice and upon payment of reasonable 
and proper termination charges, including but not limited to all 
costs identified to the order or contract which have been 
incurred up to the date of notice of termination. All additional 
costs resulting from the termination and 10% of the final net 
price will be included in the termination charges to 
compensate for disruptions in scheduling, panned production 
and other direct costs. Payment shall be made within 30 days 
from date of invoice.  
 
Force Majeure: Notwithstanding anything contained in these 
terms and conditions to the contrary, neither Seller nor Buyer 
shall be liable for failure of performance hereunder if 
occasioned by war, declared or undeclared, acts of terrorism, 
civil unrest, epidemic, pandemic, riots, strikes, labor disputes, 
work stoppages, international or malicious acts of organized 
opposition, governmental actions including without limitation 
shelter-in-place orders, orders, restrictions or regulations, 
interruption of transportation, delays, prohibition of import or 
export of goods, embargo, closure of public highways, 
railways, airways or ports, seizure under legal process, acts of 
God, including without limitation, tornado, hurricane, cyclone, 
windstorm, tidal wave, earthquake, flood, fire, power failure, 
water sprinkler leakage, insect, explosion or any other cause 
beyond the control of Seller or Buyer. Any suspension of 
performance by reason of force majeure shall be limited to the 
period during which the cause of failure exists. The party 
claiming Force Majeure shall give prompt written notice to the 
other of any such event or circumstance, and the notifying 
party shall cooperate in good faith with the other to minimize 
and mitigate the impact of any such event or occurrence and 
do all things commercially reasonable under the 
circumstances to achieve such goal. No adjustments to pricing 
and schedule shall be made to account for a Force Majeure 
event and its resulting impact on the work, without prior written 
approval of Seller and Buyer. 
 
Held Orders: Any orders held or delayed or rescheduled at 
the request of Buyer will be subject to the prices and 
conditions of sale in effect at the time of the release of the hold 
or the reschedule. Any such order held, delayed or 
rescheduled beyond a reasonable period of time will be 
treated as a Buyer termination. When a product is ready for 
shipment and shipment cannot be made because of reasons 
beyond Seller’s control, Seller shall submit an in- voice for 
such product payable upon receipt thereof and shall, upon 

written notice to Buyer, store such product. In such event, the 
following conditions shall apply: 
 
a.  Risk of loss of the product shall pass to Buyer upon 

moving such product to storage; and  
 
b.  All expenses, incurred by Seller in connection with the 

storage of the product including demurrage, the cost of 
preparation for storage, storage charges, insurance if 
placed, and handling charges shall be payable by Buyer 
upon submission of invoices by Seller.  

 
Cancellation by Seller: Seller shall have the right to cancel 
the contract at any time by written notice for any breach of the 
contract by Buyer.  
 
Procedure for Returning Products: Authorization and 
shipping instructions for the return of any product must be 
obtained by Buyer from Seller before returning the product. 
The product must be returned with complete identification in 
accordance with Seller’s instructions or it will not be accepted. 
Where Buyer requests authorization to return a product for 
reasons other than breach of warranty by Seller, Buyer will be 
charged for placing the returned goods in salable condition 
(restocking charge) and for any outgoing and incoming 
transportation paid by Seller. In no event will Seller be 
responsible for a product returned without proper authorization 
and identification and payment of costs related thereto.  
 
Export Packaging: Prices include products having standard 
domestic packing only. Any request by Buyer for packing for 
overseas shipment shall result in addition to the contract price.  
 
Minimum Billing: The minimum billing charge shall be $50 
plus transportation charges as indicated in the “Terms of 
Delivery” section above.  
 
Product Notices: Buyer shall provide the user (including its 
employees) of the product with all Seller’s supplied product 
notices, warnings, instructions, recommendations and similar 
materials. 
 
Additional Conditions Applicable to Nuclear Applications:  
 
a.  In the event that Buyer or third parties use the product 

or any part thereof in connection with any activity or 
process involving nuclear fission or fusion or any use or 
handling of any source, special nuclear or byproduct 
material as those materials are defined in the U.S. 
Atomic Energy Act of 1954 as amended, Buyer, at no 
expense to Seller, shall have arranged for insurance 
coverage, indemnities, waivers of liability, recourse and 
subrogation in such amounts and under such terms and 
conditions as may be acceptable to Seller, and fully 
adequate in the opinion of Seller to protect Seller (and 
its subcontractors or suppliers of any tier) against any 
and all loss, costs, damage or expenses and claims and 
demands therefore, in contract, in tort or otherwise, 
including the cost of investigating, litigating and/or 
settling any such claims or demands, on account of 
bodily injury, sickness, disease or death to any person 
or the loss of, loss of use of or damage to the property 
of any person whether located on or off the site of a 
nuclear installation, arising out of or resulting from the 

275



 

REINHAUSEN MANUFACTURING, INC.  
STANDARD SALES TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
Reinhausen Manufacturing Inc.  Phone +1 731 7847681 Managing Director: Reinhausen Group  Page 4 of 4 
2549 North 9th Avenue, Fax +1 731 7847682 Bernhard Kurth RM_2020_07 
Humboldt, TN 38343, USA  www.reinhausen.com   

radioactive, toxic, explosive or other hazardous 
properties of source, special nuclear or byproduct 
materials, as those materials are defined in the U.S. 
Atomic Energy Act of 1954 as amended.  

 
b.  In the event that Buyer resells, distributes or in any way 

relinquishes control of the product or services to a third 
party, Buyer shall require from such third party 
compliance with all requirements under this Section, 
and (2) assurance that any subsequent buyer of toe 
product or services shall company with all requirements 
under this Section.  

 
c.  Seller shall not be obliged to deliver the product until 

such insurance, indemnities and waivers have been 
produced by Buyer and are legally operative in Seller’s 
favor, and upon Buyer’s failure to do so, Seller may 
rescind the sale without liability for damages of any 
nature.  

 
Governing Law: The terms and conditions of this contract 
shall be governed by and construed and enforced in 
accordance with the laws of the state of Tennessee without 
giving effect to the principles of conflicts of law.  
 
Assignment: The rights and obligations under this contract 
shall not be assigned or delegated by Buyer without prior 
written consent of Seller. Any attempted assignment or 
delegation in contravention of this Section shall be void.  
 
Remedies: The warranties and remedies available to Seller 
under the terms of this contract shall be cumulative in addition 
to those implied or available at law. No waiver of any breach 
of this contract shall be construed to constitute a waiver of any 
other breach or of any provisions hereof.  
 
Consent to Jurisdiction: Buyer hereby irrevocably submits 
to the jurisdiction of any Tennessee court sitting in Gibson 
County, Tennessee and the United States District Court for the 
Western District of Tennessee over any action or proceeding 
arising out of or relating to this contract or the products and 
agrees that all claims in respect of such action or proceeding 
may be heard and determined in any such court. Buyer further 
agrees that venue for any such action shall lie exclusively with 
courts sitting in Gibson County, Tennessee and the United 
States District Court for the Western District of Tennessee, 
unless Seller agrees to the contrary in writing. Seller agrees 
that a final judgment in any such action or proceeding shall be 
conclusive and may be enforced in other jurisdictions by suit 
on the judgment or in any other manner provided by law. 
 
Expenses and Attorneys’ Fees: Buyer agrees to pay any 
and all costs and expenses (including without limitation, 
reasonable attorneys’’ fees and litigation expenses) incurred 
by Seller and arising out of or relating to Buyer’s breach of any 
covenant or agreement or the incorrectness or inaccuracy of 
any representation and warranty made by Buyer.  
 
Amendment and Waiver: This contract cannot be amended, 
changed or modified, except by a writing signed by both 
parties. No acceptance of less than full, conforming 
performance by either party shall be deemed a waiver of that 
party’s right to full, conforming performance at a subsequent 
time. Parole or extrinsic evidence and evidence of course of 

dealing, usage of trade or course of performance shall be 
inadmissible to contradict the express terms of this contract or 
to supply any additional terms.  
 
Severability: In the event that any one or more terms or 
provisions hereof shall be held void or unenforceable by any 
court, all remaining terms and provisions hereof shall remain 
in full force and effect. 
  
Writings: If the terms hereof require that any consent, 
agreement or other item be provided in “writing,” then such 
consent, agreement or other item must include a hand- written 
signature. Emails, voice mails and other forms of records that 
do not require handwritten signatures shall not qualify as a 
“writing” for the purpose hereof.  
 
Intellectual Property: Buyer grants Seller all rights and 
licenses necessary for Seller and its affiliates to use, transfer, 
pass-through, and sell the products and services and to 
exercise the rights granted under this contract. Buyer shall not 
use the name or trademarks of Seller or its affiliates or refer to 
or identify Seller or its affiliates in any marketing materials 
(including without limitation testimonials or customer listings) 
or press releases without the prior written consent of Seller.  
 
Ownership of Products: All work products developed by 
Seller and provided to Buyer under this contract are and shall 
remain the personal property of Seller.  
 
Indemnification: Buyer agrees to defend, hold harmless, and 
indemnify Seller and its affiliates from any claim (including 
without limitation costs, expenses and attorney’s fees) arising 
from (1) claims that any of Buyer’s specifications infringe on 
any intellectual property rights, and (2) the failure of Buyer to 
comply with its warranties and obligations under this contract.  
 
Insurance: Buyer shall obtain and maintain all applicable and 
appropriate insurance, (including, without limitation, business, 
workers’ compensation, auto, errors and omissions, 
professional and commercial general and liability insurance) in 
an amount consistent with Buyer’s industry practice. 
 
 

276



 

REINHAUSEN MANUFACTURING, INC.  
STANDARD SERVICE TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
Reinhausen Manufacturing Inc.  Phone +1 731 7847681 Managing Director: Reinhausen Group  Page 1 of 1 
2549 North 9th Avenue, Fax +1 731 7847682 Bernhard Kurth RM_2020_07 
Humboldt, TN 38343, USA  www.reinhausen.com   

Application: The predominant purpose of the transaction set 
forth in the Order Confirmation is for Technical Service from 
Reinhausen Manufacturing, Inc. (“Seller”) to Buyer and any 
services are merely incidental. To the extent the Order 
Confirmation reflects incidental or non-incidental services, 
Reinhausen Manufacturing, Inc.’s Standard Service Terms 
and Conditions shall apply in addition to the attached 
Reinhausen Manufacturing, Inc. Standard Sales Terms and 
Conditions. 
 
Workplace Safety: Prior to performance of any of the services 
set forth in the Order Confirmation, Buyer shall conduct a 
workplace hazard assessment for the site where the services 
set forth in the Order Confirmation are to be performed. This 
assessment shall identify all site hazards and inform Seller’s 
technicians of accident procedures and evacuation plans. 
Buyer shall also prepare a written certification labeled 
“Certification of Hazard Assessment” certifying that the 
workplace hazard assessment was completed for the services 
set forth in the order confirmation. In addition to the workplace 
hazard assessment, Buyer shall ensure that a pre-job meeting 
and/or pre-job brief is provided to Seller’s technicians to 
perform the services set forth in the Order Confirmation. Buyer 
shall document that a pre- job meeting occurred and/or 
document that Seller’s technicians received a copy of the pre-
job brief. Buyer shall also ensure that upstream and 
downstream isolation switches are open, grounds have been 
placed on all windings (HV, LV & TV), and that appropriate 
lock-out/tag-out procedures have been followed. In the event 
that the services set forth in the Order Confirmation must be 
performed when equipment is energized, the tap changer 
must be locked on a fixed tap. If an unsafe condition arises, 
Seller’s technicians reserve the right to stop work until the 
unsafe condition is corrected. 
  
Authority: Seller’s technicians are expressly without authority 
to bind Seller or REINHAUSEN to any contract, agreement or 
acknowledgment of liability.  
 
Staffing: Seller reserves the right to assign which of its 
technicians will carry out the services set forth in the Order 
Confirmation. The assignment of Seller’s technicians is 
dependent on the services set forth in the Order Confirmation, 
the site where the services are to be performed, and the 
availability of Seller’s technicians. Buyer must make requests 
for specific service dates at least three weeks before services 
are to be performed so that attempts can be made to honor 
the requested service date. Any preliminary work to take place 
at the Seller’s Humboldt, Tennessee facility will be billed at flat 
rate equal to the hourly service rate set forth in the Order 
Confirmation multiplied by the sum of total number of work 
days and total number of Seller’s technicians used to perform 
the services set forth in the Order Confirmation.  
 
REINHAUSEN Specialists: If it is necessary that an 
REINHAUSEN Specialist performs any of the services set 
forth in the Order Confirmation, Buyer shall obtain and provide 
the REINHAUSEN Specialist with the necessary entry visas 
and work permits prior to departure of the REINHAUSEN 
Specialist. All terms and conditions referring to Seller’s 
technician shall apply equally to an REINHAUSEN Specialist. 
 
 
 

Auxiliary Equipment and Personnel: Buyer shall supply all 
necessary auxiliary equipment (e.g., lifting devices, oil 
containers, oil pumps, scaffolding, etc.) and personnel. Buyer 
is also responsible for obtaining auxiliary personnel to drain 
tap changer oil, handle tap changer oil, vacuum fill tap changer 
oil and dispose of waste tap changer oil. 
  
a.  Buyer agrees to defend and indemnify seller for any and 

all liability arising from delays in obtaining necessary 
auxiliary equipment and/or personnel, but for liability 
arising out of Seller’s own negligence.  

 
b.  Buyer agrees to defend and indemnify seller for any and 

all liability arising out of Buyer’s procurement, 
installation and/or operation of necessary equipment, 
but for liability arising out of Seller’s own negligence.  

 
c.  Buyer agrees to defend and indemnify Seller for any and 

all liability arising out of auxiliary personnel’s work, but 
for liability arising out of Seller’s own negligence.  

 
Cancellation: Buyer shall pay a twenty percent cancellation 
fee services set forth in the Order Confirmation that Buyer 
cancels within ten days of the mobilization date for such 
services.  
 
Re-Stocking: Buyer shall pay a twenty percent restocking fee 
for parts ordered and shipped to Buyer or the site where 
services are to be performed that Buyer subsequently returns.  
 
Delay: Buyer is responsible for all costs arising from delays in 
the performance of the services set forth in the Order 
Confirmation other than delays attributable to Seller. 
 

277



278



279



BID TABULATION
Two Power Transformers

City of Concord Date:  July 21, 2021
Concord, North Carolina Time:  1:30 PM, EST

Bidder _____________ _____________ _____________ _____________ _____________

Schedule I
43.8-13.2KV, 20/27 MVA

783,851.00  $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________
Offloading (1) _____________ _____________ _____________ _____________ _____________
On Site Commissioning (1) _____________ _____________ _____________ _____________ _____________

Total, Schedule I $ $ $ $ $

Manufacturer _____________ _____________ _____________ _____________ _____________
Delivery _____________ _____________ _____________ _____________ _____________

Schedule II
101.25-13.2 KV, 
    22.4/29.87/37.33 MVA 
    Power Transformer (1) $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________
Offloading (1) _____________ _____________ _____________ _____________ _____________
On Site Commissioning (1) _____________ _____________ _____________ _____________ _____________

Total, Schedule II $ $ $ $ $

Manufacturer _____________ _____________ _____________ _____________ _____________
Delivery _____________ _____________ _____________ _____________ _____________

Applicable Price Terms _____________ _____________ _____________ _____________ _____________

Virginia
     Delta Star                          Transformer                         WEG                                    ABB                                   SPX

     Power Transformer (1) $___                _____                        706,134.00                        732,878.00                         868,830.00                       No Quote
          18,000.00                          18,000.00                          10,500.00                           27,300.00
            3,285.00                          17,500.00                          22,145.00                           31,000.00

        805,136.00                       741,634.00                         765,523.00                        927,130.00

     Delta Star                              VTC                                  WEG                                   ABB
 32-36 Weeks                     25-26 Weeks                     40-42 Weeks                     42-46 Weeks

        901,554.00                        806,475.00                        893,235.00                         918,145.00                        965,066.00 
          16,800.00                          18,000.00                          15,500.00                           27,300.00                           35,262.00
            3,285.00                          17,500.00                          33,135.00                           31,000.00                           21,800.00

        921,639.00                       841,975.00                         941,870.00                        976,445.00                      1,025,758.00

     Delta Star                              VTC                                  WEG                                   ABB                                    SPX
 32-36 Weeks                     25-26 Weeks                     40-42 Weeks                     42-46 Weeks                     54-58 Weeks

280

lisa
Rectangle



 
 

FINANCE ROUTING SHEET 
 

Date: 7/23/2021 Department: Electric 
 
 
Award Information 

 
Awarded To: VTC 

Project Number:   

Bid Amount: $723,634 

Bid Number: 2486 
 
Financial Information Yes No 

 
Does this item require additional 
personnel?   

Does this item require additional 
equipment?   

Will this item increase operating costs?   

Will this item require in-kind services?   

 
Budgetary Impact 

 
State/Federal Funds Required: None 

City Funds Required: $723,634 

Other Financial Resources: None 

In-Kind Services Required: None 

Budget Code: 7220-5550000 
 
Comments 

 
Schedule I of formal bid received 7/21/2021 for Sub F transformer replacement 
transformer. 

 
 

281



 
 

FINANCE ROUTING SHEET 
 

Date: 7/23/2021 Department: Electric 
 
 
Award Information 

 
Awarded To: VTC 

Project Number:       

Bid Amount: $823,975 

Bid Number: 2486 
 
Financial Information Yes No 

 
Does this item require additional 
personnel?   

Does this item require additional 
equipment?   

Will this item increase operating costs?   

Will this item require in-kind services?   

 
Budgetary Impact 

 
State/Federal Funds Required: None 

City Funds Required: $823,975 

Other Financial Resources: None 

In-Kind Services Required: None 

Budget Code: 7220-5550000 
 
Comments 

 
Schedule II of formal bid received 7/21/2021 for spare 100 kV transformer. 

 
 

282



283



284



285



286



287



288



289



290



291



292



ORD.   

 

CAPITAL PROJECT ORDINANCE AMENDMENT  
 

  
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina 

that pursuant to Section 13.2 Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, 
the following project ordinance is hereby ordained: 
 

SECTION 1. The project authorized is the Long-Term Parking Upgrade. 
 
SECTION 2.  The City Manager is hereby authorized to proceed with the 

implementation of the project within terms of a grant agreement with the N.C. 
Department of Transportation – Division of Aviation. 

 
SECTION 3. The following revenues are anticipated to be available to the 

City of Concord for the project: 
 

Revenues 

Account Title 
 Current 
Budget  

 Amended 
Budget  

 (Decrease) 
Increase  

451-4501680 
451-4501680 

 

Transfer from Aviation 320,906 482,906 
 

162,000 

 Total    162,000 
     

SECTION 4.  The following amounts are appropriated for the project:   
         

Expenses/Expenditures 

Account Title 
 Current 
Budget  

 Amended 
Budget  

 (Decrease) 
Increase  

6300-5800449 
6300-5800449 

Long- Term Parking Upgrade 
 

0 
 

162,000 
 

162,000 
 

     
 Total   162,000 

  
SECTION 5. Accounting records are to be maintained by the Finance 

Department of the City of Concord in such manner as (1) to provide all information 
required by the grant agreement and other agreements executed or to be executed 
with the various parties involved with the project; and (2) to comply with the Local 
Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act of the State of North Carolina. 
 

SECTION 6. Within five (5) days after adopted, copies of this grant project 
amendment shall be filed with the City Manager, Finance Director, and City Clerk 
for direction in carrying out this project. 
 

     SECTION 7. The Finance Director is directed to report on the financial status 
of this project in accordance with the existing City policy.  She shall also report to 
the City Manager any unusual occurrences. 
 

Duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina this  
12th day of August, 2021. 

 
       CITY COUNCIL 
       CITY OF CONCORD 
       NORTH CAROLINA     
             
       ____________________________ 
       William C. Dusch, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: ______________________  ______________________________ 
                Kim Deason, City Clerk   Valerie Kolczynski, City Attorney 

293



Bid Tabulation Sheet Summary - General Services Dr 12" WL - City of Concord Project No. 2020-076 Bid No. 2491

CONTRACTOR:
ADDRESS:

Monroe NC 28111 Waynesville, NC 28785 China Grove, NC 28023
Item 
No. Sect. No. Description Estimated 

Quantity Unit Unit Cost Total Cost Unit Cost Total Cost Unit Cost Total Cost

1 WSACC 01025 Mobilization 1 LS 8,000.00$      8,000.00$          12,300.00$     12,300.00$         37,945.00$      37,945.00$           
2 NCDOT 801 Construction Surveying 1 LS 6,500.00$      6,500.00$          11,000.00$     11,000.00$         5,100.00$        5,100.00$             
3 SP-01 Traffic Control 1 LS 5,000.00$      5,000.00$          17,000.00$     17,000.00$         4,000.00$        4,000.00$             
4 NCDOT 200 Clearing and Grubbing 1 LS 23,000.00$    23,000.00$        31,700.00$     31,700.00$         21,200.00$      21,200.00$           
5 SP-02 Rock Removal 100 CY 175.00$         17,500.00$        50.00$            5,000.00$           150.00$           15,000.00$           
6 WSACC 01025 12" Restrained DIP 950 LF 200.00$         190,000.00$      99.30$            94,335.00$         89.20$             84,740.00$           
7 WSACC 01025 12" DIP Bends 11-1/4 degree 1 EA 1,150.00$      1,150.00$          1,041.85$       1,041.85$           850.00$           850.00$                
8 WSACC 01025 12" DIP Bends 22-1/2 degree 4 EA 1,200.00$      4,800.00$          1,059.80$       4,239.20$           870.00$           3,480.00$             
9 WSACC 01025 12” DIP Bends 45 Degree 4 EA 1,300.00$      5,200.00$          1,101.15$       4,404.60$           900.00$           3,600.00$             

10 WSACC 01025 6" Restrained DIP 25 LF 198.00$         4,950.00$          80.60$            2,015.00$           66.00$             1,650.00$             
11 WSACC 01025 6” DIP Bends 45 Degree 2 EA 450.00$         900.00$             265.25$          530.50$              462.00$           924.00$                
12 WSACC 01025 12"x12"x6" DIP Tee 1 EA 1,500.00$      1,500.00$          1,695.25$       1,695.25$           940.00$           940.00$                
13 WSACC 01025 12" Gate Valve with Box 2 EA 3,400.00$      6,800.00$          3,598.10$       7,196.20$           3,911.00$        7,822.00$             
14 WSACC 01025 6" Gate Valve with Box 1 EA 1,300.00$      1,300.00$          1,869.60$       1,869.60$           1,558.00$        1,558.00$             
15 WSACC 01025 Hydrant Assembly (incl. GV) 1 EA 6,700.00$      6,700.00$          6,888.50$       6,888.50$           6,591.00$        6,591.00$             
16 WSACC 01025 2" Commercial Water Service - Bored HDPE (City to Provide Meter Box) 2 EA 11,500.00$    23,000.00$        6,060.00$       12,120.00$         7,439.00$        14,878.00$           
17 WSACC 01025 2" Commercial Water Service, incl. relocation of ex. Meter Box and Backflow Preventer 1 EA 5,500.00$      5,500.00$          8,917.00$       8,917.00$           3,632.00$        3,632.00$             
18 SP-03 Plumbing Permit and Requirements for Reconnecting Water Services 3 EA 850.00$         2,550.00$          250.00$          750.00$              250.00$           750.00$                
19 SP-04 12" Connection to Ex. 12" Water Main - Tapping Sleeve & Valve 1 EA 15,000.00$    15,000.00$        17,133.10$     17,133.10$         11,841.00$      11,841.00$           
20 SP-04 12" Connection to Ex. 12" Water Main - Transition Fittings 1 EA 6,700.00$      6,700.00$          5,163.15$       5,163.15$           2,750.00$        2,750.00$             
21 SP-04 6" Connection to Ex. 6" Water Main - Transition Fittings 1 EA 5,700.00$      5,700.00$          4,037.85$       4,037.85$           1,162.00$        1,162.00$             
22 SP-05 Pump Around Operation 1 LS 9,000.00$      9,000.00$          23,600.00$     23,600.00$         4,735.00$        4,735.00$             
23 NCDOT 250 Removal of Existing Asphalt Pavement 50 SY 15.00$           750.00$             7.50$              375.00$              15.00$             750.00$                
24 NCDOT 520 Aggregate Base Course 300 TN 30.00$           9,000.00$          25.00$            7,500.00$           38.00$             11,400.00$           
25 NCDOT 545 Incidental Stone Base 100 TN 40.00$           4,000.00$          25.00$            2,500.00$           38.00$             3,800.00$             
26 SP-06 Flowable Fill (Excavatable) 25 CY 200.00$         5,000.00$          155.00$          3,875.00$           250.00$           6,250.00$             
27 NCDOT 654 Asphalt Plant Mix, Pavement Repair 20 TN 375.00$         7,500.00$          185.00$          3,700.00$           350.00$           7,000.00$             
28 NCDOT 867 Chain Link Fence Reset 40 LF 55.00$           2,200.00$          35.00$            1,400.00$           45.00$             1,800.00$             
29 NCDOT 1530 Remove Water Meter 2 EA 350.00$         700.00$             1,900.00$       3,800.00$           250.00$           500.00$                
30 NCDOT 1530 Remove Fire Hydrant 1 EA 500.00$         500.00$             1,900.00$       1,900.00$           250.00$           250.00$                
31 NCDOT 1605 Temporary Silt Fence 900 LF 3.00$             2,700.00$          5.06$              4,554.00$           3.75$               3,375.00$             
32 SP-07 Silt Fence Outlet 6 EA 325.00$         1,950.00$          215.00$          1,290.00$           250.00$           1,500.00$             
33 SP-08 Storm Drain Inlet Protection 1 EA 500.00$         500.00$             69.55$            69.55$                300.00$           300.00$                
34 SP-09 Coir Fiber Matting 150 SY 6.00$             900.00$             16.27$            2,440.50$           7.50$               1,125.00$             
35 NCDOT 1631 Matting for Erosion Control (Biodegradable Netting) 2000 SY 2.00$             4,000.00$          2.90$              5,800.00$           2.50$               5,000.00$             
36 NCDOT 1660 Seeding and Mulching 3000 SY 1.00$             3,000.00$          1.50$              4,500.00$           1.00$               3,000.00$             
37 SP-10 (3) 2" Schedule 80 PVC Conduits 700 LF 22.00$           15,400.00$        32.80$            22,960.00$         35.13$             24,591.00$           
38 SP-10 24”x36”x36” Tier 22 Handhole 3 EA 3,800.00$      11,400.00$        2,300.00$       6,900.00$           1,500.00$        4,500.00$             

Irregularities (see highlighted areas on form)
CERTIFICATION:  This is certified to be an accurate tabulation of bids received for the project.

300 Wade Dr.

None.

$310,289.00

Bids Received July 13, 2021, 10:00 AM

Appalachian Sitework Inc.State Utility Contractors Carolina Siteworks Inc.

Total Estimated Cost

Estimated Base Cost
10% Contingency

$341,317.90

$420,250.00 $346,500.85
$42,025.00

PO Box 5019 76 Riley Ridge

Base Bid

$34,650.09
$462,275.00 $381,150.94

None. 

Yes Yes
Yes

None. 
Addendum 1 Acknowledged Yes

Yes

$31,028.90

Yes
Bid Security (5%)

G:\Eng\Engineering Projects\Projects\2020\076 GeneralServices12WL-HWY49\Design\Bid docs\2020-076 BidTab Summary 7/13/2021
294



295



Harris

HA
RR

IS 
RD

POPLAR TENT RD

DE
RIT

A R
D

CO
X M

ILL
 R

D

N SCALYBARK TRL

PAPA PL MOSS DR

OLD TRACE RD NW

ELROND DR NW

DEWITT RD
CHATHAM OAKS DR

ELLENWOOD RD

FAIRWOODS DR

PO
PL

AR
 W

OO
DS

 DR

NORTHGREEN DR

SKYBROOK DR

BURRIS LN

BA
MP

TO
N D

R

HIGH RIDGE LN

NORTHCHASE DR

SYBBIE ST

MCGRUDEN DR NW

BRIDGEFORD DR NW

BAYBERRY TRL

COTTONWOOD TRL

SHEARWATER AVE NW

VEGA ST NW

CHINABERRY LN

GARAMONT PKWY NW

BAROSSA VALLEY DR NW SU
TR

O 
FO

RE
ST

 D
R 

NW

POPLAR VIEW DR NW

KARTEY AVE NW

FALLING LEAF DR NW

PO
KE

BE
RR

Y T
RL

WOODHALL DR

NORTH OAK DR

WAY
CR

OS
S D

R

OD
EL

L S
CH

OO
L R

D

SKIPPING STONE LN NW

EUCLID AVE NW

GEARY ST NW

MYINT LN NW

BENT OAK TRL

VINTAGE HILL LN

SP
RIN

G T
RE

E L
N

DONELEA LN NW

BL
AC

KB
ER

RY
 TR

L

QUIET COVE TRL

LEMMON AVE NW

LORAIN AVE NW

HICKORY NUT TRL

DARBY CREEK AVE NW

HILL
SB

OROUGH ST
 NW

BR
OO

KL
INE

 DR

SAMUELS WAY DR

PARKLAND PL NW

TREETOP WAY NW

AMBERCREST CT NW

J C MURRAY DR NW
FLOWER BONNET AVE NW

EASTFIELD RD

S SCALYBARK TRL

DISCOVERY DR NW

AUTOMATION DR NW

TELEGRAPH RD NW

RIPPLIN
G STR

EAM DR NW

CYPRESS PT

FAIRWOODS DR NW

SWEET SHRUB CT NW

MACALLUM DR NW

THREE GREENS DR
JOHNSTON FARM RD

FERN DANCER CT NW
JA

NR
OS

E C
T N

W

RICHLAND DR

FONTANA CT SW

MALDEN ST NW

Preliminary Application²

1 in = 1,000 ft 296



297



298



Diffee

DE
RI

TA
 R

D

CO
X 

MI
LL

 R
D

POPLAR TENT RD

IVE
Y C

LIN
E R

D

US
 IN

TE
RS

TA
TE

 85
 S

US
 IN

TE
RS

TA
TE

 85
 N

LE
GO

LA
S L

N

HA
RR

IS 
RD

ELROND DR NW

MR
N 

DR
 N

W

OLD TRACE RD NW

CLARKE CREEK PKWY

ALTACREST DR
HIGH RIDGE LN

ELLENWOOD RD

MCGRUDEN DR NW

PA
CI

NG
 LN

 N
W

SOLWAY LN NW

BR
OO

KI
NG

S D
R

OD
EL

L S
CH

OO
L R

D

AVIATION BLVD NW

VEGA ST NW

GARAMONT PKWY NW

BAROSSA VALLEY DR NW

MISTYWOOD LN

SP
EA

RS
 D

R 
NW

WILBURN PARK LN NW

ARAGORN LN NW

SU
TR

O 
FO

RE
ST

 D
R 

NW

KARTEY AVE NW

MILLSTREAM RIDGE DR

FALLING LEAF DR NW

LAVETA RD

WE
ST

 W
IN

DS
 B

LV
D 

NW

EUCLID AVE NW

GEARY ST NW

MYINT LN NW

BENT OAK TRL

SUNDANCE DR

LEMMON AVE NW

NUMENORE DR NW

PRESSLEY DR NW

LORAIN AVE NW

ELVEN LN NW

MONTROSE DR NW

KIRKMONT DR NW

PARKLAND PL NW

BEDLINGTON DR NW

ASPEN WAY

WALTHAM CT NW

RIPPLIN
G STR

EAM DR NW

NORTHWINDS DR NW

FALMOUTH LN NW

S SCALYBARK TRL

NICOLE LN NW

PAISLEY DR NW
HADDINGTON DR NW

BR
IA

RC
RE

ST
 D

R 
NW

AUTOMATION DR NW

BENJAMIN WALKER LN

BLACKBERRY TRL

EDINBURGH LN NW

SWEET SHRUB CT NW

MACALLUM DR NW

STEWARTON LN NW

TARANASAY CT NW

WILLOW CT

AVIATION CIR

DESERT WILLOW CT NW

Preliminary Application²

1 in = 1,000 ft 299



              
    

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING FY 2021-22 APPROVED FEES, RATES AND 
CHARGES SCHEDULE AS ADOPTED IN THE FY 2021-2022 BUDGET ORDINANCE 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina did on the 10th 

day of June, 2021, adopt a City budget for the fiscal year beginning July 1st, 2021 and 
ending on June 30th, 2022, as amended; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City desires to amend the ordinance as it relates to the Schedule 
of Fees, Rates and Charges; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 
Concord that in accordance with the authority contained in G.S. 159-15, the following 
fees, rates and charges are hereby amended as follows: 
 
 
Transit System - Concord/Kannapolis Rider 
Credit/Debit Card Processing Fee       $1.00 
 
Water Connection Charges 
Volume Charges        

Other Volume Charges 
Water Usage through Detector Meters on Fire Lines         $5.33 per 1,000 

gallons outside rate  
 
Wastewater Collection System Use Fees 
Volume Charges        

Outside City 
Flat-Rate Customers           $27.56    $32.78 per month  

 
 
This Ordinance amendment shall be effective upon adoption. 
 

 Adopted this 12th day of August 2021. 

 
CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF CONCORD 
NORTH CAROLINA 
 
________________________________ 
William C. Dusch, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________ 
Kim Deason, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
      _____________________________ 

VaLerie Kolczynski, City Attorney 
 

 
 
 
 

300



Current Payment Standards Bedroom(s) Size Requested Payment Standard 
850 1 Bedroom 935 
970 2 Bedroom 1,067 
1280 3 Bedroom 1408 
1650 4 Bedroom 1815 
1880 5 Bedroom 2068 

 

301



 
ORD. #  

 
 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND FY 2021-2022 BUDGET ORDINANCE 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina did on the 10th 
day of June, 2021, adopt a City budget for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021 and 
ending on June 30, 2022, as amended; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is appropriate to amend the expense/expenditures and the revenue 
accounts in the funds listed for the reason stated; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Concord 
that in accordance with the authority contained in G.S. 159-15, the following accounts are 
hereby amended as follows: 

 
 

Revenues 
Account Title Current 

Budget 
Amended 

Budget 
(Decrease) 
Increase 

100-4370000  Fund Balance Appropriated 9,149,109 9,168,909 19,800 
     
 Total   19,800 

 
 

   
Expenses/Expenditures 

Account Title 
 Current 
Budget  

 Amended 
Budget  

 (Decrease) 
Increase  

4910-5194000 Contract Services 87,081 106,881 19,800 
 
 Total   19,800  

   
Reason:   To appropriate unspent funds from FY 2021 for the art committee.  
  

Adopted this 12th day of August, 2021. 
 

 
      CITY COUNCIL 
      CITY OF CONCORD 
      NORTH CAROLINA 
    
      _______________________ 
      William C. Dusch, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________ 
  Kim Deason, City Clerk 

       
 
__________________________ 

      VaLerie Kolczynski, City Attorney 

302



ORD.   

 

CAPITAL PROJECT ORDINANCE  
US601/Flowes Store Improvements 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina 
that pursuant to Section 13.2 Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, 
the following project ordinance is hereby ordained: 
 

SECTION 1. The project authorized is the US601/Flowes Store Improvements. 
 
SECTION 2.  The City Manager is hereby authorized to proceed with the 

implementation and amendments of the projects within the terms of the plans and 
specifications for the projects. 

 
SECTION 3. The following revenues are anticipated to be available to the City 

of Concord for the project: 
 

Revenues 

Account Title 
 Current 
Budget  

 Amended 
Budget  

 (Decrease) 
Increase  

423-4338600 
423-4338600 CMAQ Grant 5,236,043 3,869,321 (1,366,722) 

    
(1,366,722) 

 
SECTION 4.  The following amounts are appropriated for the project:   

         
Expenses/Expenditures 

Account Title 
 Current 
Budget  

 Amended 
Budget  

 (Decrease) 
Increase  

8600-5811257 
8600-5811257 
8600-5811240 
8600-5811240 
8600-5811073 
8600-5811073 
 

 
US601/Flowes Store 
 
US 29 Bridge 66 & 69 
 
Future Improvements 
 

4,079,873 
 
15,553 
 
4,220,402 
 

 
2,713,151 

 
16,995 

 
4,218,960 

 

 
(1,366,722) 

 
1,442 

 
(1,442) 

(1,366,722) 
  

  
SECTION 5. Accounting records are to be maintained by the Finance 

Department of the City of Concord in such manner as (1) to provide all information 
required by the grant agreement and other agreements executed or to be executed 
with the various parties involved with the project; and (2) to comply with the Local 
Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act of the State of North Carolina. 
 

SECTION 6. Within five (5) days after adopted, copies of this grant project 
amendment shall be filed with the City Manager, Finance Director, and City Clerk for 
direction in carrying out this project. 
 

     SECTION 7. The Finance Director is directed to report on the financial status of 
this project in accordance with the existing City policy.  She shall also report to the 
City Manager any unusual occurrences. 
 

Duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina this  
12th day of August, 2021. 

 
       CITY COUNCIL 
       CITY OF CONCORD 
       NORTH CAROLINA 
       
             
       ____________________________ 
       William C. Dusch, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: ______________________  ______________________________ 
                Kim Deason, City Clerk   VaLerie Kolczynski, City Attorney 

303



ORD.   

 

CAPITAL PROJECT ORDINANCE  
Range Netting 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina 
that pursuant to Section 13.2 Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, 
the following project ordinance is hereby ordained: 
 

SECTION 1. The project authorized and amended is Range Netting. 
 
SECTION 2.  The City Manager is hereby authorized to proceed with the 

implementation and amendments of the project/projects within the terms of the plans 
and specifications for the projects. 

 
SECTION 3. The following revenues/expenditures are anticipated to be 

available to the City of Concord for the project: 
         

 

Account Title 
 Current 
Budget  

 Amended 
Budget  

 (Decrease) 
Increase  

7550-5811404 
7550-5811404 
475-4501650 
475-4501650 

 
 
 

Range Netting 
 
Transfer Golf Fund  
 
 
 
 

$100,000 
 

$0 
 
 
 
 

$102,745 
 

$2,745 
 
 
 
 

$2,745 
 

$2,745 
 
 
 
 

     
SECTION 4. Accounting records are to be maintained by the Finance 

Department of the City of Concord in such manner as (1) to provide all information 
required by the grant agreement and other agreements executed or to be executed 
with the various parties involved with the project; and (2) to comply with the Local 
Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act of the State of North Carolina. 
 

SECTION 5. Within five (5) days after adopted, copies of this grant project 
amendment shall be filed with the City Manager, Finance Director, and City Clerk for 
direction in carrying out this project. 
 

     SECTION 6. The Finance Director is directed to report on the financial status of 
this project in accordance with the existing City policy.  She shall also report to the 
City Manager any unusual occurrences. 
 

Duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina this 
12th day of August, 2021. 

 
       CITY COUNCIL 
       CITY OF CONCORD 
       NORTH CAROLINA 
       
             
       ____________________________ 
       William C. Dusch, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: ______________________  ______________________________ 
                Kim Deason, City Clerk  VaLerie Kolczynski, City Attorney 

304



 
ORD. #  

 
 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND FY 2021-2022 BUDGET ORDINANCE 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina did on the 10th 
day of June, 2021, adopt a City budget for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021 and 
ending on June 30, 2022, as amended; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is appropriate to amend the expense/expenditures and the revenue 
accounts in the funds listed for the reason stated; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Concord 
that in accordance with the authority contained in G.S. 159-15, the following accounts are 
hereby amended as follows: 

 
 

Revenues 
Account Title Current 

Budget 
Amended 
Budget 

(Decrease) 
Increase 

     
 Total    

 
 

    
Expenses/Expenditures 

Account Title 
 Current 
Budget  

 Amended 
Budget  

 (Decrease) 
Increase  

7501-5987000 
7501-5990001 

Transfer to Golf Projects 
Approp to Ret Earnings 

0 
106,132 

2,745 
103,387 

2,745 
(2,745) 

 Total   0 
   
Reason:   To transfer operating funds to the range netting project to cover the additional 
money needed to complete the project. 
 

Adopted this 12th day of August, 2021. 
 

      CITY COUNCIL 
      CITY OF CONCORD 
      NORTH CAROLINA 
    
      _______________________ 
      William C. Dusch, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: _______________________ 
  Kim Deason, City Clerk 
      __________________________ 
      VaLerie Kolczynski, City Attorney 

305



 
ORD. #  

 
 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND FY 2021-2022 BUDGET ORDINANCE 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina did on the 10th 
day of June, 2021, adopt a City budget for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021 and 
ending on June 30, 2022, as amended; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is appropriate to amend the expense/expenditures and the revenue 
accounts in the funds listed for the reason stated; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Concord 
that in accordance with the authority contained in G.S. 159-15, the following accounts are 
hereby amended as follows: 

 
 

Revenues 
Account Title Current 

Budget 
Amended 

Budget 
(Decrease) 
Increase 

     
     
 Total    

 
 

   
Expenses/Expenditures 

Account Title 
 Current 
Budget  

 Amended 
Budget  

 (Decrease) 
Increase  

4190-5992000 Contingency 443,839 440,839 (3,000) 
4110-5470040 Donations 0 3,000 3,000 
 
 Total   0  

   
Reason:   To fund donation for memorial honoring LTC Parker and authorize use of the 
contingency funds. 
  

Adopted this 12th day of August, 2021. 
 

 
      CITY COUNCIL 
      CITY OF CONCORD 
      NORTH CAROLINA 
    
      _______________________ 
      William C. Dusch, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________ 
  Kim Deason, City Clerk 

       
 
__________________________ 

      VaLerie Kolczynski, City Attorney 

306



 

 

 

 

City of Concord 
Title VI Plan 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Adopted May 13, 2021 
Concord City Council   
Updated 7/14/2021  

307



  

 

 

City of Concord Title VI Plan  2 | P a g e  

 

 

City of Concord  
Title VI Plan 
  

Table of Contents 

 

 

Introduction ………………………………………………………………………………………………..... 3 

Authorities in Summary .…………………………………………………………………………….....  5 

Definitions ………………………………………………………………………………………………….….  7 

Areas of Practice …………………………………………………………………………………………….  8  

Staffing and Organization/Implementation …………………………………………………… 10 

Title VI Nondiscrimination Complaint Process Complaint Process …………………. 11 

Appendix A: City Council Resolution ………………………………………………………………. 13 

Appendix B: Title VI Non-Discrimination Policy Statement …………………….……… 14 

Appendix C: Non-Discrimination Notice and Accessibility Rights …..………………. 15 

Appendix D: Equal Employment Opportunity Statement ………………………………… 16 

Appendix E: Title VI Discrimination Complaint Form ………………………………………. 17 

Title VI Assurance of Compliance…………………………………………………………………….. 20 

 

 

308



  

 

 

City of Concord Title VI Plan  3 | P a g e  

 

 

Introduction 

The City of Concord (hereinafter referred to as the City) has adopted this Title VI Plan to ensure that the 

City is in compliance with the provisions of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. Title VI prohibits 

discrimination on the basis of race, color or national origin in programs or activities receiving federal 

financial assistance. Presidential Executive Order 12898 addresses environmental justice in minority and 

low-income populations. Presidential Executive Order 13166 addresses services to those individuals with 

limited English proficiency. Discrimination on the basis of gender, age, and disability is prohibited under 

related statutes. These Presidential Executive Orders and the related statutes fall under the umbrella of 

Title VI. 

Federal-aid recipients, subrecipients and contractors are required to prevent discrimination and ensure 

nondiscrimination in all of their programs, activities and services whether these programs, activities and 

services are federally funded or not. The City of Concord Title VI Coordinator is responsible for providing 

leadership, direction and policy to ensure compliance with Title VI and environmental justice principles. 

Title VI is a mechanism that directs the federal financial assistance, which drives or promotes economic 

development. By legislative mandate, Title VI examines the following public policy issues: 

 

Accessibility for all persons Infrastructure development 

Accountability in public funds expenditures Minority participation in decision making  

Disparate impact Program service delivery  

Economic empowerment Public and private partnerships built in part or 

whole with public funds 

Environmental justice  Site and location of facilities 

 

 

Title VI was enacted to ensure equal distribution of federal funds regardless of race, color, or national 

origin. Because of this, Title VI: 

• Encourages the participation of minorities as members of planning or advisory bodies for 

programs receiving federal funds 

• Prohibits discriminatory activity in a facility built in whole or part with federal funds 

• Prohibits entities from denying an individual any service, financial aid, or other benefit because of 

race, color, or national origin 

• Prohibits entities from providing a different service or benefit, or providing these in a different 

manner from those provided to others under the program 

• Prohibits entities from requiring different standards or conditions as prerequisites for serving 

individuals 

• Prohibits locating facilities in any way that would limit or impede access to a federally funded 

service or benefit 

• Prohibits segregation or separate treatment in any manner related to receiving program services 

or benefits 

• Requires assurance of nondiscrimination in purchasing of services 

• Requires entities to notify the respective population about applicable programs 

309



  

 

 

City of Concord Title VI Plan  4 | P a g e  

 

 

• Requires information and services to be provided in languages other than English when significant 

numbers of beneficiaries are of limited English-speaking ability 

 

*Any City of Concord resident who has experienced discrimination or harassment or has a human rights 

concern may file a discrimination complaint with the City.  

**Any City of Concord co-worker who has experienced discrimination or harassment or has a human rights 

concern may file a discrimination complaint with the Human Resources Department and follow current 

harassment  procedures as outlined in the Personnel Manual. 

  

310



  

 

 

City of Concord Title VI Plan  5 | P a g e  

 

 

Authorities in Summary 

The City of Concord establishes the Title VI plan not only on the adoption of a local policy, but by long 

standing federal law. 

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 [Pub. L. 88-352 (1964), codified as 42 U.S.C. §§2000d through 2000-

4]: Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 prohibits the discrimination in, or the denial of benefits under, 

any program or activity receiving federal financial assistance on grounds of race, color or national origin. 

The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, [Pub. L. 100-259, sec. 6 (1988), codified as 42 U.S.C. §2000D-4A]: 

The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 broadened the scope of Title VI coverage by expanding the 

definition of the terms "programs or activities" to include all programs or activities of federal aid 

recipients, subrecipients, and contractors, whether such programs and activities are federally assisted or 

not. 

Federal Aid Highway Act of 1973, [Pub. L. 93-87 (1973), codified as 23 U.S.C. §324]: The Federal Aid 

Highway Act of 1973 provides that no person shall, on the basis of sex, be excluded from participation in, 

be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving 

federal assistance. 

Age Discrimination Act of 1975, [Pub. L. 94-135 (1975), codified as 42 U.S.C. §6102): The Age 

Discrimination Act of 1975 provides that no person in the United States shall, on the basis of age, be 

excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any 

program or activity receiving federal assistance. 

Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, Subchapter 2, Part A [Pub. L. 101-336 (1990); codified as 42 U.S.C. 

§§12131-12134]: The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 provides that no qualified individual with a 

disability shall, by reason of such disability, be excluded from the participation in, be denied the benefits 

of, or be subjected to discrimination by a department, agency, special purpose district, or other 

instrumentality of a state or a local government. 

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 [Pub. L. 93-112 (1973), codified as 29 U.S.C. §794]: Section 

504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 provides that no qualified handicapped person, shall, solely by 

reason of his/her handicap, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected 

to discrimination under any program or activity receiving federal assistance. 

23 CFR Part 200: 23 CFR 200: are administration regulations promulgated by the Federal Highway 

Authority that specify the Title VI implementation requirements for state departments of transportation 

at state and local levels. 

49 CFR Part 21: 49 CFR 21 are administration regulations promulgated by the US Department of 

Transportation that specify the Title VI implementation requirements for state departments of 

transportation at state and local levels. 

Executive Order No. 12898: Executive Order 12898 regards federal actions to address Environmental 

Justice in minority populations and low-income populations. (Environmental justice seeks equal 

protection from environmental and public health hazards for all people regardless of race, income, 

culture and social class. Additionally, environmental justice means that no group of people including 

311



  

 

 

City of Concord Title VI Plan  6 | P a g e  

 

 

racial, ethnic or socioeconomic groups should bear a disproportionate share of the negative 

environmental consequences resulting from industrial, land-use planning and zoning, municipal and 

commercial operations or the execution of federal, state, local and municipal program and policies). 

Executive Order No. 13166: Executive Order 13166 regards the improvement of access to services for 

persons with Limited English Proficiency. 

 

 

 

 

  

312



  

 

 

City of Concord Title VI Plan  7 | P a g e  

 

 

Definitions 

As used in this Title VI Plan, the following mean: 

Affected Parties: persons protected against discrimination because of race, color, national origin, sex, age, 

disability, or income by the Title VI Requirements, and the City of Concord’s Non-Discrimination Policy. 

Contractor: a person or entity that has entered into an agreement with the City that is subject to the Title 

VI Requirements. 

Locating and siting actions: a recommendation by City staff or decision by the City staff or the City Council 

that will result in the construction of a public facility that could have adverse environmental impacts on 

the surrounding area. 

Meaningful access: the provision of communicative assistance by the City necessary to allow affected 

persons to participate in governmental services/activities. 

Proposed Project: a project that receives federal funds and is subject to the Title VI Requirements. 

Subrecipient: a person or entity that receives federal funds from the City to be used by the entity to 

further the objectives of the federal grant. The City is the recipient of the grant, and the person or entity 

is a subrecipient of those grant funds. 

Title VI Assurances: conditions imposed upon contractors or subrecipients as a result of federal funding 

being directly or indirectly provided to the contractor or subrecipient. 

Title VI Requirements: the nondiscrimination provisions contained in Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 

1964, the Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, the Federal Aid Highway Act of 1973, Age Discrimination 

Act of 1975, the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 

Executive Order 12898 and Executive Order 13166. 

 

 

 

 

  

313



  

 

 

City of Concord Title VI Plan  8 | P a g e  

 

 

Areas of Practice 

Policy and Public Notice: The City will create, publish and post a Public Notice of non-discrimination. The 

City Council will adopt within this plan a Non-Discrimination Policy. 

Elimination of Discrimination: The City will continue its practice of identifying discrimination based on 

race, color, religion, sex, marital status, familial status, national origin, age, mental or physical disability, 

sexual orientation, gender identity and source of income, and where such discrimination is found to exist, 

implementing programs or practices to eliminate the discrimination. 

Public Dissemination of Information: The Title VI Coordinator shall assist City staff in the creation and 

dissemination of Title VI Program information to City employees, subrecipients, contractors, Affected 

Parties, and the general public. Public dissemination efforts may include: posting public statements 

setting forth the City's non-discrimination policy; inclusion of Title VI Assurances in City contracts and 

grants; and publishing a Title VI Policy Statement on the City's website; including the notice and policy 

into all adopted plans and program documents. 

Title VI Assurances in Contracts and Grants: Contracts and procurement are integrated into each 

department. Staff will ensure that all federally funded contracts administered by the City contain Title VI 

Assurances. In the event that the City distributes federal funds to another entity through grants or other 

agreements, the Department Head administering the grant or agreement will ensure that such grants 

and agreements contain the Title VI Assurances. The Department's project administrator or grant 

administrator will monitor the performance of the contract or grant for compliance. The Title VI 

Coordinator and Department Head will coordinate efforts to ensure that the requirements of Title VI are 

met throughout the entire contracting and grant performance process. 

Data Collection: Statistical data on Affected Parties will be compiled by each department head and 

provided to the Title VI Coordinator. The data compilation process will be reviewed regularly by the Title 

VI Coordinator to ensure the data is sufficient to meet the requirements of this Title VI Plan. 

Site and Facility Location: The City shall not make selection of a site or location of a facility for participants 

in and beneficiaries of the City's federal aid programs if that selection could exclude individuals from 

participation in, or deny them benefits of, or subject them to discrimination on grounds of race, color or 

national origin, or could substantially impair the accomplishment of the objectives of the 

nondiscrimination policy. 

Environmental Justice in Minority and Low-Income Populations: In accordance with Executive Order 

12898, titled "Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority Populations and Low-Income 

Populations," the City will develop strategies to review, consider, and address disproportionally high and 

adverse human health or environmental effects on minority and low-income populations, to promote 

nondiscrimination in Federal-aid programs, substantially effect human health and the environment, and 

to provide minority and low-income communities access to public information and an opportunity for 

public participation in matters relating to human health or the environment. 

314



  

 

 

City of Concord Title VI Plan  9 | P a g e  

 

 

Limited English Proficiency: Approximately 13% of residents in the City primarily speak a language other 

than English. The City will review demographic data annually to identify language assistance needs within 

its service areas, utilizing the American Community Survey, to determine if a formal Limited English 

Proficiency (LEP) Program is needed. 

 

 

 

 

 

  

315



  

 

 

City of Concord Title VI Plan  10 | P a g e  

 

 

Staffing and Organization/Implementation 

City Manager: The City Manager is ultimately responsible for ensuring the City's compliance with Title VI 

Requirements, including, but not limited to, monitoring City programs, preparing required reports and 

undertaking such other responsibilities as required by 23 Code of Federal Regulation (CFR) 200 and 49 

CFR 21. To ensure compliance the City Manager has appointed the Diversity, Equity and Inclusion 

Coordinator to serve as the Title VI Coordinator.  Other department heads will collaborate with the Title 

VI Coordinator as needed to ensure required compliance. 

Diversity, Equity and Inclusion Coordinator Serving as Title VI Plan and Program Coordinator: The Diversity, 

Equity and Inclusion Coordinator is responsible for the overall management of the Title VI Program, under 

the direct supervision of the City Manager to include the following responsibilities as the Title VI 

Coordinator: 

• Process and research complaints regarding compliance with this Title VI Plan that are received by 

the City and coordinate with relevant and appropriate staff and the City Attorney, to compile 

statistical data related to race, color, national origin, sex, age, disability, and income of 

participants in, and beneficiaries of, federally funded programs to ensure compliance with the 

Title VI Requirements. 

• Review City programs or projects receiving federal funding for matters regarding Title VI 

compliance and reporting. 

• Conduct training programs related to Title VI Requirements for City staff who are responsible for 

Title VI compliance, and for contractors or subrecipients who are subject to Title VI 

Requirements. Make recommendations to the City Manager on ways to achieve compliance with 

Title VI Requirements. 

• Develop information regarding this Title VI Plan for dissemination to the general public 

• Ensure that individuals who will be affected by locating and siting actions obtain meaningful 

access to the public awareness/involvement process. 

• Identify deficiencies in compliance with the Title VI Requirements, and make recommendations 

to the City Manager for remedial actions to be taken to promptly resolve such deficiencies. 

• Annually prepare a Title VI Plan Report that documents progress, accomplishments, impediments 

and goals in fulfilling this Title VI Plan. 

 

Departmental Responsibility: Each Department Head is responsible for Title VI compliance, with support 

from the Title VI Coordinator, for individual projects. Compliance activities include, but are not limited to: 

• Ensuring that all aspects of a project's planning process and operations comply with the Title VI 

Requirements. 

• Ensuring that Affected Parties have meaningful access to a project's planning processes. 

• Assisting the Title VI Coordinator in gathering and organizing data for the Title VI Plan Report.  

• Reviewing the Department work programs, policies, and other directives to ensure compliance 

with the Title VI Requirements. 

• Verifying the level of participation of Affected Parties at public outreach meetings. 

316



  

 

 

City of Concord Title VI Plan  11 | P a g e  

 

 

Title VI Nondiscrimination Complaint Process 

 
Any person who believes that he or she or any other program beneficiaries have been subjected to 

unequal treatment or discrimination in his or her receipt of benefits and/or services from the City, or by a 

contractor or subrecipient on the grounds of race, color, national origin, sex, age, disability, or income, 

may file a Title VI Complaint with the Title VI Coordinator.  

Any person who believes that he or she or any other program beneficiaries have been subjected to 

unequal treatment or discrimination in their receipt of benefits and/or services, or on the grounds of 

race, religion, color, sex, marital status, familial status, national origin, age, mental or physical disability, 

sexual orientation, gender identity and source of income, may file a complaint. The complaint form is 

included in this document.  

Every effort will be made to obtain early resolution of complaints. The option of information mediation 

meeting(s) between the Title VI Coordinator, City staff, contractors, subrecipients and Affected Parties 

may be utilized for resolution.  

The following procedures cover all complaints filed under Title VI. These procedures do not deny the right 

of the complainant after the completion of the Title VI process to file a complaint with state or federal 

agencies or to bring private action based on the complaint.  

1. Any person, group of persons, or entity that believes they have been subjected to 

discrimination under the Title VI requirements may file a written complaint with the Title 

VI Coordinator. The complaint must be filed within 180 days of the alleged discriminatory 

act or occurrence.  

2. Upon receipt of the complaint, the Title VI Coordinator will determine whether the City 

has jurisdiction over the complaint, whether the complaint contains the necessary 

information, what additional information is needed, and whether further investigation is 

needed.  Within five working days of receipt of the complaint, the Title VI Coordinator will 

determine whether the complaint is complete, and if it requires additional investigation.  

3. The Title VI Coordinator will provide the respondent the opportunity to respond in writing 

to the allegations of the complaint. The respondent shall have fifteen days from receipt 

of notification to provide a response to the allegation in the complaint.  

4. If the complaint is against a contractor or subrecipient, the City shall have fifteen days 

from receipt of the complaint to advise the appropriate state or federal agency of the 

receipt of complaint and statutes of the investigation.   

5. Within sixty days of the receipt of the complaint the Title VI Coordinator shall prepare a 

written investigative report. The report shall include narrative description of the incident, 

identification of persons interviewed, findings, and recommendations for resolution and 

corrective action. The written report will be sent to the Deputy City Attorney.  

6. The Deputy City Attorney will review the report and meet with the Title VI Coordinator 

and the City Manager to determine the appropriate action.  

7. When the investigative report is complete and appropriate action has been determined, 

the complainant and respondent shall receive a copy of the report, statement of 

appropriate action, and notification of appeal rights.  

317



  

 

 

City of Concord Title VI Plan  12 | P a g e  

 

 

8. Within fifteen days of the complainant and respondent receiving a copy of the report and 

determination of appropriate action, the Title VI Coordinator will meet with each party to 

discuss the determination of appropriate action as well as the findings made in the 

investigative report.  

9. Within sixty days of receipt of the original complaint, a copy of the complaint and the 

City’s investigative report and determination of appropriate action will be provided to the 

appropriate federal or state agency for comments.  

10. Within fifteen days of receiving comments from the federal or state agency, the Title VI 

Coordinator will meet with all parties to discuss comments provided by the responding 

agencies.  

11. After receiving comments from the federal or state agency, the City Manager shall review 

the comments and adopt a final decision that includes taking appropriate actions to 

address any comments provided by a federal or state agency. The final decision shall be 

provided to all parties of the proceedings and shall include a statement that a party has a 

right to appeal the decision if the party produces evidence of new facts that were not 

previously considered and could not have been reasonably discovered during the 

investigation.  

12. If a party is not satisfied with the results of the investigation or the resolution of the 

complaint, the party may appeal the City Manager’s decision to the appropriate federal 

or state agency, by filing a request for an appeal no later than 180 days after the date of 

the City Manager’s final decision.  

  

 

 

       

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

318



  

 

 

City of Concord Title VI Plan  13 | P a g e  

 

 

Council Resolution  

RESOLUTION TO ADOPT A TITLE VI POLICY 
TO PROHIBIT DISCRIMINATION IN PROGRAMS AND SERVICES 

AND IN ACTIVITIES RECEIVING FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

 

WHEREAS, in 1964, Congress enacted the Civil Rights Act of 1964, which included that section labeled Title 

VI which prohibits discrimination in any activity which is financed by federal funds or receives federal 

financial assistance; and 

WHEREAS, since the adoption or Title VI, additional federal regulations and court decisions have further 

refined the definition of "federal financial assistance" and what entities are affected and controlled by Title 

VI; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Concord has no formal policy in place for defining and preventing discrimination in 

'the activities and for the entities Title VI affects; and 

WHEREAS, the interpretation and application are not intuitive or readily understood, requiring an 

understanding of what "federal financial assistance" might be in any particular situation and what persons 

or entities must comply with Title VI; and 

WHEREAS, a policy and procedure for reporting violations will provide guidelines for the City, City 

Departments and private persons and companies doing business with the City and receiving federal 

financial assistance. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CONCORD, THAT: 

     1.  The attached "'Title VI Plan", including its policies and procedures, is hereby adopted as the 

official policy of the City of Concord for applying, reporting and enforcing Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 

1964. 

     2.  The City Manager is authorized to approve this policy on a yearly basis if no changes are made to 

it. 

Adopted this __th day of ___________, 2021.        
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
                 
ATTEST: ___________________________ 
  Kim J. Deason, City Clerk 

 
 

CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF CONCORD 

NORTH CAROLINA 

 

 

_____________________________ 

William C. Dusch, Mayor  

  

Appendix A 

319



  

 

 

City of Concord Title VI Plan  14 | P a g e  

 

 

Title VI Nondiscrimination Policy Statement 
 

It is the policy of the City of Concord to ensure that no person shall, on the ground of race, color, national 
origin, limited English Proficiency, income level, sex, age, or disability, be excluded from participation in, 
be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under any City of Concord program 
or activity, including, where applicable, religion, as provided by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 
United States Department of Transportation (DOT) Order 1050.2A, Title 49 Code of Federal Regulations 
(CFR) Part 21, the Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, and other pertinent nondiscrimination authorities. 
 
The following practices are hereby prohibited throughout the City of Concord to comply, at a minimum, 
with Title VI and related requirements: 
 

• Denying to an individual any standard service or other program benefit without good cause. 

• Providing any service or other benefit to a person which is distinct in quantity or quality, or is 
provided in a different manner, from that provided to others under the program. 

• Subjecting a person to segregation or separate treatment in any part of a program. 

• Restrictions in the enjoyment of any advantages, privileges, or other benefits enjoyed by others. 

• Methods of Administration, which, directly or through contractual relationships, would defeat or 
substantially impair the accomplishment of effective nondiscrimination. 

• Different standards, criteria, or other requirements for admission, enrollment, or participation in 
planning, advisory, contractual, or other integral activities. 

• Acts of intimidation or retaliation, including threatening, coercing, or discriminating against any 
individual for the purpose of interfering with any right or privilege secured by any pertinent 
nondiscrimination law, or because he/she has made a complaint, testified, assisted, or 
participated in any manner in an investigation, proceeding or hearing. 

• Discrimination in any employment resulting from a program, a primary objective of which is to 
provide employment. 

 
To assure that appropriate program measures are implemented and monitored, I have designated Emma 
Sellers, Diversity, Equity and Inclusion Coordinator, as the City of Concord’s Title VI Coordinator: (704) 
920-5201, sellerse@concordnc.gov. As an expression of my commitment to and support of the City’s Title 
VI Nondiscrimination Program, below is my signature as the City Manager of the City of Concord. 
 
 
__________________________________   _______________________________ 
Lloyd Wm. Payne, Jr., City Manager    Date 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix B 

320

mailto:sellerse@concordnc.gov


  

 

 

City of Concord Title VI Plan  15 | P a g e  

 

 

Notice of Nondiscrimination and Accessibility Rights 

 

The City of Concord, pursuant to its policy to comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and other 

pertinent nondiscrimination authorities, will not exclude from participation in, deny the benefits of, or 

subject to discrimination any person based on race, color, national origin, limited English Proficiency, 

income-level, sex, age, or disability (or religion, where applicable), under any programs or activities 

conducted or funded by the City of Concord.  

Any person who believes they have been wronged by a discriminatory act (action or inaction) of the City 

of Concord or its funding recipients, has the right to file a complaint with the City of Concord. For 

instructions on how to file a complaint, or additional information regarding the City of Concord’s 

nondiscrimination obligations, please contact: 

City of Concord City Manager’s Office 

Emma Sellers, Diversity Equity and Inclusion Coordinator 

P. O. Box 308  

Concord, NC 28025 

704-920-5201 

You may also visit www.concordnc.gov 

Anyone with a hearing or speech impairment may use Relay NC, a telecommunications relay service, to 

call the City of Concord City Manager’s Office. Relay NC can be accessed by dialing 711 or 1-877-735-

8200. 

ATTENTION: If you speak a language other than English, the following language assistance services are 

available to you, free of charge. Qualified interpreters and information written in other languages. Call 1-

800-522-0453. 

ATENCION: Si habla un idioma distinto del inglés, los siguientes servicios de asistencia de idiomas estån 

disponibles para usted, de forma gratuita. Intérpretes cualificados e informaciån escrita en otros idiomas. 

Lianne al 1-800-522-0453. 

  

Appendix C 

321



  

 

 

City of Concord Title VI Plan  16 | P a g e  

 

 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY STATEMENT 

 

The City of Concord is an equal opportunity employer. Discrimination against any person in recruitment, 

examinations, appointments, training, promotion, retention, discipline, salary increases, or any other 

aspect of personnel administration because of race, color, national origin, or because of political or 

religious opinions or affiliations is hereby prohibited. Discrimination on the basis of age, sex, or physical 

disability is hereby prohibited except where specific age, sex, or physical requirements constitute a bona 

fide occupational qualification necessary for job performance. Any applicants or employees "not at will" 

who believe that employment, promotion, training, transfer or salary increases were denied them or that 

demotion, transfer, layoff, or termination was forced on them may, as a matter of right, use the grievance 

procedure described in this manual without fear of coercion or reprisal. In addition, employees are 

entitled under federal statutes to register their complaints with the United States Equal Employment 

Opportunity Commission.  The City of Concord is committed to providing access, equal opportunity and 

reasonable accommodation for individuals with disabilities in employment opportunities. 

 

 

 

Appendix D 

322



  

 

 

City of Concord Title VI Plan  17 | P a g e  

 

 

        City of Concord 

Title VI Complaint Form 
 

Any person who believes that he/she has been subjected to discrimination based upon race, color, sex, age, national 

origin, disability, income-level, or limited English proficiency may file a written complaint with the City of Concord’s 

Title VI Coordinator within 180 days after the discrimination occurred. 

Last Name: 
 
 

First Name:                  Male 
 
                 Female 

Mailing Address: 
 
 

City: State: Zip Code: 

Home Telephone: 
 

Work/Cell Phone: Email Address: 
 
 

Identify the Category of Discrimination: 
      RACE                          COLOR                            NATIONAL ORIGIN                LIMITED ENGLISH PROFICIENCY 
      RELIGION                  DISABILITY                     SEX                                           INCOME LEVEL                        AGE 
 
      OTHER ___________________________________ 
 
NOTE: Religion is covered as a basis only under NCDOT’s Right of Way Unit (Fair Housing) and Public Transportation 

and Aviation Division. 

Identify the Race of the Complainant: 
      Black                                       White                               Hispanic                                  Asian American               
      American Indian                   Alaskan Native                Pacific Islander                      Other ________________ 

 
Date and place of alleged discriminatory action(s).  Please include earliest date of discrimination and most recent date 

of discrimination: 

 
 

Names of individuals responsible for the alleged discriminatory action(s): 

 

How were you allegedly discriminated against?  Describe the nature of the action, decision, or conditions of the alleged 

discrimination.  Explain as clearly as possible what happened and why you believe your protected status (basis) was a 

factor in the discrimination.  Include how other persons were treated differently from you.  Attach additional page(s) if 

necessary. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix E 

323



  

 

 

City of Concord Title VI Plan  18 | P a g e  

 

 

 
 

 

The law prohibits intimidation or retaliation against anyone because he/she either has taken action, or participated in 

action, to secure rights protected by these laws.  If you feel you have been retaliated against, separate from the 

discrimination alleged above, please explain the circumstances below.  Explain what action you took which you believe 

was the cause for the alleged retaliation.  Attach additional page(s) if necessary. 

 

Names of persons (witnesses, fellow employees, supervisors, or others) whom we may contact for additional 
information to support to clarify your complaint:  Attach additional page(s) if necessary. 

 
     Name                                                            Address                                                                     Telephone 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Have you filed, or intend to file, a complaint regarding the matter raised with any of the following?  If yes, please 
provide the filing dates.  Check all that apply. 

 
_______ Federal Highway Administration _____________________________________ 
_______ Federal Transit Administration ____________________________________ 
_______ Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration ________________________ 
_______ US Department of Transportation ____________________________ 
_______ Federal or State Court _______________________________ 
_______ NC Department of Transportation _________________________ 
_______ Other __________________________ 
 
 

Have you discussed the complaint with any City of Concord representative?  If yes, provide the name, position, and 
date of discussion. 

 

 

324



  

 

 

City of Concord Title VI Plan  19 | P a g e  

 

 

 

Please provide any additional information that you believe would assist with an investigation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Briefly explain what remedy, or action, you are seeking for the alleged discrimination. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AN UNSIGNED COMPLAINT WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED.  PLEASE SIGN AND DATE THE FORM BELOW. 

 
 
COMPLAINANT’S SIGNATURE 

 
 
DATE 

MAIL COMPLAINT FORM TO: 
City of Concord 

Emma Sellers, Title VI Coordinator 
via email at sellerse@concordnc.gov or  

via mail at PO Box 308 Concord, NC 28025  
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY 

Date Complaint Received: ________________ 
Processed by: ______________________ 
Referred to: _________________________                   Date Referred: _______________ 

 

  

325

mailto:sellerse@concordnc.gov


  

 

 

City of Concord Title VI Plan  20 | P a g e  

 

 

 

ASSURANCES OF COMPLIANCE WITH TITLE VI OF THE CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1964 
 

As a condition of receipt of federal financial assistance from the Department of the Treasury, the 

recipient named below (hereinafter referred to as the “Recipient”) provides the assurances stated herein.  

 

The federal financial assistance may include federal grants, loans and contracts to provide assistance to 

the Recipient’s beneficiaries, the use or rent of Federal land or property at below market value, Federal 

training, a loan of Federal personnel, subsidies, and other arrangements with the intention of providing 

assistance. Federal financial assistance does not encompass contracts of guarantee or insurance, 

regulated programs, licenses, procurement contracts by the Federal government at market value, or 

programs that provide direct benefits. 

 

The assurances apply to all federal financial assistance from or funds made available through the 

Department of the Treasury, including any assistance that the Recipient may request in the future. 

 

The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 provides that the provisions of the assurances apply to all of the 

operations of the Recipient’s program(s) and activity(ies), so long as any portion of the Recipient’s 

program(s) or activity(ies) is federally assisted in the manner prescribed above. 

 

1. Recipient ensures its current and future compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as 

amended, which prohibits exclusion from participation, denial of the benefits of, or subjection to 

discrimination under programs and activities receiving federal financial assistance, of any person in the 

United States on the ground of race, color, or national origin (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.), as implemented 

by the Department of the Treasury Title VI regulations at 31 CFR Part 22 and other pertinent executive 

orders such as Executive Order 13166, directives, circulars, policies, memoranda, and/or guidance 

documents. 

 

2. Recipient acknowledges that Executive Order 13166, “Improving Access to Services for Persons with 

Limited English Proficiency,” seeks to improve access to federally assisted programs and activities for 

individuals who, because of national origin, have Limited English proficiency (LEP). Recipient understands 

that denying a person access to its programs, services, and activities because of LEP is a form of national 

origin discrimination prohibited under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the Department of the 

Treasury’s implementing regulations. Accordingly, Recipient shall initiate reasonable steps, or comply 

with the Department of the Treasury’s directives, to ensure that LEP persons have meaningful access to 

its programs, services, and activities. Recipient understands and agrees that meaningful access may entail 

providing language assistance services, including oral interpretation and written translation where 

necessary, to ensure effective communication in the Recipient’s programs, services, and activities. 

 

3. Recipient agrees to consider the need for language services for LEP persons when Recipient develops 

applicable budgets and conducts programs, services, and activities. As a resource, the Department of the 

Treasury has published its LEP guidance at 70 FR 6067. For more information on taking reasonable steps 

to provide meaningful access for LEP persons, please visit http://www.lep.gov. OMB Approved No. 1505 

0271 Expiration Date: November 30, 2021 2 

Appendix F 

326



  

 

 

City of Concord Title VI Plan  21 | P a g e  

 

 

 

4. Recipient acknowledges and agrees that compliance with the assurances constitutes a condition of 

continued receipt of federal financial assistance and is binding upon Recipient and Recipient’s successors, 

transferees, and assignees for the period in which such assistance is provided. 

 

5. Recipient acknowledges and agrees that it must require any sub-grantees, contractors, subcontractors, 

successors, transferees, and assignees to comply with assurances 1-4 above, and agrees to incorporate 

the following language in every contract or agreement subject to Title VI and its regulations between the 

Recipient and the Recipient’s sub-grantees, contractors, subcontractors, successors, transferees, and 

assignees:  

The sub-grantee, contractor, subcontractor, successor, transferee, and assignee shall comply with Title VI 

of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, which prohibits recipients of federal financial assistance from excluding 

from a program or activity, denying benefits of, or otherwise discriminating against a person on the basis 

of race, color, or national origin (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.), as implemented by the Department of the 

Treasury’s Title VI regulations, 31 CFR Part 22, which are herein incorporated by reference and made a 

part of this contract (or agreement). Title VI also includes protection to persons with “Limited English 

Proficiency” in any program or activity receiving federal financial assistance, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., as 

implemented by the Department of the Treasury’s Title VI regulations, 31 CFR Part 22, and herein 

incorporated by reference and made a part of this contract or agreement.  

 

6. Recipient understands and agrees that if any real property or structure is provided or improved with 

the aid of federal financial assistance by the Department of the Treasury, this assurance obligates the 

Recipient, or in the case of a subsequent transfer, the transferee, for the period during which the real 

property or structure is used for a purpose for which the federal financial assistance is extended or for 

another purpose involving the provision of similar services or benefits. If any personal property is 

provided, this assurance obligates the Recipient for the period during which it retains ownership or 

possession of the property.  

 

7. Recipient shall cooperate in any enforcement or compliance review activities by the Department of the 

Treasury of the aforementioned obligations. Enforcement may include investigation, arbitration, 

mediation, litigation, and monitoring of any settlement agreements that may result from these actions. 

The Recipient shall comply with information requests, on-site compliance reviews and reporting 

requirements.  

 

8. Recipient shall maintain a complaint log and inform the Department of the Treasury of any complaints 

of discrimination on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, and limited English proficiency covered 

by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and implementing regulations and provide, upon request, a list of 

all such reviews or proceedings based on the complaint, pending or completed, including outcome. 

Recipient also must inform the Department of the Treasury if Recipient has received no complaints under 

Title VI.  

 

9. Recipient must provide documentation of an administrative agency’s or court’s findings of non 

compliance of Title VI and efforts to address the non-compliance, including any voluntary compliance or 

other agreements between the Recipient and the administrative agency that made the finding. If the 

Recipient settles a case or matter alleging such discrimination, the Recipient must provide documentation 

327



  

 

 

City of Concord Title VI Plan  22 | P a g e  

 

 

of the settlement. If Recipient has not been the subject of any court or administrative agency finding of 

discrimination, please so state. 

  

10. If the Recipient makes sub-awards to other agencies or other entities, the Recipient is responsible for 

ensuring that sub-recipients also comply with Title VI and other applicable authorities covered in this 

document State agencies that make sub-awards must have in place standard grant assurances and review 

procedures to demonstrate that that they are effectively monitoring the civil rights compliance of 

subrecipients.  

 

The United States of America has the right to seek judicial enforcement of the terms of this assurances 

document and nothing in this document alters or limits the federal enforcement measures that the 

United States may take in order to address violations of this document or applicable federal law. 

  

Under penalty of perjury, the undersigned official(s) certifies that official(s) has read and understood the 

Recipient’s obligations as herein described, that any information submitted in conjunction with this 

assurances document is accurate and complete, and that the Recipient is in compliance with the 

aforementioned nondiscrimination requirements.  

 

 

 

 

 

____________________________________            ___________________________________ 

Recipient      Date 

 

 

___________________________________________ 

Signature of Authorized Official 

 

328



8.1 HIRING PROCEDURE POLICY 
 
A. Proponent: 
 
The proponent for the hiring procedure policy is the Director of Human Resources. 
 
B. Purpose: 
 
The purpose of this policy is to provide guidelines for the hiring process. 
 
C. Procedure: 
 
(1) When a position vacancy occurs, a requisition will be created in the City’s online recruitment 
system by the Department and routed for approval to the Department Director and, if applicable, to the 
Assistant City Manager with final approval from the City Manager. Once all requisition approvals are completed 
in the system, the job will be posted by Human Resources to the City’s website and advertised electronically 
via job boards and social media sites. Unless otherwise requested by the Department Director, applications will 
be accepted for a period of ten (10) days. Directors may work with HR to advertise in other locations in addition 
to the City’s website (i.e. professional publications, association websites, etc.) so as to gain broader visibility on 
the vacancy and ensure that any applications received from outside locations are properly routed into the City’s 
applicant tracking system. 
 
(2) Applications are only accepted for current job vacancies and applications must be submitted 
online through the City’s online employment application portal. An applicant applying for more than one job 
vacancy must submit a separate application for each open position. Current employees must also apply for all 
job vacancies online via the City’s internal employment application portal.  
 
(3) Human Resources will review each application to determine if the applicant meets the minimum 
qualifications based on either the minimum education and experience noted in the job posting or based on the 
equivalency as outlined in the education and experience equivalency matrix. A list of qualified candidates will 
be provided to the corresponding Department Director and/or designated hiring manager(s) denoting the 
qualifying status. The Department Director and/or the designated hiring manager(s) will only have access to 
the qualified candidate list within the City’s online recruitment system.  
 
The Department will conduct the employment screenings of the qualified candidates and by using a 
combination of approved questions from Human Resources and department specific questions, the department 
will conduct subsequent interviews with the qualified candidates. Human Resources will be available to 
participate in interviews at the request of the department. Once a candidate for the position has been selected 
for employment, a Personnel Action Notice (PAN) should be submitted to Human Resources for processing as 
well as all interview notes and/or documents for every candidate who participated in the interview process for 
the position.  
 
In instances where the selected candidate for hire meets the minimum qualifications based on equivalency, the 
Department Director should submit a letter of justification outlining the rationale for the selection along with the 
PAN. 
 
(4) Once the PAN is received, Human Resources will contact the selected candidate and upon satisfactory 
completion of the applicable pre-employment screenings, an offer of employment will be made. Please note, 
only Human Resources can communicate offers of employment. Once the offer is accepted Human Resources 
will notify the Department Director. Non-selected applicants and non-selected qualified candidates will receive 
notification via the City’s online recruitment system that the position has been filled. 
 
(5) Please note that once a position is filled, applicants must reapply to be considered for future 
vacancies; however, if specified by state statute or if the same job classification opens within 60 
days after it has been filled, the department may go back to the same applicant pool and contact 
candidates who previously applied. 

329



8.13 City of Concord Computer Network, Email, and Internet Access Policy 
 
Purpose 
 
The City of Concord provides a computer network giving its employees access to the Internet 
and both internal and external email and file transfer services. The system allows City 
employees (Users) and the public to use an efficient means to transfer information. The rapid 
growth of these electronic tools has required that a policy be put in place to serve as a guideline 
as to how the systems are to be used. Users are required to abide by all of the applicable rules. 
 
Permitted Use of the Internet and the City Computer Network 
 
The computer network is the property of the City of Concord ("The City") and may only be used 
for legitimate business purposes. Users are provided access to the computer network to assist 
them in the performance of their jobs. Additionally, certain employees ("Users") may also be 
provided with access to the Internet through the computer network. All Users have a 
responsibility to use the City's computer resources and the Internet in a professional, lawful, 
and ethical manner. Abuse of the computer network or the Internet, may result in disciplinary 
action, including possible termination, and civil and/or criminal liability. Personal use of the City 
network is limited to reasonable and appropriate use of the system as monitored by each 
department head and technology services. 
 
The City utilizes a two-step verification process (Multi-Factor Authentication) to verify user identity, 
which is a core component of a strong identity and access management system.  In the City’s efforts 
to reduce cyber security threats and illegal system access, users will be required to log-in using a 
two-step verification process.  Multi-Factor Authentication requires two distinct forms of identification 
to access the City’s computer network.  Users are required to supply initial credentials, such as 
username and password, as well as a second form of verification that will be sent to the user’s 
cellular device.  If a cellular device is deemed to be an unacceptable method to receive the 
verification code, a token may be issued to a user upon Assistant City Manager approval.  The token 
will provide a code that will be used as a second form of verification during the log-in process.  Lost or 
damaged tokens will be replaced by the user at the actual costs of the token at that point in time. 
  
Failure to adhere to the City’s two-step verification process may result in disciplinary action. 
   
Computer Network Use Limitations 
 
Prohibited Uses. The City's computer network may not be used to disseminate, view or store 
unauthorized materials including but not limited to commercial or personal advertisements, 
solicitations, promotions, destructive code (e.g., viruses, self-replicating programs, etc.), 
political material, pornographic text or images, “entertainments” such as gambling or home 
shopping sites, chain e-mails, and personal charitable solicitations. On-line auctions and 
instant messaging are prohibited. Users may not illegally copy material protected under 
copyright law or make that material available to others for copying. You are responsible for 
complying with copyright law and applicable licenses that may apply to software, files, graphics, 
documents, messages, and other material you wish to download or copy. You may not agree 
to license or download any material for which a registration fee is charged without first obtaining 
the express written permission of the City. If you suspect that a virus has been introduced into 
the City's network, notify technology services immediately. 
 
Law Enforcement and Legal Exception: In order to fulfill only their law enforcement and/or 
professional obligations, the Police Chief, City Manager, or City Attorneys may engage in the 

330



Prohibited Uses described above. The City Manager and/or Police Chief may delegate this 
authority in writing to their respective staffs in order to fulfill their duties. Such delegation shall 
be reasonably limited in scope and duration as required by the facts and circumstances 
necessitating the delegation. 
 
Phishing 
 
Users often receive fraudulent emails/texts referred to as “phishing”.  Phishing is a type of social 
engineering where an attacker sends a fraudulent ("spoofed") message designed to trick a human 
victim into revealing sensitive information to the attacker or to deploy malicious software on the 
victim's infrastructure like ransomware.  City coworkers receive mandatory training, no less than 4 
times a year, regarding fraudulent email messages.  City coworkers should not open these 
messages.   
  
When an employee opens a link or attachment in a phishing message and/or provides sensitive 
information requested by the message, the user is in violation of the City’s Computer Network, Email 
and Internet Access Policy as stated above.  The following steps should be followed to address an 
employee’s violations over a 12-month period, beginning with the first violation.  
  
1. First failure – auto generated email about the failure with a link to a short, 1-3 minute required 
refresher training.   A verbal warning will be issued. 
  
2. Second failure – auto generated email with a link to a required more in-depth training video (5 
minutes) that includes a quiz at the end.  At this point the employee should be issued a written 
warning with a clear understanding that the next violation will result in suspension of one day. 
  
3. Third failure – auto generated email is sent that requires the employee to complete a more 
intensive training; computer may lock and access to the network may be blocked until the training is 
completed.  A third failure will result in suspension of one day and at this point the employee’s 
performance will be evaluated to determine if termination is warranted. 
 In some cases a coworker may appeal the failed test when the department head feels the phishing 
message was too difficult to identify.  The appeal should be presented to the City Manager for 
approval. 
 
 
Duty Not to Waste or Damage Computer Resources 
 
Departmental Responsibility. Departmental directors are responsible for the implementation and 
adherence of the City's network, email, and Internet policies. In the event that any department or 
division policy contradicts the policy, this policy shall govern. This policy may be changed only upon 
written approval of the City Manager. 
 
Passwords. All users must maintain confidential passwords in order to access the City's 
network, GroupWise email, and Internet accounts. The passwords must be a combination of numbers 
and letters and should not be common words or dates such as birthdays, children, or pet names. 
Passwords are not to be shared and should be kept in a secure location away from your workstation. 
Users have the responsibility to change passwords on a periodic basis. 
 
Frivolous Use. The User must not deliberately perform acts that waste computer resources or 
unfairly monopolize resources to the exclusion of others. These acts include, but are not limited to, 
sending mass mailings or chain letters, spending excessive amounts of time on the Internet, playing 
games, engaging in online chat groups, uploading or downloading large files, accessing streaming 

331



audio and/or video files, or otherwise creating unnecessary loads on network traffic associated with 
nonbusiness related uses of the Internet. 
 
Public Records. Email and Electronic Documents created, stored, sent, or received by the City’s 
computer network may constitute public records as determined by North Carolina Public Record Act 
provided in Chapters 121 and 132. This Policy shall not invalidate any exception to public record laws 
or to imply that all documents are public records. Email is a public record and must be made 
accessible unless its content is exempt from inspection by statutes or other regulations. Detailed 
public record information can be found at North Carolina Office of Archives and History website at 
http://www.ah.dcr.state.nc.us/sections/archives/rec/default.htm. A list of examples of public records can be 
found in Appendix “A”. 
 
Email and Electronic Document Retention. Emails and Electronic retention and disposition are 
outlined in Chapters 121 and 132 of the “General Statutes of North Carolina”. Each individual user of 
Email and Electronic documents are responsible for the retention and management of their records 
as outlined in the Act. The retention requirements are listed in Appendix “B”. Documents placed in the 
"trash" are not to be retained for longer than 1 day after being deleted by the user. For Emails, each 
individual user must review all messages within 30 days and file them under the appropriate record 
retention category as outlined in Appendix “B”. All Emails which are not public records shall be 
deleted. 
 
Applicability to Employees, Part-time employees, Contractors, and Others.  
This policy applies to all employees, contractors, part-time employees, and others having access to 
the City of Concord network and email system. Contractors and third-party users who are in violation 
of this policy may be removed from the system and/or have their contract revoked. In addition, other 
legal remedies may be pursued. Employees who are terminated have no right to the contents on the 
City network or email system. Supervisors or management may access an employee's emails and 
files if the employee is absent, on sick leave, leave of absence, or vacation and are necessary for the 
City's business purposes. 
 
 
Emails will be backed up to tape on a 5 working day rotating basis. 
 
Privacy 
 
Employees are given computers and Internet access to assist them in the performance of their jobs. 
Employees should have no expectation of privacy in anything they create, store, send or receive 
using the City's computer equipment. The computer network is the property of the City and may be 
used only for City purposes. Users expressly waive any rights of privacy in anything they create, 
store, send, or receive using the City's computer equipment or Internet access. User consents to 
allow appropriate City personnel access to and review of all material created, stored, sent, or 
received by the User through the City Network or Internet connection. 
 
Monitoring of computer and Internet usage. The City has the right to monitor and log any 
and all aspects of its Computer system including, but not limited to, monitoring Internet sites 
visited by Users, monitoring chat and newsgroups, monitoring file downloads, and all communications 
sent and received by users. The City will use software that makes it possible to identify and monitor 
and/or deny access to Internet sites containing sexually explicit or other material deemed 
inappropriate in the workplace. An audit of the system will be performed each 12 months or at the 
request of a department head or the City Manager to review how the system is being used. 
 
 

332



 
 

City of Concord 
Computer Network, Email, and Internet 

Access Policy 
 
 

Revised July 8, 2021 
Employee Acknowledgement of Understanding 

 
 
 
 
I have read and agree to comply with the terms of this policy governing the use of the City of Concord's 
computer network. I understand that violation of this policy may result in disciplinary action, including 
possible termination and civil and criminal penalties. 
 
 
 
 
 
              
Signature           Date     
 
 
 
              
Printed name          
 

 
 

333



Appendix “A” 
 

Emails, Email Attachments, and Documents considered public record when sent or received in normal 
business processes under the Public Records Act and are subject to the approved Records Retention 
and Disposition schedules.  Origination (created or received) of the document does not affect their 
status.  The following are examples of Email messages that are considered public records and should 
be retained according to the retention and disposition schedule. 
 

• Policies and Directives 
• Correspondence related to official business 
• Work schedules 
• Meeting agendas or minutes 
• Any document that initiates, authorizes, or completes a business transaction 
• Reports 
• Draft documents that are to be reviewed and/or commented upon. 
• States a decision 
• Outlines procedures 
• Shows action 
• Gives guidance 
• Is unique (in the terms of possible historic value) 
• You’re not sure 

 
 

Some Email and documents are considered to be public record but have extremely limited value.  
Examples and can generally be deleted 

• “While you were out” messages 
• “Call me when you return to your office” 
• “There is an interesting article on this subject at _______” 
• “Budget requests are due on the 30th” 
• Makes a travel reservation 
• Confirms an appointment 
• Asks for a meeting 
• Is in the nature of a telephone message 
• Transmits other documents without comment 
• Junk mail 
• Is a preliminary or rough draft containing no significant information that is not also contained in 

the final draft 
• Is a document downloaded from the World Wide Web (www) or by file transfer protocol (ftp) 

not used in the transaction of business 
• Does not contain information necessary to conduct official business, meet statutory 

obligations, carry out administrative functions, or meet City objectives. 
• Other examples can be found at: http://www.ah.dcr.state.nc.us/sections/archives/rec/shortterm.htm 

 
 
Personal Email is not a public record and should be avoided altogether or used sparingly. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

334



Work-related Email and documents exempt from disclosure as public records: 
• Personnel information gathered by the City as defined by GS 160A-168 
• Any attorney/client privileged information and work product (note: This is recently changed and 

may no longer be exempt) 
• Citizen or employee social security number collected by the City 
• Trade secret materials 
• Computer security information of the City 
• Building plans of city-owned buildings 
• Billing information of customers compiled and maintained in connection with City providing utility 

services 
• Information relating to criminal investigations conducted by the City and records of criminal 

intelligence information compiled by the City 
• Local tax records of the City that contains information about a taxpayer’s income or receipts 

 

 
Appendix “B” 

Records Retention and Disposition Schedule 
Type of Record Retention Period 

Correspondence relating to purchasing goods or services 3 Years 
Reports prepared by City Key Business Units 3 Years 
About seminars or workshops attended by City Employees 1 Year 
About citizen complaints After the matter has been 

resolved 
Related to active or proposed projects 1 year after project ends 
Administrative or management correspondence concerning City 
operating philosophy, methods, or functions 

3 Years 

About municipal fundraising activities 1 year 
Relating to the administration of federal grants 3 years after the grant has 

ended, or when released from 
all audits, claims, or litigation, 

whichever occurs later 
About internal management studies conducted by City administration 
or staff about any aspect of municipal administration (including charts, 
memoranda, surveys, cost analysis, etc.) 

May destroy when reference 
value has ended 

Requests for cost quotation for equipment, supplies, or services 3 years if no audit, claim, 
litigation or other official 
proceeding involving the 

records has been initiated 
  
 
 
 

Resources: 

 

NC Department of Cultural Resources, Office of Archives and History 
“Email as a Public Record in North Carolina” August 2002 
City of Charlotte, “LegalEase” Volume 10-No.1 February 2004 
NC Office of Archives and History, http://www.ah.dcr.state.nc.us/sections/archives/rec/default.htm 
NC Office of Archives and History, http://www.ah.dcr.state.nc.us/sections/archives/rec/shortterm.htm 
 

335

http://www.ah.dcr.state.nc.us/sections/archives/rec/default.htm
http://www.ah.dcr.state.nc.us/sections/archives/rec/shortterm.htm


 

 
 
 

 
 

 
Quarterly Council Report 

 

UTILITY EXTENSIONS/ADDITIONS PERMITTED 
 

April 1- June 30, 2021 
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

336



 

 
SUMMARY 

 
During the past quarter, the City of Concord Engineering Department’s local permitting programs have 

authorized the expansion of the City of Concord’s water distribution system and wastewater collection system 
to areas that have been recently annexed, developed or to portions of the countywide service area, where 
infrastructure is lacking, deficient or overloaded.  

 
In summary, the water distribution and wastewater collection expansion projects, as permitted by the 

City of Concord’s delegated permitting program during the quarter of April 1- June 30, 2021, are as follows: 
 

WATER: 
The City of Concord initiated water distribution system extensions permitted by the City of Concord’s delegated 
permitting 1,821 linear feet of 2-inch water lines and other appurtenances to replace the existing water mains 
located on located on Gold St. NW from the intersection of Bay Ave. to Cabarrus Ave., Crowell Drive SW. and 
Vee Avenue SW, and Crowell Dr. NW and intersection with Cedar Dr. NW to provide services to existing 
customers, with a zero increase to the existing average domestic and industrial water demand, of treated water 
from the City of Concord’s existing potable water distribution system.  

 
The Developer initiated PUBLIC water distribution system extensions permitted by the City of Concord’s 
delegated permitting program consisted of approximately 6,030 linear feet of 12-inch water main, 22 linear feet 
of 10-inch water main, 14,581 linear feet of 8-inch water main, 2,275 linear feet of 6-inch water main, 1,399 
linear feet of 2-inch water main, with valves, hydrants and other appurtenances to serve 313 4-bedroom single 
family units and a clubhouse and swimming pool, 110 3-bedroom single family townhome lots, 3 single family 
residential homes, a 20,500 sq. ft. gas station, fast food restaurant, and commercial area, a 7,647 sq. ft. 
restaurant, and a 75,040 sq. ft. commercial self-storage warehouse, with a total domestic and commercial water 
demand of 199,580 GPD, of treated water from the City of Concord’s existing potable water distribution 
system.  

    
SEWER: 
The City of Concord initiated wastewater collection system extensions permitted by the City of Concord’s 
delegated permitting program consisted of approximately 57.4 linear feet of 12-inch sanitary sewer, 112.73 
linear feet of 10-inch sanitary sewer, and manholes and other appurtenances to serve the existing customers 
and a proposed redevelopment project with 35,291 sq. ft. of commercial space and 138 one-bedroom and 29 
two-bedroom apartment units located off/on of Spring St. SW, with a total wastewater discharge of 41,430 
GPD. 
 
The Developer initiated wastewater collection system extensions permitted by the City of Concord’s delegated 
permitting program consisted of approximately 172 linear feet of 18-inch sanitary sewer, 260 linear feet of 15-
inch sanitary sewer, 8,104 linear feet of 12-inch sanitary sewer, 16,251 linear feet of 8-inch sanitary sewer with 
manholes and other appurtenances to serve 313 4-bedroom single family units and a clubhouse and swimming 
pool 20,500 sq. ft. gas station, fast food restaurant, and commercial area, a 4,630 sq. ft. service garage and oil 
change, 75,040 sq. ft. commercial self-storage warehouse, Hendrick Commercial Truck Center and Hendrick 
Storage Building with a total domestic and commercial wastewater discharge of 160,684 GPD. 
 
*Attributes associated with the reissued permits, including the asset linear footage, water demand, and 
wastewater flow totals are excluded in the quantities for the Modified permits noted as “Renewal” and, 
“Correction”.  
  
Please reference the following pages for more information concerning the authorized expansion and the 
associated particulars of each project permitted by the City from 1st of April to the 30th of June, 2021:  
 

337



 

 
Water Distribution System Extensions: 
April 1- June 30, 2021 

  
Date Issued: April 19, 2021 
Project Title: Gold St. NW-Howerton Ave. 2” Waterline Replacement   
Project # 2020-050 
Developer:   City of Concord- Water Resources  

Attn: Thomas A. Bach, Engineering Manager 
PO Box 308 
Concord, NC 28026 
P) 704-920-5344 
Email) bacht@concordnc.gov 

Description: Construction of approximately 1,019 linear feet of 2-inch water lines with 5 in-
line valves and other appurtenances to replace the existing water main located on 
Gold St. NW from the intersection of Bay Ave. to Cabarrus Ave. with zero 
increase to the existing average domestic water demand.   

 
Date Issued: April 19, 2021 
Project Title: Crowell Drive-Vee Ave 2” Waterline Replacement 
Project # 2020-056 
Developer:   City of Concord- Water Resources  

Attn: Thomas A. Bach, Engineering Manager 
PO Box 308 
Concord, NC 28026 
P) 704-920-5344 
Email) bacht@concordnc.gov 

Description: Construction of approximately 526 linear feet of 2-inch water lines with 2 in-line 
valves and other appurtenances to replace the existing water main located off of 
Crowell Drive SW. and Vee Avenue SW. with zero increase to the existing 
average domestic and industrial water demand. 

 
Date Issued: April 19, 2021 
Project Title: Crowell Dr. NW-Cedar Dr. NW 2” Waterline Replacement 
Project # 2020-057 
Developer:   City of Concord- Water Resources  

Attn: Thomas A. Bach, Engineering Manager 
PO Box 308 
Concord, NC 28026 
P) 704-920-5344 
Email) bacht@concordnc.gov 

Description: Construction of approximately 276 linear feet of 2-inch water lines with 1 in-line 
valve and other appurtenances, to replace the existing water main located on 
Crowell Dr. NW and intersection with Cedar Dr. NW, with zero increase to the 
existing average domestic water demand. 

 
 
 
 
 

338



 

 
Date Issued:  April 29, 2021 
Project Title: Kensley East Subdivision 
Project # 2021-023 

Developer: 

Niblock Homes, LLC 
William T. Niblock, Member 
759 Concord Parkway N, Suite 20 
Concord, NC 28027 
P) 704-788-4818      
E) wniblock@niblockhomes.com 

Description: 

Construction of approximately 384 linear feet of 8-inch water lines with 1 in-line 
valves, 246 linear feet of 2-inch water lines with 1 in-line valves, 2 hydrants, and 
other appurtenances to provide potable water to 13 single family 4-bedroom 
residents located off/on of Eva Drive between Lucky Drive and Red Bud Place 
with an average domestic water demand of 5,200 GPD. 

 
Date Issued: May 10, 2021 
Project Title: Odell Corners Phase 1-Commerical & Roadway Improvements 
Project # 2018-013A 
Developer:   Odell 73 Investments, LLC 

Justin Mueller, Manager  
51 Union Street South, Suite 100  
Concord, NC 28025 
P) 704-578-5688      
Email) justin@sdgcarolinas.com 

Description: Construction of approximately 1,843 linear feet of 12-inch water lines with 5 in-
line valves, 344 linear feet of 8-inch water lines with 3 in-line valves, 52 linear 
feet of 6-inch water lines with 1 in-line valve, 4 hydrants, and other 
appurtenances to provide potable water to serve a 20,500 sq. ft. gas station, fast 
food restaurant, and commercial area located off of Odell School Road and 
Davidson Hwy (Hwy 73), with a commercial water demand of 7,650 GPD. 

 
Date Issued: May 10, 2021 
Project Title: Odell Corners Phase 2-Residential Townhomes 
Project # 2018-013B 
Developer:   Odell 73 Investments, LLC 

Justin Mueller, Manager  
51 Union Street South, Suite 100  
Concord, NC 28025 
P) 704-578-5688      
Email) justin@sdgcarolinas.com 

Description: Construction of approximately 15 linear feet of 8-inch water lines with 1 in-line 
valve, master meter vault, and other appurtenances to provide potable water to 
serve 110 3-bedroom single family townhome lots located off of Odell School 
Road, with an average domestic water demand of 44,000 GPD. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

339



 

 
Date Issued: May 10, 2021 
Project Title: BJ's Restaurant & Brewhouse 
Project # 2020-014 
Developer:   Mall at Concord Mills Limited Partnership,  

A Delaware Limited Partnership 
Attn: Mark Lingelbach, Agent  
225 West Washington Street  
Indianapolis, IN 46204 
P) 317-263-7992  
Email) MLingelbach@simon.com 

Description: Construction of approximately 12 linear feet of 6-inch water lines with 1 in-line 
valve, and other appurtenances to provide potable water to a 7,647 sq. ft. 
Restaurant located on Concord Mills Blvd. with an average commercial water 
demand of 12,200 GPD. 

 

Date Issued: May 10, 2021 
Project Title: Sycamore at Christenbury Commons Apartments- Phase 1 Mod 1-

Correction * 
Project # 2020-062 
Developer:   Sycamore at Christenbury, LLC 

Christopher McGrath, Senior Executive VP 
255 South 17th Street, 20th Floor  
Philadelphia, PA 19103 
P) 215-772-1100     
Email) christopher@switzenbaum.com 

Description: Construction of approximately 412 linear feet of 8-inch water lines with 5 in-line 
valves, 64 linear feet of 6-inch water lines with 2 in-line valves, 1 hydrant, and 
other appurtenances to provide potable water to 275 Multi-family apartment 
units, an amenity center with a 100 sq. ft. fitness center, office, and pool located 
off of Cox Mill Rd. and Christenbury Prkwy, with an average domestic and 
commercial water demand of 115,856 GPD. 

 
Date Issued: May 14, 2021 
Project Title: Kasen Bluff Subdivision Mod 1-Renewal-Change of Ownership * 
Project # 2002-036 
Developer:   Daryl Suther, Owner  

2200 Old Salisbury Rd. 
Concord, NC 28025 
P) 704-786-5197      
E) hanknumb@gorsw.com 

Description: Construction of approximately 415 linear feet of 8-inch water lines with 1 in-line 
valve, 287 linear feet of 2-inch water lines, 1 hydrant, and other appurtenances to 
serve 11 single family 3-bedroom lots, located off Honeycutt Drive, with an 
average domestic water demand of 4,400 GPD. 

 
 
 

 
 

340



 

 
 

Date Issued: June 4, 2021 
Project Title: 38 Meadowview Ave. SW Waterline Extension 
Project # 2021-017 
Developer:   Gary W. Laton, LLC 

Gary W. Laton, Managing Member 
PO Box 1129 
Concord, NC 28026 
P) 704-791-6692      
E) garywlatonllc@gmail.com 

Description: Construction of approximately 122 linear feet of 2-inch water lines and other 
appurtenances to provide potable water to 3 single family residential homes 
located off of Meadowview Ave. with an average domestic water demand of 
1,200 GPD. 

 
Date Issued: June 23, 2021 
Project Title: Highway 29 Mini-Storage 
Project # 2019-058 
Developer:   Mini Storage Depot on Concord Pkwy, LLC 

Lance A. Swank, Manager 
3900 Edison Lakes Parkway, Suite 201 
Mishawaka, IN 46545 
P) 574-247-3215      
Email) cpatterson@thesterlinggrp.com 

Description: Construction of approximately 228 linear feet of 8-inch water lines with 2 in-line 
valves, 1 hydrant, and other appurtenances to provide potable water to serve a 
75,040 sq. ft. commercial self-storage warehouse located off/on of Concord 
Parkway, with a commercial water demand of 150 GPD. 

 
 

Date Issued: June 29, 2021 
Project Title: Annsborough Park Subdivision 
Project # 2019-048 
Developer:   M/I Homes of Charlotte, LLC 

Cody Simoneaux, VP of Land Development  
5350 77 Center Drive, Suite 100 
Charlotte, NC 28217 
P)704-597-4538      
E) csimoneaux@mihomes.com 

Description: Construction of approximately 4,146 linear feet of 12-inch water lines with 7 in-
line valves, 22 linear feet of 10-inch water lines, 13,610 linear feet of 8-inch 
water lines with 26 in-line valves, 2,211 linear feet of 6-inch water lines with 8 
in-line valves, 1,031 linear feet of 2-inch water lines with 4 in-line valves, 38 
hydrants, and other appurtenances to provide potable water to serve 300 4-
bedroom single family units and a clubhouse and swimming pool located off/on 
of Odell School road with an average domestic water demand of 128,430 GPD. 

 

 
 
 

341



 

 
Date Issued: June 29, 2021 
Project Title: Oaklawn Townhome Subdivision Mod 1- Renewal- Change of Ownership *  
Project # 2020-012 
Developer:   Oaklawn Project I, LLC 

Mark Brady, Member  
10100 Innovation Drive, Suite 410 
Dayton, OH 45342 
P) 937-291-1223    
Email) patrick.quinn@ddcmgmt.com 

Description: Construction of approximately 3,787 linear feet of 8-inch water lines with 16 in-
line valves, 395 linear feet of 2-inch water lines with 2 in-line valves, 6 hydrants, 
and other appurtenances to provide potable water to 189 single family Townhome 
lots located off of Harris Road with an average domestic water demand of 75,600 
GPD. 

 
Date Issued: June 30, 2021 
Project Title: Sign Industrial   
Project # 2020-092 
Developer:   DOSA, LLC 

Donald Newton, Sr., Managing Member 
77 McCachern Blvd. SE, Ste. 1 
Concord, NC 28025 
P) 704-792-1900      
Email) premiersr77@gmail.com 

Description: Construction of approximately 41 linear feet of 12-inch water lines with 1 in-line 
valves, and other appurtenances to serve 12,500 sq. ft. flex office space for 30 
employees located off of Sign Drive NW with an average industrial water 
demand of 750 GPD. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

342



 

Wastewater Distribution System Extensions: 
April- June 30, 2021 
 

Date Issued: April 28, 2021 
Project Title: 30 Market Street Sewer Relocation 
Project # 2018-058 
Developer:   City of Concord- Water Resources  

Attn: Thomas A. Bach, Engineering Manager 
PO Box 308 
Concord, NC 28026 
P) 704-920-5344 
Email) bacht@concordnc.gov 

Description: Construction of approximately 57.40 linear feet of 12-inch sanitary sewer, 112.73 
linear feet of 10-inch sanitary sewer with 1 manhole and other appurtenances to 
serve the existing customers and a proposed redevelopment project with 35,291 
sq. ft. of commercial space and 138 one-bedroom and 29 two-bedroom apartment 
units located off/on of Spring St. SW, with a total wastewater discharge of 41,430 
GPD. 

 
Date Issued: April 29, 2021 
Project Title: Kensley East Subdivision 
Project # 2021-023 
Developer:   Niblock Homes, LLC 

William T. Niblock, Member 
759 Concord Parkway N, Suite 20 
Concord, NC 28027 
P) 704-788-4818      
E) wniblock@niblockhomes.com 

Description: Construction of approximately 963.55 linear feet of 8-inch sanitary sewer with 7 
manholes and other appurtenances to serve 13 single family 4-bedroom residents 
located off/on of Eva Drive between Lucky Drive and Red Bud Place, with a 
domestic wastewater discharge of 6,240 GPD. 

 
Date Issued: May 10, 2021 
Project Title: Odell Corners Phase 1-Commerical 
Project # 2018-013A 
Developer:   Odell 73 Investments, LLC 

Justin Mueller, Manager  
51 Union Street South, Suite 100  
Concord, NC 28025 
P) 704-578-5688      
Email) justin@sdgcarolinas.com 

Description: Constructed wastewater collection system and other appurtenances that will serve 
a 20,500 sq. ft. gas station, fast food restaurant, and commercial area located off 
of Odell School Road and Davidson Hwy (Hwy 73), with a commercial 
wastewater discharge of 7,650 GPD. 

 
 
 
 
 

343



 

 
Date Issued: May 10, 2021 
Project Title: Sycamore at Christenbury Commons Apartments- Phase 1 Mod 1- 

Correction * 
Project # 2020-062 
Developer:   Sycamore at Christenbury, LLC 

Christopher McGrath, Senior Executive VP 
255 South 17th Street, 20th Floor  
Philadelphia, PA 19103 
P) 215-772-1100     
Email) christopher@switzenbaum.com 

Description: Construction of approximately 94 linear feet of 8-inch sanitary sewer with 2 
manholes and other appurtenances to serve 275 Multi-family apartment units, an 
amenity center with a 100 sq. ft. fitness center, office, and pool located off of Cox 
Mill Rd. and Christenbury Prkwy, with a zero increase in the domestic 
wastewater flow. The domestic wastewater discharge of 67,285 GPD will be 
allocated in the NCDEQ private sewer permit- Revised flow from the previously 
approved domestic and commercial wastewater discharge of 105,685 GPD 

 
Date Issued: May 14, 2021 
Project Title: Kasen Bluff Subdivision Mod 1-Renewal * 
Project # 2002-036 
Developer:   Daryl Suther, Owner  

2200 Old Salisbury Rd. 
Concord, NC 28025 
P) 704-786-5197      
E) hanknumb@gorsw.com 

Description: Construction of approximately 514.49 linear feet of 8-inch sanitary sewer with 4 
manholes and other appurtenances to serve 11 single family 3-bedroom home lots 
located off of Honeycutt Drive, with a domestic wastewater discharge of 3,960 
GPD. 

 
Date Issued: May 28, 2021 
Project Title: Express Oil-Concord Mod 1- Additional Flow 
Project # 2020-082 
Developer:   Express Oil Change, LLC 

R. Kent Feazell, Executive VP of Development  
1880 Southpark Drive  
Birmingham, AL 35244 
P) 205-943-5770      
E) KFeazell@expressoil.com 

Description: Previously constructed wastewater collection system extension consisting of 
additional sewer flow only to serve a 4,630 sq. ft. Service garage and oil change 
located off of George W. Liles Parkway, with an additional wastewater discharge 
of 424 GPD. This is additional flow to the previously allocated flow of 3,600 
GPD approved under 7-Eleven Coddle Market 2019-055. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

344



 

 
 

Date Issued: June 23, 2021 
Project Title: Highway 29 Mini-Storage 
Project # 2019-058 
Developer:   Mini Storage Depot on Concord Pkwy, LLC 

Lance A. Swank, Manager 
3900 Edison Lakes Parkway, Suite 201 
Mishawaka, IN 46545 
P) 574-247-3215      
Email) cpatterson@thesterlinggrp.com 

Description: Construction of approximately 337.27 linear feet of 8-inch sanitary sewer with 2 
manholes and other appurtenances to serve a 75,040 sq. ft. commercial self-
storage warehouse located off/on of Concord Parkway, with a commercial 
wastewater discharge of 150 GPD. 

 
Date Issued: June 23, 2021 
Project Title: Hendrick Storage Building-Auto Plaza Mod 1- Revised Summary 
Project # 2020-088 
Developer:   HSREI, LLC 

Scott Ennis, Vice President  
6000 Monroe Road 
Charlotte, NC, 28212 
P) 704-567-3635      
Email) james.woodruff@hendrickauto.com 

Description: Consisting of abandonment of approximately 81.66 linear feet of 8-inch public 
sewer main and the existing manhole and one manhole addition to serve the 
Hendrick Commercial Truck Center and Hendrick Storage Building located 
off/on of Hendrick Auto Plaza NW, with zero additional flow. The additional 
commercial wastewater flow of 3,300 gpd for the Hendrick Commercial Truck 
Center and Hendrick Storage Building will be allocated in the NCDEQ private 
sewer permit.   

 
Date Issued: June 29, 2021 
Project Title: Annsborough Park Subdivision 
Project # 2019-048 
Developer:   M/I Homes of Charlotte, LLC 

Cody Simoneaux, VP of Land Development  
5350 77 Center Drive, Suite 100 
Charlotte, NC 28217 
P)704-597-4538      
E) csimoneaux@mihomes.com 

Description: Construction of approximately 172 linear feet of 18-inch sanitary sewer with 1 
manhole, 260 linear feet of 15-inch sanitary sewer with 1 manhole, 8,104 linear 
feet of 12-inch sanitary sewer with 36 manholes, 14,995 linear feet of 8-inch 
sanitary sewer with 100 manholes and other appurtenances to serve 300 4-
bedroom single family units and a clubhouse and swimming pool located off/on 
of Odell School road, with a domestic wastewater discharge of 145,470 GPD.    

 
 

345



 

 
Date Issued: June 29, 2021 
Project Title: Oaklawn Townhome Subdivision Mod 1- Renewal- Change of Ownership *  
Project # 2020-012 
Developer:   Oaklawn Project I, LLC 

Mark Brady, Member  
10100 Innovation Drive, Suite 410 
Dayton, OH 45342 
P) 937-291-1223    
Email) patrick.quinn@ddcmgmt.com 

Description: Construction of approximately 4,294 linear feet of 8-inch sanitary sewer with 24 
manholes and other appurtenances to serve 189 single family 3-bedroom 
townhomes located off of Harris Road, with a domestic wastewater discharge of 
68,040 GPD. 

 
Date Issued: June 30, 2021 
Project Title: Sign Industrial  
Project # 2020-092 
Developer:   DOSA, LLC 

Donald Newton, Sr., Managing Member 
77 McCachern Blvd. SE, Ste. 1 
Concord, NC 28025 
P) 704-792-1900      
Email) premiersr77@gmail.com 

Description: Construction of approximately 36.64 linear feet of 8-inch sanitary sewer with 1 
manhole and other appurtenances to serve 12,500 sq. ft. flex office space for 30 
employees located off of Sign Drive NW, with an industrial wastewater discharge 
of 750 GPD. 

 

346



Tax Report for Fiscal Year 2020-2021
FINAL REPORT June

Property Tax Receipts- Munis
2020 BUDGET YEAR 159,756.74         
2019 44,034.38           
2018 4,533.20             
2017 642.58                
2016 175.20                
2015 350.07                
2014 225.71                
2013 249.11                
2012 277.92                
2011 267.54                
Prior Years 980.50                
Interest 17,736.21           
Refunds

229,229.16         

Vehicle Tax Receipts- County
2020 BUDGET YEAR 484,720.89         
2019
2018
2017
2016
2015
2014
Prior Years 150.49                
Penalty & Interest 4,587.03             
Refunds

489,458.41         

Fire District Tax - County
2019 BUDGET YEAR 1,387.52             

   Less: Collection Fee from County
Net Ad Valorem Collections 720,075.09         

423:Vehicle Tag Fee-Transportion Impr Fund 37,461.70           
100:Vehicle Tag Fee 152,086.60         
292:Vehicle Tag Fee-Transportion Fund 37,461.70           
   Less Collection Fee - Transit 
Net Vehicle Tag Collection 227,010.00         

Privilege License 125.63                
Prepaid Privilege Licenses
Privilege License interest
Total Privilege License 125.63                

 

Oakwood Cemetery current 1,150.00             
Oakwood Cemetery endowment 0
Rutherford Cemetery current 4,208.35             
Rutherford Cemetery endowment 1,566.65             
West Concord Cemetery current 1,674.96             
West Concord Cemetery endowment 1,600.04             
Total Cemetery Collections 10,200.00           

Total Collections 957,410.72$       

347



Current Year
Original Scroll
    Levy
    Penalty
    Adjustments
Public Service 
    Levy
    Penalty
Discoveries/Annex 12,604.23           
Discovery Penalty 2,904.33             
Total Amount Invoiced - Monthly 15,508.56           
Total Amount Invoiced - YTD 63,359,412.06    

Current Year
Less Abatements (Releases)
    Real 350.28                
    Personal
    Discovery
    Penalty - all
Total Abatements 350.28                

Adjusted Amount Invoiced - monthly 15,158.28
Adjusted Amount Invoiced - YTD 62,964,864.97    

 
Current Levy Collected 159,756.74         
Levy Collected from previous years 51,736.21           
Penalties & Interest Collected 17,736.21           
Current Month Write Off - Debit/Credit
Total Monthly Collected 229,229.16         
Total Collected - YTD 63,549,276.10    

Total Collected - net current levy -YTD 62,893,269.14    

Percentage of Collected -current levy      99.89%

Amount Uncollected - current year levy 71,595.83           

Percentage of Uncollected - current levy 0.11%

100.00%

348



CITY OF CONCORD

RELEASES 
CITY OF CONCORD 350.28$                
CONCORD DOWNTOWN -$                     

REFUNDS 
CITY OF CONCORD 124.41$                
CONCORD DOWNTOWN -$                     

DISCOVERIES
CITY OF CONCORD

TaxYear Real Personal Total Rate Calculated Penalties
2016 0 110,967 110,967 0.0048 532.64 280.00
2017 0 108,145 108,145 0.0048 519.10 225.52
2018 0 310,362 310,362 0.0048 1,489.74 567.54
2019 0 641,589 641,589 0.0048 3,079.63 897.94
2020 462,384 992,435 1,454,819 0.0048 6,983.13 933.33
2021 0 0 0 0.0048 0.00 0.00

Total 462,384 2,163,498 2,625,882 12,604.23$        2,904.33$     

DOWNTOWN 
TaxYear Real Personal Total Rate Calculated Penalties

2017 0 0 0 0.0023 0.00 0.00
2018 0 0 0 0.0023 0.00 0.00
2019 0 0 0 0.0023 0.00 0.00
2020 0 0 0 0.0023 0.00 0.00

Total 0 0 0 -$                   -$              

Summary of Releases, Refunds and Discoveries for the Month of Jun 2021

349



Description CUSIP/Ticker Face Amount/Shares Cost Value Maturity Date YTM @ Cost % of Portfolio Settlement Date Cost Price Days To Maturity

CP BANCO SANTADER 0 11/19/2021 05970RYK5 5,000,000.00 4,997,723.61 11/19/2021 0.110 1.33 N/A 99.954472 142
CP BCI MIAMI 0 9/20/2021 05990CWL4 5,000,000.00 4,993,611.10 9/20/2021 0.230 1.33 N/A 99.872222 82
CP CHESHAM 0 11/23/2021 16536HYP0 5,000,000.00 4,996,125.00 11/23/2021 0.150 1.33 N/A 99.9225 146
CP CHESHAM 0 7/29/2021 16536HUV1 5,000,000.00 4,994,972.20 7/29/2021 0.200 1.33 N/A 99.899444 29
CP COLLAT V CO LLC 0 12/22/2021 19424HZN3 5,000,000.00 4,996,966.67 12/22/2021 0.120 1.33 N/A 99.939333 175
CP CREDIT SUISSE 0 3/25/2022 2254EBCR0 5,000,000.00 4,993,672.22 3/25/2022 0.170 1.33 N/A 99.873444 268
CP CREDIT SUISSE 0 9/14/2021 2254EAWE9 5,000,000.00 4,997,666.67 9/14/2021 0.140 1.33 N/A 99.953333 76
CP ING US FUNDING 0 2/14/2022 4497W1BE5 5,000,000.00 4,994,022.22 2/14/2022 0.160 1.33 N/A 99.880444 229
CP JP MORGAN 0 10/18/2021 46640PXJ7 5,000,000.00 4,994,900.00 10/18/2021 0.170 1.33 N/A 99.898 110
CP MACQUARIE BANK 0 8/17/2021 55607KVH6 5,000,000.00 4,995,525.00 8/17/2021 0.180 1.33 N/A 99.9105 48
CP NATIXIS NY 0 11/1/2021 63873JY12 5,000,000.00 4,995,038.90 11/1/2021 0.190 1.33 N/A 99.900778 124
CP SALVATION ARMY 0 10/14/2021 79584RXE3 5,000,000.00 4,993,875.00 10/14/2021 0.180 1.33 N/A 99.8775 106
CP TOYOTA MC0 7/23/2021 89233GUP9 5,000,000.00 4,998,181.94 7/23/2021 0.110 1.33 N/A 99.963639 23
CP TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT 0 8/9/2021 89233GV94 5,000,000.00 4,993,648.61 8/9/2021 0.170 1.33 N/A 99.872972 40
Sub Total / Average Commercial Paper 70,000,000.00 69,935,929.14 0.163 18.65 99.90848 114

FFCB 0.14 5/18/2023-21 3133EMZP0 5,000,000.00 4,997,000.00 5/18/2023 0.170 1.33 N/A 99.94 687
FFCB 0.19 9/22/2023-21 3133EMLE0 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 9/22/2023 0.190 1.33 N/A 100 814
FFCB 0.2 8/19/2022-21 3133EL4H4 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 8/19/2022 0.200 1.33 N/A 100 415
FFCB 0.22 7/21/2022-21 3133ELW67 5,000,000.00 4,997,500.00 7/21/2022 0.245 1.33 N/A 99.95 386
FFCB 0.23 1/19/2024 3133EMNG3 5,000,000.00 4,997,850.00 1/19/2024 0.244 1.33 N/A 99.957 933
FFCB 0.25 3/1/2024-21 3133EMSD5 5,000,000.00 4,990,000.00 3/1/2024 0.317 1.33 N/A 99.8 975
FFCB 0.31 11/30/2023-21 3133EMHL9 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 11/30/2023 0.310 1.33 N/A 100 883
FFCB 0.32 8/10/2023-21 3133EL3E2 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 8/10/2023 0.320 1.33 N/A 100 771
FFCB 0.43 9/10/2024-20 3133EL6V1 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 9/10/2024 0.430 1.33 N/A 100 1,168
FFCB 0.53 9/29/2025-21 3133EMBH4 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 9/29/2025 0.530 1.33 N/A 100 1,552
FFCB 0.625 6/16/2026-21 3133EMKV3 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 6/16/2026 0.625 1.33 N/A 100 1,812
FFCB 0.71 4/21/2025-22 3133EMWH1 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 4/21/2025 0.710 1.33 N/A 100 1,391
FFCB 1.04 1/25/2029-22 3133EMNL2 5,000,000.00 4,986,250.00 1/25/2029 1.076 1.33 N/A 99.725 2,766
FFCB 1.4 3/10/2028-22 3133EMSW3 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 3/10/2028 1.400 1.33 N/A 100 2,445
FFCB 1.5 3/23/2028-22 3133EMUB6 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 3/23/2028 1.500 1.33 N/A 100 2,458
FFCB 1.55 3/15/2029-22 3133EMSX1 5,000,000.00 4,960,000.00 3/15/2029 1.658 1.32 N/A 99.2 2,815
FFCB 1.55 3/30/2027-23 3133ELUN2 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 3/30/2027 1.550 1.33 N/A 100 2,099
FFCB 1.7 9/27/2022-21 3133EKS31 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 9/27/2022 1.700 1.33 N/A 100 454
FFCB 1.89 9/27/2024-21 3133EKU20 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 9/27/2024 1.890 1.33 N/A 100 1,185
Sub Total / Average FFCB Bond 95,000,000.00 94,928,600.00 0.793 25.31 99.925188 1,368

FHLB 0.22 10/5/2023-21 3130AKAF3 5,000,000.00 4,992,500.00 10/5/2023 0.270 1.33 N/A 99.85 827
FHLB 0.3 11/27/2023-21 3130AKGL4 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 11/27/2023 0.300 1.33 N/A 100 880
FHLB 0.3 2/9/2024-21 3130AMHP0 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 2/9/2024 0.300 1.33 N/A 100 954
FHLB 0.3 9/29/2023-21 3130AK3S3 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 9/29/2023 0.300 1.33 N/A 100 821

City of Concord
Portfolio Holdings
Monthly Investments to Council
Report Format: By CUSIP / Ticker
Group By: Security Type
Average By: Cost Value
Portfolio / Report Group: All Portfolios
As of 6/30/2021

Commercial Paper

FFCB Bond

FHLB Bond

350



FHLB 0.375 5/24/2024-21 3130AMPB2 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 5/24/2024 0.375 1.33 N/A 100 1,059
FHLB 0.4 5/24/2024-21 3130AMEP3 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 5/24/2024 0.400 1.33 N/A 100 1,059
FHLB 0.4 6/7/2024-21 3130AMKX9 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 6/7/2024 0.400 1.33 N/A 100 1,073
FHLB 0.4 7/15/2025-21 3130AKM29 5,000,000.00 4,999,000.00 7/15/2025 0.405 1.33 N/A 99.98 1,476
FHLB 0.45 4/29/2024-21 3130ALYE8 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 4/29/2024 0.450 1.33 N/A 100 1,034
FHLB 0.45 8/27/2024-20 3130AJZH5 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 8/27/2024 0.450 1.33 N/A 100 1,154
FHLB 0.5 10/20/2025-21 3130AKNK8 5,000,000.00 4,999,000.00 10/20/2025 0.504 1.33 N/A 99.98 1,573
FHLB 0.53 2/17/2026-21 3130AKWS1 5,000,000.00 4,995,000.00 2/17/2026 0.550 1.33 N/A 99.9 1,693
FHLB 0.8 3/10/2026-21 3130ALFS8 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 3/10/2026 0.800 1.33 N/A 100 1,714
FHLB 0.825 8/17/2027-21 3130AJXH7 5,000,000.00 4,986,250.00 8/17/2027 0.866 1.33 N/A 99.725 2,239
FHLB 1.02 3/30/2026-21 3130ALSX3 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 3/30/2026 1.020 1.33 N/A 100 1,734
FHLB 1.77 7/22/2024-21 3130AHWG4 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 7/22/2024 1.770 1.33 N/A 100 1,118
FHLB 2.32 11/1/2029-22 3130AHEU3 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 11/1/2029 2.320 1.33 N/A 100 3,046
FHLB 2.5 2/13/2024 3130AFW94 520,000.00 554,662.30 2/13/2024 0.225 0.15 N/A 106.665827 958
FHLB Step 1/29/2026-21 3130AKRA6 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 1/29/2026 1.002 1.33 N/A 100 1,674
FHLB Step 12/30/2025-21 3130AKLH7 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 12/30/2025 0.765 1.33 N/A 100 1,644
FHLB Step 4/29/2026-21 3130ALZA5 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 4/29/2026 1.432 1.33 N/A 100 1,764
Sub Total / Average FHLB Bond 100,520,000.00 100,526,412.30 0.731 26.81 100.008731 1,424

FHLMC 0.25 6/26/2023 3137EAES4 3,220,000.00 3,219,567.60 6/26/2023 0.254 0.86 N/A 99.986726 726
FHLMC 0.25 7/28/2022-21 3134GWAP1 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 7/28/2022 0.250 1.33 N/A 100 393
FHLMC 0.25 9/8/2023 3137EAEW5 2,120,000.00 2,120,844.05 9/8/2023 0.236 0.57 N/A 100.039854 800
FHLMC 0.3 12/14/2023-21 3134GXEW0 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 12/14/2023 0.300 1.33 N/A 100 897
FHLMC 0.3 9/28/2023-21 3134GWTL0 5,000,000.00 5,003,190.00 9/28/2023 0.273 1.33 N/A 100.0638 820
FHLMC 0.375 4/20/2023 3137EAEQ8 1,290,000.00 1,291,301.24 4/20/2023 0.341 0.34 N/A 100.100871 659
FHLMC 0.8 7/14/2026-21 3134GV5T1 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 7/14/2026 0.800 1.33 N/A 100 1,840
FHLMC 2.75 6/19/2023 3137EAEN5 1,225,000.00 1,317,965.25 6/19/2023 0.244 0.35 N/A 107.589 719
Sub Total / Average FHLMC Bond 27,855,000.00 27,952,868.14 0.365 7.45 100.375392 915

FNMA 0.25 11/27/2023 3135G06H1 3,705,000.00 3,707,833.90 11/27/2023 0.223 0.99 N/A 100.076557 880
FNMA 0.28 12/29/2023-21 3135GABN0 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 12/29/2023 0.280 1.33 N/A 100 912
FNMA 0.3 10/27/2023-21 3136G46A6 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 10/27/2023 0.300 1.33 N/A 100 849
FNMA 0.31 8/17/2023-22 3136G4K51 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 8/17/2023 0.310 1.33 N/A 100 778
FNMA 0.4 7/20/2023-21 3136G4ZS5 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 7/20/2023 0.400 1.33 N/A 100 750
FNMA 0.42 7/7/2023-21 3136G4YJ6 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 7/7/2023 0.420 1.33 N/A 100 737
FNMA 0.455 8/27/2024-21 3136G4Y72 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 8/27/2024 0.455 1.33 N/A 100 1,154
FNMA 0.55 8/19/2025-22 3136G4H63 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 8/19/2025 0.550 1.33 N/A 100 1,511
FNMA 0.58 8/25/2025-22 3136G4J20 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 8/25/2025 0.580 1.33 N/A 100 1,517
FNMA 0.7 7/14/2025-21 3136G4YH0 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 7/14/2025 0.700 1.33 N/A 100 1,475
FNMA 0.73 10/29/2026-21 3136G46F5 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 10/29/2026 0.730 1.33 N/A 100 1,947
FNMA 0.8 11/4/2027-22 3135GA2L4 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 11/4/2027 0.800 1.33 N/A 100 2,318
FNMA 1.375 9/6/2022 3135G0W33 300,000.00 298,497.00 9/6/2022 1.568 0.08 N/A 99.499 433
FNMA 1.875 4/5/2022 3135G0T45 1,545,000.00 1,535,169.39 4/5/2022 2.098 0.41 N/A 99.368699 279
FNMA 2 10/5/2022 3135G0T78 3,805,000.00 3,857,482.35 10/5/2022 1.511 1.03 N/A 101.379763 462
FNMA 2.25 4/12/2022 3135G0V59 960,000.00 969,734.40 4/12/2022 1.871 0.26 N/A 101.014 286
FNMA 2.375 1/19/2023 3135G0T94 1,820,000.00 1,884,180.01 1/19/2023 1.134 0.50 N/A 103.531596 568
FNMA 2.5 2/5/2024 3135G0V34 1,500,000.00 1,590,870.00 2/5/2024 0.225 0.42 N/A 106.058 950
FNMA 2.875 9/12/2023 3135G0U43 1,170,000.00 1,263,483.00 9/12/2023 0.221 0.34 N/A 107.99 804
Sub Total / Average FNMA Bond 69,805,000.00 70,107,250.05 0.607 18.69 100.454415 1,130

NCCMT LGIP NCCMT599 50,958.60 50,958.60 N/A 0.010 0.01 N/A 100 1
NCCMT LGIP NCCMT481 1,217,278.47 1,217,278.47 N/A 0.010 0.32 N/A 100 1

Local Government Investment Pool

FHLMC Bond

FNMA Bond

351



NCCMT LGIP NCCMT271 102,821.07 102,821.07 N/A 0.010 0.03 N/A 100 1
Sub Total / Average Local Government Investment Pool 1,371,058.14 1,371,058.14 0.010 0.37 100 1

PINNACLE BANK MM PINNACLE 10,194,111.24 10,194,111.24 N/A 0.150 2.72 N/A 100 1
Sub Total / Average Money Market 10,194,111.24 10,194,111.24 0.150 2.72 100 1
Total / Average 374,745,169.38 375,016,229.01 0.572 100 100.079267 1,029

Money Market

352


	Agenda
	I. Call to Order
	II. Pledge of Allegiance and Moment of Silent Prayer
	III. Approval of Minutes
	IV. Presentations
	IV. 1. Presentation of retirement plaque to Canine Bendix for seven years of service as aPolice Canine for the Concord Police Department.
	IV. 2. Presentation of retirement plaque to Code Enforcement Manager Chuck Brock forover 30 years of service with the City of Concord.
	IV. 3. Recognition of the City of Concord Finance Department for receiving the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting for period ending June 30, 2020.
	1 - Result Letter - Awarded
	5 - Certificate

	IV. 4. Presentation of a Certificate of Appreciation to Todd Phillips for his 10 years ofservice to the Concord ABC Board.
	V. Unfinished Business
	V. A. Continue a public hearing to consider amending Section 8.8.4 of the Concord Development Ordinance (CDO) and Section 58-256 (c) of the City Code of Ordinances to clarify the use of recreational vehicles as residences.
	TA-06-21 Complete Staff Report
	Alternative Language
	Article 8 Ordinance with 365 Option
	Article 8
	Sec. 58 Ordinance revised

	V. B. Continue a public hearing to consider renaming a section of Roberta Church Rd.
	Map
	Map for City Council-with property

	VI. New Business
	A. Informational Items
	B. Departmental Reports
	C. Recognition of persons requesting to be heard
	D. Public Hearings
	VI. D 1. Conduct a public hearing pursuant to NC General Statutes Sec. 158-7.1 and consider offering a contract for a seven year / 85% tax based Economic Development Incentive Grant to Ball Metal Beverage Container Corp. (Project Aquamarine Component 1) to locate at 2321 Concord Pkwy S. in Concord, NC.
	Project Aquamarine Component 1
	Project Aquamarine Grant Calculations

	VI. D. 2. Conduct a public hearing pursuant to NC General Statutes Sec. 158-7.1 and consider offering a contract for a seven year / 85% tax based Economic Development Incentive Grant to RRB Beverage Operations Inc. (Project Aquamarine Component 2) to locate at 2321 Concord Pkwy S. in Concord, NC.
	Project Aquamarine Component 2
	Project Aquamarine Grant Calculations

	VI. D. 3. Conduct a public hearing pursuant to NC General Statutes Sec. 158-7.1 and consider offering a contract for a seven year / 85% tax based Economic Development Incentive Grant to Red Bull North America, Inc. (Project Aquamarine Component 3) to locate at 2321 Concord Pkwy S. in Concord, NC.
	Project Aquamarine Component 3
	Project Aquamarine Grant Calculations

	VI. D. 4. Conduct a public hearing to consider adopting an ordinance amending the official zoning map for +/- 3.366 acres located at 2183 Heglar Rd from Cabarrus County LDR (Low Density Residential) to City of Concord RM-1 (Residential Medium Density) and to amend the 2030 Land Use Plan from Rural to Suburban Neighborhood.
	Council Staff Report
	Staff Packet

	VI. D. 5. Conduct a public hearing to consider adopting an ordinance amending the official zoning map for +/- 0.64 acres located on the southwestern side of the intersection of Freeze Ave. NW and St. James St. NW from Neighborhood Commercial (B-1) and Residential Compact (RC) to Residential Compact Conditional District (RC-CD).
	Z(CD)-08-21 Council Staff Report
	Application-Appeal Rezoning Decision to City Council
	Z(CD)-08-21 Full Staff Packet

	E. Presentations of Petitions and Requests
	VI. E. 1. Consider authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute a contract withMcGill Associates, P.A. for Construction Phase Services for the UnionStreetscape Improvements Project.
	VI. E. 2. Consider approving the lighting design and authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute a sole source contract with Illuminating Concepts Inc, LLC for Intellistreets Light Poles & Accessories as part of the Union Streetscape Improvements Project.
	Intellistreets poles and accessories

	VI. E. 3. Consider amending the City's sign ordinance to extend the allowable time periods for posting temporary banners.
	Chamber request letter

	VI. E. 4. Consider approving the purchase of 26, 30, 34, & 69 Powder Street NW, 224 Cabarrus Avenue E, and 243 Corban Avenue SW from the estate of Barry K. McClamrock for $150,050 using City Affordable Housing funds.
	McClamrock Property
	McClamrock OTP

	VI. E. 5. Consider recognizing the Woodbridge Home Owners Association in to the City's Partnership for Stronger Neighborhoods program.
	Woodbridge Recognized Neighborhood Application August 2021

	VI. E. 6. Consider adopting a resolution giving preliminary approval for the issuance of multifamily housing revenue bonds to finance the acquisition, rehabilitation and equipping of The Greens of Concord.
	Active_148012176_1_Concord - Greens of Concord - Inducement Resolution
	Greens of Concord - Project Overview

	VI. E. 7. Consider adopting an ordinance to temporarily close Cabarrus Ave (SR 1002) between Market St., SW and Church St., S for the Concord International Festival to be held October 2, 2021.
	International Festival
	Downtown Concord International Festival

	VI. E. 8. Consider approving and adopting the Conceptual Master Plan to develop the 28.6-acre J.E. "Jim" Ramseur Park located at 1252 Cox Mill Road.
	Master Plan

	VI. E. 9. Consider authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute a contract amendment for professional services with Woolpert, North Carolina PLLC to complete the schematic design phase for the J.E. "Jim" Ramseur Park property located at 1252 Cox Mill Road.
	Schedule for J.E. "Jim" Ramseur Park
	Woolpert #2 Addendum

	VI. E. 10. Consider awarding a sole source purchase order in the amount of $320,877.36 to Reinhausen Manufacturing Inc. for purchase of two (2) On-Load Tap Changers.
	LTC Replacement Quote 

	VI. E. 11. Consider awarding a bid for one 44KV Substation Power Transformer for the Country Club Dr. Substation F and one spare 100 KV Power Transformer.
	Sub F and 100 KV TX Bid Recommendation Letter
	Sub F and 100 KV Bid Tabulation
	Sub F TX Routing Sheet Schedule I
	Spare 100 kV TX Routing Sheet Schedule II
	Sub F and 100 KV TX Bid Review Form

	VI. E. 12. Consider authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute a contract with Talbert Bright and Ellington (TBE) to provide engineering, design, and bidding services for the South and North Gravel Parking Lot Paving and Budget Amendment.
	Work Authorization for South and North Gravel Parking Lot Paving
	BA Long Term Parking

	VI. E. 13. Consider authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute a contract with Carolina Siteworks, Inc.  for the installation of the General Services Dr. 12-inch Water Line Replacement.
	Bid Tabulation

	VI. E. 14 Consider a Preliminary Application from Cedric O. Harris.
	Harris App
	Harris map

	VI. E. 15. Consider a Preliminary Application from Sandra S. Diffee.
	Diffee App
	Diffee Map

	VII. Consent Agenda
	VII. A. Consider accepting an Offer of Dedication of utility easements and publicrights-of-ways in various subdivisions.
	VII. B. Consider adopting an ordinance amending the Fees and Charges schedule for water, wastewater, and transit fees.
	Fee schedule update

	VII. C. Consider increasing the payment standards for the Housing Department in order to encourage landlord participation in the Housing Choice Voucher program.
	Updated Payment Standards

	VII. D. Consider adopting an ordinance to amend the FY 2021/2022 Budget Ordinance for the General Fund to appropriate unspent FY 2021 funds for the Public Art Committee.
	Reapprop art committee funds

	VII. E. Consider adopting a capital project ordinance to amend the Transportation Projects Fund.
	CMAQ 601 Flowes Store

	VII. F. Consider adopting a Golf Fund operating budget amendment and a Golf Projects Fund project budget amendment.
	Range Netting project FY2022
	Range Netting transfer

	VII. G. Consider adopting an ordinance to amend the FY 2021/2022 General Fund budget and approve the use of contingency funds.
	LTC Parker memorial donation

	VII. H. Consider amending the Title VI Policy.
	Title VI Policy

	VII. I. Consider amending Article 8.1, Hiring Procedure Policy in the City's Personnel Policies and Procedures manual.
	8.1 Hiring Procedure Policy

	VII. J. Consider amending Article 8.13, City of Concord Computer Network, Email, and Internet Access Policy.
	Article 8.13 Computer Policy Aug Update

	VII. K. Receive quarterly report on water and wastewater extension permits issued by the Engineering Department in the second quarter of 2021.
	Second Qtr 2021

	VII. L. Consider acceptance of the Tax Office reports for the month of June 2021.
	TAX COLLECTIONS JUN21

	VII. M. Consider approval of Tax Releases/Refunds from the Tax Collection Office for the month of June 2021.
	RELEASE REFUND DISCOVERY JUN21

	Receive monthly report on status of investments as of June 30, 2021.
	Monthly Investments Jun 2021

	VIII. Matters not on the agenda
	IX. General comments by Council of non-business nature
	X. Closed Session (if needed)
	XI. Adjournment



